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CALOPTIMA HEALTH BOARD OF DIRECTORS’  

FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 19, 2024 
3:00 P.M. 

 
505 CITY PARKWAY WEST, SUITE, 108-N  

ORANGE, CALIFORNIA 92868 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
Isabel Becerra, Chair 

Blair Contratto 
Brian Helleland 

 
      CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OUTSIDE GENERAL COUNSEL 

KENNADAY LEAVITT 
   CLERK OF THE BOARD 

Michael Hunn Troy R. Szabo Sharon Dwiers 
This agenda contains a brief description of each item to be considered. Except as provided by law, no 
action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda. To speak on an item, complete a Public 
Comment Request Form identifying the item and submit to the Clerk of the Board. To speak on a 
matter not appearing on the agenda, but within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board of Directors’ 
Finance and Audit Committee, you may do so during Public Comments. Public Comment Request Forms 
must be submitted prior to the beginning of the Consent Calendar and/or the beginning of Public 
Comments.  When addressing the Committee, it is requested that you state your name for the record. 
Address the Committee as a whole through the Chair. Comments to individual Committee Members or 
staff are not permitted.  Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes per item. 
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, those requiring accommodations for this 
meeting should notify the Clerk of the Board's Office at (714) 246-8806, at least 72 hours prior to the 
meeting. 
 

The Board of Directors’ Finance and Audit Committee meeting agenda and supporting materials are 
available for review at CalOptima Health, 505 City Parkway West, Orange, CA 92868, 8 a.m. – 5 p.m., 
Monday-Friday, and online at www.caloptima.org. Committee meeting audio is streamed live on the 
CalOptima Health website at www.caloptima.org. 
 

 
 

Members of the public may attend the meeting in person.  Members of the public also have the 
option of participating in the meeting via Zoom Webinar (see below).   
 
Participate via Zoom Webinar at: https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_EpQhaskLT-
asfWHjWwhAww 
  
 Webinar ID: 822 6703 5948  
 Passcode: 123770 
-- Webinar instructions are provided below.  

http://www.caloptima.org/
http://www.caloptima.org/
https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_EpQhaskLT-asfWHjWwhAww
https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_EpQhaskLT-asfWHjWwhAww


Notice of a Regular Meeting of the  
CalOptima Health Board of Directors’ 
Finance and Audit Committee 
September 19, 2024 
Page 2 

CALL TO ORDER 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Establish Quorum 

MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
1. Chief Financial Officer Report

2. Cybersecurity Update

INVESTMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE UPDATE 
3. Treasurer’s Report

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
At this time, members of the public may address the Committee on matters not appearing on the agenda, 
but under the jurisdiction of the Board of Directors' Finance and Audit Committee. Speakers will be limited 
to three (3) minutes. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
4. Minutes

a. Approve Minutes of the May 23, 2024 Special Meeting of the CalOptima Health Board of
Directors' Finance and Audit Committee

b. Receive and File Minutes of the April 22, 2024 Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Health
Board of Directors’ Investment Advisory Committee

5. Recommend Ratification of Appointment to the CalOptima Health Board of Directors’ Investment
Advisory Committee

6. Recommend Ratification of Reappointment and Committee Chair Appointment to the CalOptima
Health Board of Directors’ Investment Advisory Committee

REPORTS/DISCUSSION ITEMS 
7. Recommend that the Board of Directors Accept, Receive and File Fiscal Year 2023-24 CalOptima

Health Audited Financial Statements

8. Recommend Reappointments to the CalOptima Health Board of Directors’ Investment Advisory
Committee

9. Recommend Reappointment and Committee Chair Reappointment to the CalOptima Health Board
of Directors’ Investment Advisory Committee

INFORMATION ITEMS 
10. July 2024 Financial Summary

11. Quarterly Operating and Capital Budget Update
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12. CalAIM Program Summary

13. Quarterly Reports to the Finance and Audit Committee
a. Net Asset Analysis
b. Enrollment Trend Report
c. Shared Risk Pool Performance Update
d. Health Network Financial Compliance Review Update

COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 

ADJOURNMENT 



TO REGISTER AND JOIN THE MEETING 

Please register for the Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Health Board of 
Directors’ Finance and Audit Committee on September 19, 2024 at 3:00 p.m. 
(PST)  

To Register in advance for this webinar:  
https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_NAC3KgGUSJGMWHrRc4E
a_g 

Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone or Android device: 

To Join please click this url: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/s/82267035948?pwd=A6LTEt4nZzFfAg1yaPrz1Fwh
5WqtCb.1 

Or One tap mobile: 
+16694449171,,82267035948#,,,,*230237# US
+13462487799,,82267035948#,,,,*230237# US (Houston)

Or join by phone: 
    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
        US: +1 669 444 9171  or +1 346 248 7799  or +1 719 359 4580  or +1 720 
707 2699  or +1 253 205 0468  or +1 253 215 8782  or +1 309 205 3325  or +1 312 
626 6799  or +1 360 209 5623  or +1 386 347 5053  or +1 507 473 4847  or +1 564 
217 2000  or +1 646 558 8656  or +1 646 931 3860  or +1 689 278 1000  or +1 301 
715 8592  or +1 305 224 1968 

    Webinar ID: 822 6703 5948 
    Passcode: 230237 
International numbers available: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kdfsI5FTDG 

https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_NAC3KgGUSJGMWHrRc4Ea_g
https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_NAC3KgGUSJGMWHrRc4Ea_g
https://us06web.zoom.us/s/82267035948?pwd=A6LTEt4nZzFfAg1yaPrz1Fwh5WqtCb.1
https://us06web.zoom.us/s/82267035948?pwd=A6LTEt4nZzFfAg1yaPrz1Fwh5WqtCb.1
https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kdfsI5FTDG


 

CalOptima Health, A Public Agency 

Memo 
 
To: CalOptima Health Board Finance and Audit Committee Members 

From:  Nancy Huang, Chief Financial Officer 

CC:  Sharon Dwiers, Clerk of the Board 

Date: September 12, 2024 

Re: CFO Report:  September 19, 2024, Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 

 
Provider Rate Increases Implementation 
At the May 2, 2024, meeting, the CalOptima Health Board of Directors (Board) committed up to $526.2 
million from undesignated reserves to support provider rate increases for a 2.5-year period (i.e., July 1, 
2024, through December 31, 2026).  The fiscal impact for Fiscal Year (FY) 2024-25 is approximately 
$210.5 million. 
 
At the June 6, 2024, meeting, the Board approved CalOptima Health’s FY 2024-25 budgets.  The 
operating budget included $210.5 million that the Board committed at the May meeting for provider rate 
increases, as well as $172.8 million1 to implement the Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) 
mandatory targeted rate increases (TRI) for eligible providers.   
 
Staff has completed provider contract changes and system implementation.  Effective July 1, 2024, 
CalOptima Health began paying fee-for-service (FFS) providers at the correct TRI rate on a go forward 
basis and health networks capitation payments that have been adjusted to meet TRI requirements.  Staff 
has also made retroactively adjusted capitation payments to health networks and FFS providers for the 
period of January 1, 2024, through December 31, 2024.   
 
Major Year-End Reconciliations Update 
During the year-end closing, staff completed the following major reconciliations that impacted 
CalOptima Health’s financials: 
 

• $647.0 million of Calendar Years (CY) 2021 to 2023 COVID-19 risk corridor release of accrued 
liabilities; 

• $107.5 million of estimated expenses relating to CY 2024 Community Reinvestment and Quality 
Achievement requirement pursuant to the DHCS 2024 contract; 

 
1 Amount includes Proposition 56 payment conversion and new funding 

Back to Agenda
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CalOptima Health, A Public Agency 

• $54.3 million revenue reduction relating to CY 2023 population acuity adjustment from DHCS;
and

• $11.1 million revenue reduction from CY 2024 Unsatisfactory Immigration Status (UIS) risk
corridor estimates.

Reserve Policy Implementation Update  
At the May 2, 2024, meeting, the Board modified the Board-designated Reserve Funds Policy to 
increase levels from 1.4 to 2.0 month of consolidated monthly revenue to 2.5 to 3.0 months, and to 
create a separate reserve fund to ensure compliance with tangible net equity (TNE) requirements.  Staff 
completed the policy implementation in June 2024. The attached Treasurer’s Report, as of June 30, 
2024, provides additional information on the status of reserve levels after implementation of the 
approved policy changes.  

Investment Advisory Committee Membership 
At the July 25, 2022, meeting, the Investment Advisory Committee (IAC) approved two items: 

• Two-year reappointment to the IAC and appointment to serve as IAC Chair for Rodney Johnson;
and

• Two-year appointment to the IAC for James Meehan.

Due to an internal procedural error, staff inadvertently excluded these items from the subsequent FAC 
and Board agendas.  Both these items are included in this meeting’s agenda for ratification.  Since this 
occurrence, staff has adopted stronger oversight procedures to ensure agenda items move forward to 
subsequent meetings appropriate. 

Back to Agenda



Our 
Mission​
To serve member 
health with 
excellence and 
dignity, respecting 
the value and needs 
of each person.​

Our 
Vision
By 2027, remove 
barriers to health 
care access for our 
members, implement 
same-day treatment 
authorizations and 
real-time claims 
payments for our 
providers, and 
annually assess 
members’ social 
determinants of 
health.

1
CalOptima Health, A Public Agency

Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
September 19, 2024

James Steele, Senior Director, Information 
Security

Cybersecurity Update

Back to Agenda
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○ CalOptima Health has experienced 0 major* cybersecurity incidents

○ CalOptima Health Experience 1 notable non-reportable cybersecurity
incident
 Q2’24: Device Compromise (Not Successful)

○ CalOptima Health Experience 1 notable non-reportable cybersecurity
outage
 Q3’24: CrowdStrike (Global IT Outage)

○ CalOptima Health Experience 2 notable 3rd Party cybersecurity incident
 Q2’24: Optum/Calibrated Health (No CalOptima Health Impact)
 Q3’24: PARS Business Email Compromise

Cybersecurity Update Agenda

* Major Cybersecurity incident involves a disruption to business or triggers a
disclosure.



3

○ Update on Security Projects

○ Security Metrics

○ Risk Assessment

Cybersecurity Update Agenda 
(cont.)

Back to Agenda
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Device Compromise

Back to Agenda
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Cause: An attacker attempted to exploit a known vulnerability related to a 
feature CalOptima Health ITS was testing.

When: Attacker activity on 6/5/2024.

Impact: Compensating controls prevented all malicious activity from moving 
beyond the device.
Validation: An independent forensics team reviewed the evidence, network 
and logs to validate that no further activity or access.
Lessons Learned: Additional controls were put in place to add further 
protection.

About the incident 
(Device Compromise – Non-
Reportable)

Back to Agenda
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CrowdStrike 
Global IT Outage

Back to Agenda
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Cause: An update with an error was pushed to windows systems
Impact: Affected all CrowdStrike customers
○ How affected CalOptima Health 

 Outage ~10:30PM 7/18/24 – ~7:30AM 7/19/24
 139 servers were impacted
 244 workstations/Users were impacted

Lessons Learned: 
○ Changes are underway to improve our response process.
○ We are assessing CrowdStrike and will determine changes based on its 

effectiveness in protection and the potential risk to the organization.

About the incident 
(CrowdStrike – Non-Reportable)

Back to Agenda
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PARS 
Business Email 
Compromise

Back to Agenda
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Incident Type: Business Email Compromise (BEC) 

Timeline: The incident occurred on March 11, 2024, and March 14, 2024. 

Notification: July 11, 2024

Scope: A PARS employee’s email account containing CalOptima Employee data 
(1565 employees impacted)
Method: The attacker used a phishing email disguised as a Dropbox link, which 
led the victim to a simulated Microsoft login page. The victim provided their multi-
factor authentication (MFA) code, allowing the attacker to gain access.
Discovery: The breach was discovered when a coworker inquired over the phone 
about an email sent by the attacker.

About the Incident 
(PARS BEC - 3rd  Party)

Back to Agenda
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○ Penetration test and risk assessment
 Assessment Complete
 Remediation in process for finding

○ Managed security service provider 24/7 monitoring, 
alerting and response
 Project Complete
 Configure automated responses to security events to improve response time

2024 Projects in flight

* Remediation work will be scheduled based on the final reports

Back to Agenda
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Cybersecurity Metrics for Q2 2024

Back to Agenda
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www.caloptima.org
Stay Connected With Us

@CalOptima
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Board of Directors’  
Finance and Audit Committee 

September 19, 2024 
 

Quarterly Treasurer’s Report 
April 1, 2024, through June 30, 2024 

 
Overview 
To fulfill the requirements of Government Code section 53646, subdivision (b) and CalOptima 
Health Policy GA.3400: Annual Investments approved by the CalOptima Health Board of 
Directors (Board) on December 7, 2023, the Treasurer submits this quarterly investment report 
for the period April 1, 2024, through June 30, 2024. 
 
Meketa Investment Group, Inc. (Meketa), completed an independent compliance review of the 
monthly investment reports prepared by CalOptima Health’s two (2) investment managers:  
MetLife and Payden & Rygel.  As of this quarter-end, the review found that all investments were 
in compliance with Government Code section 53600 et seq. 
 
Portfolio Summary 
As of June 30, 2024, the market values of the Short-Term Operating and Restricted Reserve 
portfolios are as follows: 
 

 Payden & 
Rygel 

MetLife Total 

Short-Term Operating $1,049,572,003 $1,171,988,389 $2,221,560,392 
Board-designated Reserve Fund (Tier 1) $503,164,581 $502,720,583 $1,005,885,164 
Statutory Designated Reserve Fund (Tier 2) $66,117,950 $65,760,324 $131,878,274 
Total $1,618,854,534 $1,740,469,296 $3,359,323,830 
Notes: Market values in the table are based on the updated investment report. 
  Cash flow manager of the Operating Cash pool for each calendar year: MetLife for Q2 & Q3; Payden for Q1 & Q4 
 

The Total Fund’s net of fees performance for this quarter was 1.289%.  The Short-Term 
Operating account had a return of 1.352%. The fixed income portion, Tier One and Tier Two 
accounts, had a return of 0.946% for the quarter.  Please refer to the Executive Summary section 
of the Meketa Quarterly Investment Report for more information on rolling period performance 
measures. 
 
Six Month Cash Sufficiency 
Based upon a review of forecasted revenues and expenses, CalOptima Health has sufficient cash 
on-hand plus projected revenues to meet its operating requirements for the next six (6) months. 
 
  

Back to Agenda
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Investments Compared to Reserve Policy 
In accordance with CalOptima Health Policy GA.3001: Statutory and Board-designated Reserve 
Funds that was revised effective June 2024, CalOptima Health shall maintain a minimum reserve 
level of two point five (2.5) months and a maximum of three (3.0) months in consolidated 
capitation revenues.  The following provides a comparison of investments to the minimum and 
maximum level of Board-designated reserve funds as of June 30, 2024, demonstrating funds in 
excess to satisfy minimum requirements. 
 
A) Board-designated Reserve Fund 

Reserve Name  Market Value  Benchmark  Variance 

    Low High  Mkt - Low Mkt - High 
Tier 1 - Payden & Rygel  $503,164,581       
Tier 1 - MetLife  $502,720,583       
Total  $1,005,885,164  $891,066,767 $1,069,280,121  $114,818,397 ($63,394,957) 

Current Reserve Level  2.82  2.50 3.00    
 
B) Statutory Designated Reserve Fund 

Reserve Name  Market Value  Benchmark  Variance 

    Low High  Mkt - Low Mkt - High 
Tier 2 - Payden & Rygel  $66,117,950       
Tier 2 - MetLife   $65,760,324       
Total  $131,878,274  $127,508,151 $140,258,966  $4,370,123 ($8,380,692) 

Current Reserve Level  1.03  1.00 1.10  - - 
 
At the end of June 2024, CalOptima Health's Board-designated reserve fund compliance level 
was 2.82 and the Statutory Designated Reserve Fund was 1.03. 
 
Update on Fund Transfers 
Pursuant to CalOptima Health Policy GA.3001: Statutory and Board-designated Reserve Funds, 
CalOptima Health will monitor liquidity requirements for the next twelve (12) months and will 
transfer funds from Short-Term Operating to reserve funds, if necessary. 
 
Next Quarter’s Cash Flow Forecast and Program Update 
At the July 22, 2024, meeting, the Investment Advisory Committee (IAC) members and 
CalOptima Health’s investment managers were updated on upcoming changes that will affect 
CalOptima Health’s revenue and expenses.  
 
At the June 6, 2024, meeting, the Board approved a $4.3 billion operating budget for Fiscal Year 
(FY) 2024-25.  The budget included estimated medical related expenditures of $4.0 billion, 
resulting in a Medical Loss Ratio of approximately 94.2%, and $250.0 million to support 
CalOptima Health’s general and administrative expenses, resulting in an Administrative Loss 
Ratio of 5.8%.  At the May 2, 2024, meeting, the Board approved a commitment of $526.2 
million from unallocated reserves to support contracted provider rate increases for a 30-month 
period.  The budget reflects an estimated fiscal impact in FY 2024-25 of approximately $210.5 
million. 
 

Back to Agenda
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Pursuant to the modifications to CalOptima Health Policy GA.3001: Statutory and Board-
designated Reserve Funds approved at the May 2, 2024, Board meeting, Staff in conjunction 
with our investment advisor and investments managers completed setting up a separate reserve 
for the minimum Tangible Net Equity (TNE) requirements and increasing the Board-designated 
reserve levels by the end of June 2024.  These changes were in full compliance with CalOptima 
Health Policy GA.3400: Annual Investments. 

Attachments 
1. Quarterly Investment Report – April 1, 2024, through June 30, 2024

Back to Agenda
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MINUTES 

SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE

CALOPTIMA HEALTH BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ 
FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

CALOPTIMA 
505 CITY PARKWAY WEST 

ORANGE, CALIFORNIA 

May 23, 2024 

A Special Meeting of the CalOptima Health Board of Directors’ (Board) Finance and Audit Committee 
(FAC) was held on May 23, 2024, at CalOptima Health, 505 City Parkway West, Orange, California. The 
meeting was held in person and via Zoom webinar as allowed for under Assembly Bill 2449, which took 
effect after Governor Newsom ended the COVID-19 state of emergency on February 28, 2023. The 
meeting recording is available on CalOptima Health’s website under Past Meeting Materials. 

Chair Isabel Becerra called the meeting to order at 3:03 p.m., and Director Blair Contratto led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

ROLL CALL 
Members Present: Isabel Becerra, Chair; Blair Contratto; Clayton Corwin (All members participated in 

person) 

Members Absent: None 

Others Present: Michael Hunn, Chief Executive Officer; Nancy Huang, Chief Financial Officer; 
Richard Pitts, D.O., Ph.D., Chief Medical Officer; James Novello, Outside General 
Counsel, Kennaday Leavitt; Sharon Dwiers, Clerk of the Board 

The Clerk noted that staff would like to hear Agenda Item 7, Moss Adams 2024 Financial Audit Planning, 
prior to hearing the Reports/Discussion Items on the agenda. 

MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
1. Chief Financial Officer Report
Nancy Huang, Chief Financial Officer, provided two verbal updates for the meeting. The first update was 
to highlight changes from the Governor’s May Revise budget for Fiscal Year (FY) 2024-25 and the second 
update was related to year-end budget reconciliations.   

For the first update, Ms. Huang noted that Governor Newsom released his May Revise on May 10, 2024, 
with an estimated state budget deficit of $27.6 billion. The deficit amount is after the state made $17.3 
billion in early actions in April. The May revision proposed $8.2 billion in additional budget solutions. Ms. 
Huang highlighted a few key items from the May Revise that will impact the Medi-Cal program, which 
included reduced funding for Equity and Practice Transformation program payments to medical providers, 
elimination of the provider targeted rate increase (TRI) phase two that was originally scheduled to take 
effect January 1, 2025. The TRI phase two plan was to make additional investments in primary care, 
specialist hospital outpatient, emergency room and other services, but that program was eliminated in next 

Back to Agenda
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year’s budget. Ms. Huang also highlighted some of the positive aspects from the May Revise, which 
included maintaining funding for the provider TRI phase one that resulted in provider rate increases 
becoming effective in January 2024. In addition to TRI phase one, the state budget also had no change to 
the full scope Medi-Cal expansion for income eligible adults aged 26 to 49 regardless of their immigration 
status. In terms of next steps, Ms. Huang noted that the Legislature has started their budget hearings with 
the goal of passing the budget bill by June 15, 2024. 
 
For the second update, Ms. Huang provided a brief update on CalOptima Health’s year-end reconciliations 
as CalOptima Health approaches the end of FY 2023-24. She noted that the Department of Health Care 
Services (DHCS) made revisions to the managed care contract. In addition, the COVID-19 risk corridor 
provision was removed and replaced by population acuity adjustments for rate period after January 2021. 
Ms. Huang noted that staff is currently performing budget reconciliations due to these changes and will 
have the completed calculations included in the June closing financials. 
  
2.  Cybersecurity Update 
James Steele, Senior Director, Information Security, presented an update on CalOptima Health’s 
cybersecurity. He noted that CalOptima Health has experienced zero major cybersecurity incidents in the 
past three months. Mr. Steele reported that CalOptima Health has not received any new notifications of 
cybersecurity incidents in the past three months from its third-party vendors. Mr. Steele did note that 
CalOptima Health received a new notification from Change Healthcare that will be discussed later in the 
presentation. 
 
Mr. Steele also reviewed two recent cybersecurity news articles from the HIPAA Journal. For the first 
article, Verizon 2024 DBIR: 70% of Healthcare Data Breaches Caused by Insiders, Mr. Steele noted that 
the number of breaches in 2023 doubled from 2022, there were 1,220 confirmed healthcare data breaches 
that fell into the following categories: compromised credentials (38%), phishing (15%), and vulnerability 
exploit (14%). For the second article, BakerHostetler Report Identifies Healthcare Data Breach and 
Litigation Trends, Mr. Steele noted that healthcare accounted for 28% of data breach incidents, the average 
demand for these breaches was $3.5 million and the average size of a healthcare breach increased 200% 
from 2022 to 2023.   
 
Mr. Steele reported additional information regarding the Change Healthcare cybersecurity incident noting 
that Change Healthcare took down its system on February 21 due to the ransomware data breach event. 
Change Healthcare notified CalOptima Health that it recently found out that the ransomware attackers were 
in Change Healthcare’s system for nine days before they launched the ransomware attack. During this time, 
the attackers moved laterally through Change Healthcare’s network and exfiltrated four to six terabytes of 
data. Mr. Steele noted that is a lot of data and the impact of this event was very broad, possibly involving a 
third of all Americans. He added that thanks to the support of leadership and the Board, CalOptima Health 
had systems in place to protect its systems. While CalOptima Health is continuing the manual processes put 
in place due to the Change Healthcare breach, like issuing manual checks, CalOptima Health information 
technology systems are protected. Mr. Steele noted that every breach or compromise is an opportunity to 
improve the organization’s security posture.   
 
Mr. Steele also updated the committee on the various security projects that have been completed and 
provided details of the current projects in flight and timelines for those projects.      
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Mr. Steele and Ms. Kim provided additional details and responded to committee members’ questions and 
comments.   
 
INVESTMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE UPDATE 
3.  Treasurer’s Report  
Ms. Huang presented the Treasurer’s Report for the period of January 1, 2024, through March 31, 2024. 
The portfolio totaled approximately $3.3 billion as of March 31, 2023. Of the total portfolio amount, $2.7 
billion was in CalOptima Health’s operating account and $632 million was included in CalOptima Health’s 
Board-designated reserves. Meketa Investment Group Inc. (Meketa), CalOptima Health’s investment 
advisor, completed an independent review of the monthly investment reports. Meketa reported that all 
investments were compliant with Government Code section 53600 et seq. and with CalOptima Health’s 
Board-approved Annual Investment Policy during that period.   
 
Ms. Huang responded to committee members’ questions. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There were no requests for public comment. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR  
4. Approve the Minutes of the February 15, 2024 Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Health Board of 
Directors’ Finance and Audit Committee and Receive and File Minutes of the January 22, 2024 Regular 
Meeting of the CalOptima Health Board of Directors’ Investment Advisory Committee 
 

Action: On motion of Director Corwin, seconded and carried, the committee approved the 
Consent Calendar as presented. (Motion carried 3-0-0) 

 
INFORMATION ITEMS 
7. Moss Adams 2024 Financial Audit Planning 
Ms. Huang introduced independent auditor Moss Adams’ partner, Aparna Venkateswaran, who provided a 
brief overview of the audit planning process for FY 2023-24. 
 
Ms. Venkateswaran reviewed the significant audit areas that Moss Adams will be reviewing, which include 
medical claims liability and claims expense, capitation revenue and receivables, and amounts due to the 
State of California or DHCS. She also noted that this year the Moss Adams’ team will be closely reviewing 
the information technology controls given the Change Healthcare breach. Ms. Venkateswaran reviewed the 
timeline for this audit for the FY ending June 30, 2024, noting that Moss Adams’ staff met with CalOptima 
Health management in March to discuss the financial audit plan. In July, Moss Adams will return to start 
the final fieldwork procedures with the goal of wrapping up and presenting the audit results at the 
September 19, 2024, FAC meeting.     
 
Ms. Venkateswaran responded to committee members’ comments and questions. 
 
REPORTS/DISCUSSION ITEMS 
5. Recommend the Board of Directors Approve the CalOptima Health Fiscal Year 2024-25 
Operating Budget 
Ms. Huang reviewed the details of the FY 2024-25 operating budget for all lines of business and non-
operating items. She noted that CalOptima Health is proposing a $4.3 billion budget for next fiscal year, 
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which includes an average enrollment forecast of slightly over 900,000 and a total revenue projected to be 
$4.3 billion. Ms. Huang also noted that of that amount, about $4 billion will be spent on medical costs with 
CalOptima Health’s medical loss ratio (MLR) at 94.2%. The total administrative budget is forecasted at 
$250 million for FY 2024-25, with an administrative loss ratio budgeted at 5.8%. Overall, CalOptima 
Health is projecting a balanced operating budget for next fiscal year with a small surplus of less than .01%. 
Ms. Huang added that the Board, at its May meeting, approved a total of $526.2 million dollars 
commitment to support certain provider rate increases, and the estimated cost of those rates increases is 
estimated at $210.5 million. She added that the $210.5 million for provider rate increases will be funded by 
CalOptima Health’s reserves.   
 
Ms. Huang, Yunkyung Kim, Chief Operating Officer, and Richard Pitts, D.O., Ph.D., Chief Medical 
Officer, provided additional details and responded to committee members’ comments and questions. 
 
The committee thanked Ms. Huang and her team for their hard work in preparing the FY 2024-25 operating 
budget. 
 

Action: On motion of Director Contratto, seconded and carried, the committee 
recommended that the Board of Directors: 1.) Approve the CalOptima Health 
Fiscal Year 2024-25 Budget, as reflected in Attachment A: Fiscal Year 2024-25 
Operating Budget for All Lines of Business and Non-Operating Items; and 2.) 
Authorize the expenditures and appropriate the funds for the items listed in 
Attachment B: Administrative Budget Details and Attachment B1: Digital 
Transformation Administrative Budget Details, which shall be procured in 
accordance with CalOptima Health Policy GA.5002: Purchasing. (Motion carried 
3-0-0) 

 
6. Recommend the Board of Directors Approve the CalOptima Health Fiscal Year 2024-25 Routine 
Capital and Digital Transformation Year Three Capital Budgets 
Ms. Huang reviewed CalOptima Health’s capital budget for FY 2024-25, noting that there will be two 
capital budget packages for next fiscal year. One package for the routine capital budget, which includes 
information technology services (ITS) and office building improvements and another package for 
CalOptima Health’s digital transformation strategy (DTS) budget, which includes year-three and a new 
capital project request as well as an update on the DTS budget years one and two.  
 
Ms. Huang noted that for the routine capital budget update, staff is requesting a total of $8.3 million, which 
will cover the ITS budget items and the office building improvements. She noted that the ITS portion is 
approximately $1.2 million and approximately $7 million is for office building improvements. Ms. Huang 
added that the $7 million in improvements are for CalOptima Health’s 500 City Parkway West and 505 
City Parkway West buildings in Orange, California and its PACE building located at 13300 Garden Grove 
Boulevard in Garden Grove, California. 
 
For the DTS year three capital budget, Ms. Huang noted that CalOptima Health is requesting an additional 
$7.5 million for this budget. She reviewed the details of the DTS year three budget and reviewed a 
summary of the DTS years one and two budgets. She provided details of the dollars allocated, projects 
completed, projects that are in progress, and dollars spent.   
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Ms. Kim added that the vision and intent of CalOptima Health’s DTS has not changed; however, some of 
the timelines for the projects had to shift. Ms. Kim reported that she will be providing a full DTS update to 
the full Board at its June meeting. 
 
Ms. Huang and Ms. Kim provided additional details and responded to committee members’ comments and 
questions.  
 

Action: On motion of Director Corwin, seconded and carried, the committee recommended 
that the Board of Directors: 1.) Approve the CalOptima Health Fiscal Year 2024-
25 Routine Capital and Digital Transformation Year Three Capital Budgets; and 
2.) Authorize the expenditures and appropriate the funds for the following items, 
which shall be procured in accordance with policies approved by the Board of 
Directors: a.) Attachment A: Fiscal Year 2024-25 Routine Capital Budget by 
Project; b.) Attachment A1: Fiscal Year 2024-25 Digital Transformation Year 
Three Capital Budget by Project; and c.) Attachment A2: Update to the Digital 
Transformation Year One and Year Two Capital Budgets by Project. (Motion 
carried 3-0-0) 

 
The following items were accepted as presented. 
 
8. March 2024 Financial Summary 
 
9. Quarterly Operating and Capital Budget Update 
 
10. Update on CalOptima Health Business Insurance Renewal for Policy Year 2024-25 
Director Contratto commented that it is incredible that staff was able to get the business insurance renewal 
down by almost 7%. She noted that it is a tough market for business insurance.   
 
Ms. Huang responded that she would like to take the opportunity to thank her team for their hard work on 
the business insurance renewal. CalOptima Health was able to get a major reduction in its worker’s 
compensation insurance and even though it increased its cyber insurance coverage from $20 million to $30 
million, the increase in the premium was only $79,000. Ms. Huang added that this year was a successful 
renewal year and again thanked her staff and the broker CalOptima Health has been working with to get the 
insurance renewal to the point it is today.   
 
11. CalAIM Program Summary 
 
12. Quarterly Reports to the Finance and Audit Committee 

a. Net Asset Analysis 
b. Enrollment Trend Report 
c. Shared Risk Pool Performance Report 
d. Health Network Financial Report 

 
COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 
Committee members thanked staff for the work that went into preparing the FY 2024-25 budgets and the 
detail provided in the meeting materials and presentations. 
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ADJOURNMENT 
Hearing no further business, Chair Becerra adjourned the meeting at 4:49 p.m. 
 
 
 
   /s/   Sharon Dwiers 
Sharon Dwiers 
Clerk of the Board 
 
 
Approved: September 19, 2024 
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MINUTES 

 
MEETING OF THE  

CALOPTIMA HEALTH BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ 
INVESTMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 
April 22, 2024 

 
A meeting of the CalOptima Health Board of Directors’ (Board) Investment Advisory 
Committee (IAC) was held on Monday, April 22, 2024, at 505 City Parkway West, Orange, 
California. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Rodney Johnson called the meeting to order at 3:05 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Members Present: Chair Rodney Johnson, Rick Fulford, Nancy Huang, David Hutchison, 

James Meehan, Annie Tran 
 
 (All IAC members in attendance participated in person except David 

Hutchison, who participated remotely under Just Cause, using his first 
use under Just Cause as permitted by AB 2449) 

 
Members Absent: Colleen Clark 
 
Others Present: Hannah Schriner and Ian Schirato, Meketa Investment Group; Asha 

Joshi, Madison Thrane, and Mike Hannallah, Payden & Rygel; Scott 
Pavlak, Erin Klepper and Tani Fukui, MetLife Investment Management; 
Michael Hunn, Chief Executive Officer; Jason Kaing, Controller; Faye 
Heidari, Senior Accountant; Pamela Reichardt, Executive Assistant. 

 
MINUTES 
 
Approve Minutes of the January 22, 2024, Meeting of the CalOptima Health Board of 
Directors’ Investment Advisory Committee 
 

Action: On motion of Member Tran, seconded and carried, the Minutes of the 
January 22, 2024, Meeting of the CalOptima Health Board of 
Directors’ Investment Advisory Committee were approved as presented. 
(Motion carried 6-0-0, Member Clark absent) 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
There were no requests for public comment. 
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MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
 
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Report 
CEO Michael Hunn gave an update on CalOptima Health’s current membership and Medi-Cal 
redetermination activities. 
 
Mr. Hunn reported that CalOptima Health plans to implement the State’s Targeted Provider 
Rate Increases (TRI) in July 2024. This will give our provider networks enough time to work 
with their subdelegates and their agreements. CalOptima Health continues to operate with a 
very low administrative loss ratio (ALR). 
 
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Report 
CFO Nancy Huang provided an update on the state budget. Current projections indicate that the 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2024-25 budget deficit is between $38 billion to $73 billion. Ms. Huang 
reported that staff continue to monitor the state budget very closely on any program changes 
that may impact healthcare. 
 
CalOptima Health will continue to support our members and providers and build infrastructure 
and capacity. Staff will bring the FY 2024-25 operating, capital and digital transformation 
services budgets to the June Board meeting for final approval. Some of the provider rate 
increases will be funded by using unallocated reserves. 
 
After reviewing the current Board-designated reserve policy, staff plans to recommend some 
modifications to the Finance and Audit Committee and then subsequently to the full Board at 
the May meeting. After the Board takes action and the FY 2024-25 budgets are finalized, Ms. 
Huang will provide an update at the July IAC meeting. 
 
Financial Update 
Jason Kaing, Controller, reported on CalOptima Health’s financial highlights as of February 
29, 2024. CalOptima Health had 934,373 members enrolled, favorable to budget by 64,562 
members. The operating surplus was $18.5 million for the month, with $10.9 million in 
operating margin and $7.6 million from non-operating income. Year-to-date (YTD), the 
operating surplus was $155.1 million, with $68.5 million in operating margin, and $86.6 
million from non-operating income. The YTD medical loss ratio (MLR) was 93.3% and the 
administrative loss ratio (ALR) was 4.6%. 
 
For the month of February, current assets were $3.6 billion, and current liabilities were $2.5 
billion, resulting in a current ratio of 1.5. The Board-designated reserves were $629.7 million, 
resulting in a current reserve level of 1.85. 
 
Presentation by Meketa Investment Group 
Hannah Schriner, Vice President, reported on the total fund, cash flow, performance attribution, 
and custom peer group results for the investment managers and addressed the overall market 
environment. Ms. Schriner reported that the portion of the investment portfolio managed by 
Meketa Investment Group was in compliance with CalOptima Health’s Annual Investment 
Policy ending April 30, 2024. 
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Ian Schirato, Investment Analyst, reported on fixed income, cash flow, custom peer group 
results and total fund performance. 
 
Presentation by MetLife Investment Management 
Scott Pavlak, Managing Director and Head of Short Duration gave a market overview update 
and reported on Federal Reserve projections, inflation, market projections, and the portfolio 
performance attribution and strategy. 
 
Tani Fukui, Assistant Vice President, Global Economics and Market Strategy, reported on 
federal inflation and price increases. Ms. Fukui also reported on market trends and 
unemployment rates in California. 
 
Erin Klepper, Associate Director, gave a firm update, reported on the Tier One and Tier Two 
accounts, and discussed the yield curve. Ms. Klepper noted that the portion of the investment 
portfolio managed by MetLife Investment Management was in compliance with CalOptima 
Health’s Annual Investment Policy ending April 30, 2024. 
 
Presentation by Payden & Rygel 
Asha Joshi, Managing Director, provided a firm update, a summary on portfolio performance, 
and a report on macroeconomics. She provided an update on the state of the market and 
discussed overall themes within the United States economy. Ms. Joshi reported on fund 
performance and performance attribution. 
 
Mike Hannallah, Banking Analyst, provided an economic update and current themes within the 
national market. 
 
Madison Thrane, Senior Client Portfolio Analyst, reported on the characteristics, attribution 
and performance of the Tier One and Tier Two accounts. Ms. Thrane noted that the portion of 
the investment portfolio managed by Payden & Rygel was in compliance with CalOptima 
Health’s Annual Investment Policy ending April 30, 2024. 
 
Committee Member Comments 
None 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Hearing no further business, Acting Chair Johnson adjourned the meeting at 4:40 p.m. 
 
 
   /s/   Pamela Reichardt 
Pamela Reichardt 
Executive Assistant 
 
Approved:  July 22, 2024 
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CALOPTIMA HEALTH BOARD ACTION AGENDA REFERRAL 
 

Action To Be Taken September 19, 2024 
Meeting of the CalOptima Health Board of Directors’ 

Finance and Audit Committee 
 

Consent Calendar 
5. Recommend Ratification of Appointment to the CalOptima Health Board of Directors’ 

Investment Advisory Committee 
 
Contact 
Nancy Huang, Chief Financial Officer, (657) 235-6935 
 
Recommended Actions 
Recommend ratification of Board appointment of James Meehan to the Board of Directors’ 
Investment Advisory Committee for a two-year term, beginning October 6, 2022. 
 
Background 
At a Special Meeting of the CalOptima Health Board of Directors (Board) held on September 10, 
1996, the Board authorized the creation of the CalOptima Health Investment Advisory Committee 
(IAC), established qualifications for committee members, and directed staff to proceed with the 
recruitment of the volunteer members of the Committee. 
 
When creating the IAC, the Board specified that the Committee would consist of five (5) members; 
one (1) member would automatically serve by virtue of his or her position as CalOptima Health’s 
Chief Financial Officer. The remaining four (4) members would be Orange County residents who 
possess experience in one (1) or more of the following areas: investment banking, investment 
brokerage and sales, investment management, financial management and planning, commercial 
banking, or financial accounting. 
 
At the September 5, 2000, meeting, the Board approved expanding the composition of the IAC from 
five (5) members to seven (7) members in order to have more diverse opinions and backgrounds to 
advise CalOptima Health on its investment activities. 
 
Discussion 
After the April 25, 2022, meeting, an IAC Nominations Ad Hoc Committee (Ad Hoc Committee) 
was formed to review and recommend a candidate for a vacant seat on the IAC. The Ad Hoc 
Committee was comprised of IAC members David Hutchison, Rodney Johnson, Nancy Huang, and 
CalOptima Health staff. The recruitment process included asking for referrals from the current Board, 
IAC members, and CalOptima Health senior management. Staff received four (4) applications from 
interested candidates and submitted them to the Ad Hoc Committee for their review and 
recommendation. Prior to conducting virtual interviews in mid-July 2022, the Ad Hoc Committee 
evaluated all applications. The IAC considered the recommendation from Ad Hoc Committee at its 
July 25, 2022, meeting.  
 
James Meehan is a current member of the Investment Committee of the Pacific Gas and Electric 
Company, which provides independent oversight and reporting of $5 billion dollars in trust fund 
assets. Mr. Meehan has over forty (40) years of experience in the investment industry, with positions 
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as Managing Director/Partner at Pacific Alternative Asset Management Company, Senior Vice 
President at PIMCO, and President of JPM Financial Group. Mr. Meehan has a B.A. in Economics 
from the University of Notre Dame, an M.B.A. in Finance and Accounting from the University of 
San Diego and holds his FINRA Series 3, 6, 22, and 63 Licenses. 
 
Mr. Meehan will provide leadership and service to CalOptima Health’s investment oversight through 
his participation as an IAC member. He also has proven leadership and expertise in finance and 
accounting. 
 
Due to an internal procedural error, staff inadvertently excluded this item from the subsequent 
Finance and Audit Committee and Board meeting agendas after the IAC approved the 
recommendation on July 25, 2022. Mr. Meehan has been serving on the IAC since October 6, 2022, 
and staff requests that the appointment of Mr. Meehan to the IAC be ratified. Since then, staff have 
adopted stronger oversight procedures to ensure agenda items move forward to subsequent meetings 
appropriately. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
There is no fiscal impact. An individual appointed to the IAC assists CalOptima Health in suggesting 
updates to and ensuring compliance with CalOptima Health’s Board-approved Annual Investment 
Policy and monitors the performance of CalOptima Health’s investments, investment advisory, and 
investment managers. 
 
Rationale for Recommendation 
The individual recommended for CalOptima Health’s IAC has extensive experience that meets or 
exceeds the specified qualifications for membership on the IAC. 
 
Concurrence 
Troy R. Szabo, Outside Counsel, Kennaday Leavitt 
Board of Directors’ Investment Advisory Committee 
 
Attachment 
None 
 
 
 
   /s/   Michael Hunn  09/12/2024 
Authorized Signature      Date 
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Action To Be Taken September 19, 2024 
Meeting of the CalOptima Health Board of Directors’ 

Finance and Audit Committee 
 
Consent Calendar 
6. Recommend Ratification of Reappointment and Committee Chair Appointment to the 

CalOptima Health Board of Directors’ Investment Advisory Committee 
 
Contact 
Nancy Huang, Chief Financial Officer, (657) 235-6935 
 
Recommended Actions 
Recommend ratification of Rodney Johnson for the following: 

1. Reappointment to the Board of Directors’ Investment Advisory Committee for an amended 
two-year term effective October 6, 2022; and 

2. Appointment to serve as Chair of the IAC for a two-year term, beginning October 6, 2022, 
and continuing until October 5, 2024, or until a successor is appointed. 

 
Background 
At a Special Meeting of the CalOptima Health Board of Directors (Board) held on September 10, 
1996, the Board authorized the creation of the CalOptima Health Investment Advisory Committee 
(IAC), established qualifications for committee members, and directed staff to proceed with the 
recruitment of the volunteer members of the Committee. 
 
When creating the IAC, the Board specified that the Committee would consist of five (5) members; 
one (1) member would automatically serve by virtue of his or her position as CalOptima Health’s 
Chief Financial Officer. The remaining four (4) members would be Orange County residents who 
possess experience in one (1) or more of the following areas: investment banking, investment 
brokerage and sales, investment management, financial management and planning, commercial 
banking, or financial accounting. 
 
At the September 5, 2000, meeting, the Board approved expanding the composition of the IAC from 
five (5) members to seven (7) members in order to have more diverse opinions and backgrounds to 
advise CalOptima Health on its investment activities. 
 
Discussion 
The candidate recommended for reappointment, Rodney Johnson, has consistently provided 
leadership and service to CalOptima Health through his long-time participation as an IAC member. 
 
Mr. Johnson has served as a member of the IAC since June 6, 2013. Mr. Johnson has extensive 
experience working with public agencies. He is currently the Senior Director, Finance-Treasury for 
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation. He previously worked as the Deputy Treasurer of 
the Orange County Transportation Authority. He has been responsible for daily analysis of short-term 
and long-term cash flow needs, executing investments, and overseeing five (5) different investment 
management firms. Prior to that, Mr. Johnson held positions at BNY Western Trust Company, Fund 
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Services Associates, Inc., and Muni Financial Services, Inc. Mr. Johnson has a M.P.A. from 
California State University, Long Beach and a B.A. from California State University, Fullerton.  
 
Mr. Johnson received nominations from current IAC members to serve as the next Chair of the IAC. 
 
The IAC approved to recommend Mr. Johnson for reappointment to the IAC and appointment as 
Chair of the IAC at the July 25, 2022, meeting. However, due to an internal procedural error, staff 
inadvertently excluded this item from the subsequent Finance and Audit Committee and Board 
meeting agendas after it received IAC approval. Mr. Johnson has continued to serve on the IAC and 
is currently serving as the Chair of the IAC. Staff recommend that Mr. Johnson’s reappointment to 
the IAC and appointment as IAC Chair be ratified. Since then, staff have adopted stronger oversight 
procedures to ensure agenda items move forward to subsequent meetings appropriately. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
There is no fiscal impact. An individual appointed to the IAC assists CalOptima Health in suggesting 
updates to and ensuring compliance with CalOptima Health’s Board-approved Annual Investment 
Policy, and monitors the performance of CalOptima Health’s investments, investment advisor and 
investment managers. 
 
Rationale for Recommendation 
The individual recommended for CalOptima Health’s IAC has extensive experience that meets or 
exceeds the specified qualifications for membership on the IAC. In addition, the candidate has long 
provided outstanding service as a member of the IAC. 
 
Concurrence 
Troy R. Szabo, Outside Counsel Kennaday Leavitt 
Board of Directors’ Investment Advisory Committee 
 
Attachment 
None 
 
 
 
   /s/   Michael Hunn  09/12/2024 
Authorized Signature     Date 
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Action To Be Taken September 19, 2024 
Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Health Board of Directors' 

Finance and Audit Committee 
 
Report Item 
7. Recommend that the Board of Directors Accept, Receive, and File the Fiscal Year  

2023-24 CalOptima Health Audited Financial Statements 
 
Contact 
Nancy Huang, Chief Financial Officer (657) 235-6935 
 
Recommended Action 
Recommend that the CalOptima Health Board of Directors accept, receive, and file the fiscal year 2023-
24 CalOptima Health consolidated audited financial statements as submitted by independent auditors 
Moss Adams, LLP.  
 
Background 
CalOptima Health has contracted with financial auditors Moss Adams, LLP (Moss Adams) to complete 
CalOptima Health’s annual financial audit. At the May 23, 2024, meeting of the CalOptima Health 
Finance and Audit Committee, Moss Adams presented the Fiscal Year (FY) 2023-24 Audit Plan. The 
plan included performing the mandatory annual consolidated financial statement audit and review of 
relevant internal controls and compliance for CalOptima Health’s major programs. 
 
Discussion 
Moss Adams conducted the interim audit beginning May 21, 2024, and the year-end audit during July to 
August 2024. This year’s significant audit areas that Moss Adams reviewed included: 

 
• Medical claims liability and claims expense; 
• Capitation revenue and receivables; and 
• Amounts due to the State of California or the California Department of Health Care Services. 

 
Moss Adams auditors conducted their audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAS), as well as Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Results from CalOptima Health’s FY 2023-24 audit were positive. Moss Adams: 
 

• Made no changes in CalOptima Health’s approach to applying critical accounting policies; 
• Did not report any significant difficulties during the audit; and 
• Identified no material misstatements nor control deficiencies. 

 
As such, management recommends that the Finance and Audit Committee recommend that the CalOptima 
Health Board of Directors accept the CalOptima Health FY 2023-24 audited financial statements, as 
presented. 

Fiscal Impact 
There is no fiscal impact related to this recommended action. 
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Concurrence 
Troy R. Szabo, Outside General Counsel, Kennaday Leavitt 

Attachments 
1. FY 2023-24 CalOptima Health Audited Financial Statements
2. Presentation by Moss Adams, LLP

   /s/   Michael Hunn 09/12/2024 
Authorized Signature     Date 
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The intent of management’s discussion and analysis of CalOptima Health’s financial performance is to 
provide readers with an overview of the agency’s financial activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2024, 2023, and 2022. Readers should review this summation in conjunction with CalOptima Health’s 
financial statements and accompanying notes to the financial statements to enhance their understanding 
of CalOptima Health’s financial performance. 

 
Key Operating Indicators 

 
The table below compares key operating indicators for CalOptima Health for the fiscal years ended 
June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022: 

Key Operating Indicators 2024 2023 2022 

Members (at end of fiscal period) 
Medi-Cal program 901,303  970,590  897,134 
OneCare 17,253  17,687  2,668 
OneCare Connect -  -  14,415 
PACE 496  439  429 

Average member months 
Medi-Cal program 

 
932,770 

 
 

940,893 

 
 

859,290 
OneCare 17,488  17,443  2,342 
OneCare Connect -  14,360  14,682 
PACE 457  434  417 

Operating revenues (in millions) 
Operating expenses (in millions) 

Medical expenses 

$ 5,372 
 

4,510 

 $ 4,239 
 

3,862 

 $ 4,227 
 

3,946 
Administrative expenses 230  192  150 

 
Operating income (in millions) 

 
$ 633 

  
$ 184 

  
$ 131 

 
 
Operating revenues PMPM (per member per month) 
Operating expenses PMPM 

Medical expenses PMPM 

 
 
$ 471 

 
395 

  
 
$ 369 

 
336 

  
 
$ 402 

 
375 

Administrative expenses PMPM 20  17  14 
 

Operating income PMPM 
 

$ 56 
  

$ 16 
  

$ 13 
 
Medical loss ratio 

 
84% 

  
91% 

  
93% 

Administrative expenses ratio 4.3%  4.5%  3.6% 

Premium tax revenue and expenses not included above 
Operating revenues (in millions) 

 
$ 658 

 
 

$ 90 

 
 

$ 168 
Administrative expenses (in millions) $ 658  $ 92  $ 166 
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Overview of the Financial Statements 
 

This annual report consists of financial statements and notes to those statements, which reflect 
CalOptima Health’s financial position as of June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022, and the results of its 
operations for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022. The financial statements of 
CalOptima Health, including the statements of net position, statements of revenues, expenses, and 
changes in net position, and statements of cash flows, represent the accounts and transactions of the 
five (5) lines of business – Medi-Cal, OneCare, OneCare Connect, Program of All-Inclusive Care for the 
Elderly (PACE), and Multipurpose Senior Services Program (MSSP). 

 
• The statements of net position include all of CalOptima Health’s assets, deferred outflows of 

resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, using the accrual basis of accounting, as 
well as an indication about which assets and deferred outflows of resources are utilized to fund 
obligations to providers and which are restricted as a matter of the CalOptima Health Board of 
Directors (Board) policy. 

 
• The statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position present the results of 

operating activities during the fiscal years and the resulting increase or decrease in net position. 
 

• The statements of cash flows report the net cash provided by or used in operating activities, as well 
as other sources and uses of cash from investing, capital, and related financing activities. 

 
The following discussion and analysis addresses CalOptima Health’s overall program activities. 
CalOptima Health’s Medi-Cal program accounted for 91.5 percent, 89.8 percent, and 90.0 percent of its 
annual revenues during fiscal years 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively. CalOptima Health’s OneCare 
program accounted for 7.6 percent, 5.1 percent, and 0.9 percent of its annual revenues during fiscal 
years 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively. CalOptima Health’s OneCare Connect program accounted for 
0.0 percent, 4.1 percent, and 8.1 percent of its annual revenues during fiscal years 2024, 2023, and 2022, 
respectively. All other programs in aggregate accounted for 0.9 percent, 1.1 percent, and 1.0 percent of 
CalOptima Health’s annual revenues during fiscal years 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively. 

 
During Fiscal Year 2024, new laws and State contract changes impacted CalOptima Health’s 
membership and financial statements. Beginning January 1, 2024, a new law in California provides full- 
scope Medi-Cal eligibility to adults ages 26 through 49, regardless of immigration status. The enrollment 
increase from Adult Expansion program was offset by the transition of Kaiser members to its own Medi- 
Cal contract. In its new 2024 contract, the State of California (the State) also required CalOptima Health 
to commit a percentage of its net position towards investments into the community and an additional 
percentage if CalOptima Health did not meet specified quality measures established by the State referred 
to as Community Reinvestment and Quality Achievement. 

 
2024 and 2023 Financial Highlights 

 
As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, total assets and deferred outflows of resources were approximately 
$4,182.3 million and $3,624.3 million, respectively, and exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources by approximately $2,445.1 million and $1,670.0 million, respectively. 
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increased by approximately $250.5 million, or 17.6 percent, during fiscal year 2023. 
 

 
 

Financial Position     

 
 

Net position increased by approximately $775.1 million, or 46.4 percent, during fiscal year 2024 and 
 
 
 
 

 
 

ASSETS  

Current assets $ 2,871,751  $ 2,937,296  $ (65,545)  -2.2% 
Board-designated assets and restricted cash 1,138,063  576,852  561,211  97.3% 
Capital assets, net 77,270  66,189  11,081  16.7% 
Intangible right-to-use subscription asset 19,291  18,018  1,273  100.0% 

 
Total assets 

 
4,106,375 

  
3,598,355 

  
508,020 

  
14.1% 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 75,899  25,969  49,930  192.3% 
 

Total assets and deferred outflows 
of resources 

 
 
$ 

 
 

4,182,274 

 
 

$ 

 
 

3,624,324 

 
 

$ 

 
 

557,950 

 
 

15.4% 
 
LIABILITIES 

          

Current liabilities $ 1,547,922  $ 1,871,529  $ (323,607)  -17.3% 
Other liabilities 170,028  59,440  110,588  186.0% 
Subscription liability, net of current portion 10,596  12,173  (1,577)  100.0% 

 
Total liabilities 

 
1,728,546 

  
1,943,142 

  
(214,596) 

  
-11.0% 

 
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

 
8,646 

  
11,176 

  
(2,530) 

  
-22.6% 

 
NET POSITION 

Net investment in capital assets 

 
 

78,830 

  
 

66,134 

  
 

12,696 

  
 

19.2% 
Restricted by legislative authority 127,853  107,969  19,884  18.4% 
Unrestricted 2,238,399  1,495,903  742,496  49.6% 

 
Total net position 

 
2,445,082 

  
1,670,006 

  
775,076 

  
46.4% 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, and net position 

 
 
$ 4,182,274 

  
 
$ 3,624,324 

  
 
$ 557,950 

  
 

15.4% 

 
 
 

Current assets decreased $65.5 million from $2,937.3 million in 2023 to $2,871.8 million in 2024, primarily 
in cash and investments. Current liabilities decreased $323.6 million from $1,871.5 million in 2023 to 
$1,547.9 million in 2024. This was driven primarily from the release of accrued payables due to the State 
for the COVID-19 risk corridor post the bridge period (July 1, 2019 through December 31, 2020), the 
Research and Prevention Tobacco Tax Act of 2016 Proposition 56) risk corridors for the period of 
January 1, 2021 through June 30, 2024, the Enhanced Care Management (ECM) risk corridor for the 
period of January 1, 2022 through June 30, 2024, Unsatisfactory Immigration Status (UIS) risk corridor for 
the period January 1, 2024 through June 30, 2024. In April 2024, the State finalized the calendar year 
2021 Proposition 56 risk corridor and a payment was remitted to the State in May 2024 in the amount of 
$47.2 million. During fiscal year 2024, CalOptima Health submitted supplemental data requests to the 
State for the bridge period COVID-19 risk corridor and calendar year 2022 ECM risk corridor. The final 
report has not been received as of this writing. 
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Other liabilities increased $110.6 million from $59.4 million in 2023 to $170 million in 2024 driven primarily 
by the State’s requirement for CalOptima Health to commit a percentage of net position towards 
investments into the community and an additional percentage if CalOptima Health does not meet State 
specified quality measures referred to as Community Reinvestment and Quality Achievement. 

 
Statutory and Board-designated assets and restricted cash increased by $561.2 million and decreased by 
$34.6 million in fiscal years 2024 and 2023, respectively, with the 2024 increase primarily driven by policy 
updates approved by the Board in May 2024 which updated the Board-designated reserve level from 
between 1.4 months to 2.0 months of consolidated capitation revenue to between 2.5 months to 3.0 
months of consolidated capitation revenue. The Board also established a separate statutory designated 
reserve to meet the minimum Tangible Net Equity (TNE) Requirement. In addition to the existing Board- 
designated reserve, the Board designated $100.0 million in total funding for homeless health initiatives 
(HHI) on April 4, 2019. On September 1, 2022, the Board approved a reallocation of the remaining $40.1 
million from HHI to the state Housing and Homelessness Incentive Program (HHIP) initiatives. As of 
June 30, 2024, the total Board designated funding has been allocated. 

 
The Board’s policy augmented the Tier One investment portfolio as Board-designated reserves to provide 
a desired level of funds between 2.5 months and 3.0 months of consolidated capitation revenue to meet 
future contingencies. CalOptima Health’s reserve level of Tier One investment portfolios as of June 30, 
2024, was at 2.82 times the monthly average consolidated capitation revenue. CalOptima Health’s Tier 
Two investment portfolios are statutory designated reserves to meet the TNE requirements. The desired 
level is between 1.0 to 1.10 times the requirement and CalOptima Health’s 2024 reserves level stands at 
1.03 times the TNE. CalOptima Health’s total reserve level as of June 30, 2023, was at 1.78 times the 
monthly average consolidated capitation revenue. 

 
CalOptima Health is also required to maintain a $300,000 restricted deposit as a part of the Knox-Keene 
Health Care Service Plan Act of 1975 (the Act). 

 
2023 and 2022 Financial Highlights 

 
As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, total assets and deferred outflows of resources were approximately 
$3,624.3 million and $3,025.6 million, respectively, and exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources by approximately $1,670.0 million and $1,419.5 million, respectively. 
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increased by approximately $110.7 million, or 8.5 percent, during fiscal year 2022. 
 

 
 

Financial Position     

 
 

Net position increased by approximately $250.5 million, or 17.6 percent, during fiscal year 2023 and 
 
 
 
 

 
 

ASSETS  

Current assets $ 2,937,296  $ 2,337,407  $ 599,889  25.7% 
Board-designated assets and restricted cash 576,852  611,428  (34,576)  -5.7% 
Capital assets, net 66,189  66,864  (675)  -1.0% 
Intangible right-to-use subscription asset 18,018  18,018  -  0.0% 

 
Total assets 

 
3,598,355 

  
2,525,826 

  
1,072,529 

  
42.5% 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 25,969  9,626  16,343  169.8% 
 

Total assets and deferred outflows 
of resources 

 
 
$ 

 
 

3,624,324 

 
 

$ 

 
 

3,025,586 

 
 

$ 

 
 

598,738 

 
 

19.8% 
 
LIABILITIES 

          

Current liabilities $ 1,871,529  $ 1,551,389  $ 320,140  20.6% 
Other liabilities 59,440  22,756  36,684  161.2% 
Subscription liability, net of current portion 12,173  141  12,032  0.0% 

 
Total liabilities 

 
1,943,142 

  
1,574,286 

  
368,856 

  
23.4% 

 
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

 
11,176 

  
31,790 

  
(20,614) 

  
-64.8% 

 
NET POSITION 

Net investment in capital assets 

 
 

66,134 

  
 

66,772 

  
 

(638) 

  
 

-1.0% 
Restricted by legislative authority 107,969  107,346  623  0.6% 
Unrestricted 1,495,903  1,245,392  250,511  20.1% 

 
Total net position 

 
1,670,006 

  
1,419,510 

  
250,496 

  
17.6% 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, and net position 

 
 
$ 3,624,324 

  
 
$ 3,025,586 

  
 
$ 598,738 

  
 

19.8% 

 
Current assets increased $599.9 million from $2,337.4 million in 2022 to $2,937.3 million in 2023, 
primarily in cash and investments. Cash and investments had a net increase of $575.8 million primarily 
from increased enrollment and premium capitation rates. Current liabilities increased $320.1 million from 
$1,551.4 million in 2022 to $1,871.5 million in 2023 driven primarily by payables due to the State for the 
COVID-19 risk corridor for the period of July 1, 2019 through April 30, 2023, the Proposition 56 risk 
corridors for the period of January 1, 2021 through June 30, 2023, and the ECM risk corridor for the 
period of January 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023. In May 2023, the State finalized the bridge period 
(July 1, 2019 through December 31, 2020) Proposition 56 risk corridor and a payment was remitted to the 
State in June 2023 in the amount of $74.5 million. 

 
Board-designated assets and restricted cash decreased by $34.6 million and increased by $3.6 million in 
fiscal years 2023 and 2022, respectively, primarily driven by changes to the portfolio’s valuation. In 
addition to the existing Board-designated reserve, the Board designated $100.0 million in total funding for 
HHI on April 4, 2019. On September 1, 2022, the Board approved a reallocation of the remaining $40.1 
million from HHI to the state HHIP initiatives. As of June 30, 2023, the balance of the HHI reserve was 
$21.0 million. 
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The Board’s policy is to augment the rest of the Board-designated assets to provide a desired level of 
funds between 1.4 months and 2.0 months in consolidated capitation revenue to meet future 
contingencies. CalOptima Health’s reserve level of Tier One and Tier Two investment portfolios as of 
June 30, 2023 and 2022, is at 1.78 and 1.75 times the monthly average consolidated capitation revenue, 
respectively. 

 
CalOptima Health is also required to maintain a $300,000 restricted deposit as a part of the Act. 

 
2024 and 2023 Results of Operations 

 
CalOptima Health’s fiscal year 2024 operating and non-operating income resulted in a $775.1 million 
increase in net position, $524.6 million more compared to a $250.5 million increase in fiscal year 2023. 
The following table reflects the changes in revenues and expenses for 2024 compared to 2023: 

 
Table 2a: Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for 

Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

 

Change from 2023 
Results of Operations  2024  2023  Amount  Percentage 

 
PREMIUM REVENUES 

  
$ 5,372,964 

  
$ 4,239,833 

  
$ 1,133,131 

  
26.7% 

 
Total operating revenues 

  
5,372,964 

  
4,239,833 

  
1,133,131 

  
26.7% 

 
MEDICAL EXPENSES 

  
4,509,912 

  
3,862,196 

  
647,716 

  
16.8% 

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES  229,511  192,339  37,172  19.3% 
 

Total operating expenses 
  

4,739,423 
  

4,054,535 
  

684,888 
  

16.9% 
 
OPERATING INCOME 

  
633,541 

  
185,298 

  
448,243 

  
241.9% 

NONOPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES  141,535  65,198  76,337  117.1% 
 

Increase in net position 
  

775,076 
  

250,496 
  

524,580 
  

209.4% 

NET POSITION, beginning of year  1,670,006  1,419,510  250,496  17.6% 
 
NET POSITION, end of year 

  
$ 2,445,082 

  
$ 1,670,006 

  
$ 775,076 

  
46.4% 

 
 

2024 and 2023 Operating Revenues 
 

The increase in operating revenues of $1,133.1 million in fiscal year 2024 is attributable to increased 
premium capitation rates, newly eligible UIS members, and $93.0 million in revenue from various State 
programs such as HHIP, Student Behavioral Health Incentive Program (SBHIP), and California 
Advancing and Innovating Medi-Cal (CalAIM) Incentive Payment Program (IPP). The increase in 
operating revenue is also driven by a $646.8 million release in estimated payables to the State due to 
contract updates impacting the COVID-19 risk corridor settlement requirement and offset by net increase 
in payables to the State of $47.3 million for the Proposition 56, UIS, and ECM risk corridors. 
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2024 and 2023 Medical Expenses 
 

Provider capitation, comprised of capitation payments to CalOptima Health’s contracted health networks, 
increased by 11.3 percent from fiscal year 2023 to fiscal year 2024. Capitated member enrollment 
accounted for approximately 79.0 percent of CalOptima Health’s enrollment, averaging 672,026 members 
during fiscal year 2024 and approximately 73.4 percent of CalOptima Health’s enrollment, averaging 
690,882 members during fiscal year 2023. Included in the capitated environment are 187,207 or 28.5 
percent and 232,786 or 33.7 percent members in a shared risk network for fiscal years 2024 and 2023, 
respectively. Shared risk networks receive capitation for professional services and are claims-based for 
hospital services. 

 
Provider capitation expenses totaled $1,285.7 million in fiscal year 2024, compared to $1,155.2 million in 
fiscal year 2023. The increase reflects rate increases with the contracted health networks. 

 
Claims expenses to providers and facilities, including long-term care (LTC) services, increased by 15.4 
percent from fiscal year 2023 to fiscal year 2024 due to increased utilization. 

 
As of June 30, 2024, in accordance with State contracts, the balance of the Community Reinvestment 
was estimated at $51.8 million and the balance of the Quality Achievement was estimated at $55.6 
million. 

 
In addition to the items mentioned above, total quality assurance fee (QAF) payments received and 
passed through to hospitals increased from $0.0 to $290.7 million from fiscal year 2023 to fiscal year 
2024 due to the State’s timing for QAF payments. These receipts and payments are not included in the 
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 

 
2024 and 2023 Administrative Expenses 

 
Total administrative expenses were $229.5 million in 2024 compared to $192.3 million in 2023. Overall 
administrative expenses increased by 19.3 percent or $37.2 million, primarily due to an increase in filled 
positions, cost of living, and other salary adjustments. In fiscal years 2024 and 2023, CalOptima Health’s 
administrative expenses were 4.3 percent and 4.5 percent of total operating revenues, respectively. 

 
2024 and 2023 Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses 

 
Non-operating revenue and expenses increased by $76.3 million from income of $65.2 million in fiscal 
year 2023 to income of $141.5 million in fiscal year 2024. The increase is driven primarily by favorable 
investment performance in fiscal year 2024 of $175.9 million, an increase of $85.5 million from net 
investment income of $90.4 million in fiscal year 2023. The amount is offset by an increase in grant 
expenses of $6.5 million, from $25.5 million in fiscal year 2023 to $32.0 million in fiscal year 2024. 

 
The Board and management have been accelerating efforts to improve access and quality of health care 
for the most vulnerable residents in Orange County. Those efforts included increasing the number of 
community investment grants released in the recent fiscal years. 
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2023 and 2022 Results of Operations 
 

CalOptima Health’s fiscal year 2023 operating and non-operating income resulted in a $250.5 million 
increase in net position, $139.8 million more compared to a $110.7 million increase in fiscal year 2022. 
The following table reflects the changes in revenues and expenses for 2023 compared to 2022: 

 
Table 2b: Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for 

Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Change from 2022 
Results of Operations  2023  2022  Amount  Percentage 

 
PREMIUM REVENUES 

  
$ 4,239,833 

  
$ 4,227,259 

  
$ 12,574 

  
0.3% 

 
Total operating revenues 

  
4,239,833 

  
4,227,259 

  
12,574 

  
0.3% 

 
MEDICAL EXPENSES 

  
3,862,196 

  
3,945,849 

  
(83,653) 

  
-2.1% 

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES  192,339  150,443  41,896  27.8% 

 
Total operating expenses 

  
4,054,535 

  
4,096,292 

  
(41,757) 

  
-1.0% 

 
OPERATING INCOME 

  
185,298 

  
130,967 

  
54,331 

  
41.5% 

NONOPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES  65,198  (20,237)  85,435  -422.2% 

 
Increase in net position 

  
250,496 

  
110,730 

  
139,766 

  
126.2% 

NET POSITION, beginning of year  1,419,510  1,308,781  110,729  8.5% 
 
NET POSITION, end of year 

  
$ 1,670,006 

  
$ 1,419,511 

  
$ 250,495 

  
17.6% 

 
 

2023 and 2022 Operating Revenues 
 

The increase in operating revenues of $12.6 million in fiscal year 2023 is primarily attributable to an 
increase in enrollment of 11.0 percent which resulted in additional revenue of $216.4 million and $50.0 
million in revenue from programs, such as the HHIP, CalAIM IPP, and SBHIP. The increase in revenue is 
offset by net additional payables due to the State for the COVID-19, Proposition 56, and ECM risk 
corridor estimates. 

 
2023 and 2022 Medical Expenses 

 
Provider capitation, comprised of capitation payments to CalOptima Health’s contracted health networks, 
decreased by 8.4 percent from fiscal year 2022 to fiscal year 2023. Capitated member enrollment 
accounted for approximately 73.4 percent of CalOptima Health’s enrollment, averaging 690,882 members 
during fiscal year 2023 and approximately 75.0 percent of CalOptima Health’s enrollment, averaging 
644,579 members during fiscal year 2022. Included in the capitated environment are 232,786 or 33.7 
percent and 212,078 or 32.9 percent members in a shared risk network for fiscal years 2023 and 2022, 
respectively. Shared risk networks receive capitation for professional services and are claims-based for 
hospital services. 
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Provider capitation expenses totaled $1,155.2 million in fiscal year 2023, compared to $1,226.2 million in 
fiscal year 2022. The decrease reflects adjustments for Proposition 56 estimated accruals due to an 
updated logic that impacted prior years. 

 
Claims expenses to providers and facilities, including LTC services, increased by 14.6 percent from fiscal 
year 2022 to fiscal year 2023 due to increased utilization from higher enrollment. 

 
Prescription drug expenses decreased by $348.5 million due to the State’s transition of pharmacy 
benefits to Medi-Cal Fee-for-Service beginning January 1, 2022. 

 
In addition to the items mentioned above, total QAF payments received and passed through to hospitals 
decreased from $146.4 million to $0.0 from fiscal year 2022 to fiscal year 2023 due to the State’s timing 
for QAF payments. These receipts and payments are not included in the statements of revenues, 
expenses, and changes in net position. 

 
2023 and 2022 Administrative Expenses 

 
Total administrative expenses were $192.3 million in 2023 compared to $150.4 million in 2022. Overall 
administrative expenses increased by 27.8 percent or $41.9 million, primarily due to an increase in filled 
positions, cost of living and other salary adjustments, and adoption of the Government Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 96 for Subscription-Based Information Technology 
Arrangements. In fiscal years 2023 and 2022, CalOptima Health’s administrative expenses were 4.5 
percent and 3.6 percent of total operating revenues, respectively. 

 
2023 and 2022 Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses 

 
Non-operating revenue and expenses increased by $85.4 million from a loss of $20.2 million in fiscal year 
2022 to income of $65.2 million in fiscal year 2023. The increase is driven primarily by net investment 
income in fiscal year 2023 of $90.4 million, an increase of $110.8 million from a net investment loss of 
$20.4 million in fiscal year 2022. The amount is offset by an increase in grant expenses of $25.5 million, 
from $121 thousand in fiscal year 2022 to $25.5 million in fiscal year 2023. 

 
The Board and management have been accelerating efforts to improve access and quality of health care 
for the most vulnerable residents in Orange County. Those efforts included increasing the number of 
community investment grants released in the recent fiscal years. 
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Below is a comparison chart of total medical expenses by line of business and their respective 
percentages of the overall medical expenditures by fiscal year. 

 
 

2024, 2023, and 2022 Medical Expenses by Line of Business 
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Below is a comparison chart of medical expenses by major category and their respective percentages of 
the overall medical expenditures by fiscal year. 

 
 

2024, 2023, and 2022 Medical Expenses by Major Category 
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Significant aid categories are defined as follows: 
 

Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) includes families, children, and poverty-level members 
who qualify for the TANF federal welfare program, which provides cash aid and job-search assistance to 
poor families. TANF also includes members who migrated from CalOptima Health, Health Net, and Kaiser 
Healthy Family programs. 

 
Disabled and Aged includes individuals who have met the criteria for disability set by the Social Security 
Administration, and individuals of 65 years of age and older who receive supplemental security income 
(SSI) checks, are medically needy, or have an income of 100 percent or less of the federal poverty level. 

 
LTC includes frail elderly adults, nonelderly adults with disabilities, and children with developmental 
disabilities and other disabling conditions that require LTC services. 

 
Medi-Cal Expansion (MCE) program includes adults without children, ages 19 to 64, who qualify based 
upon income, as required by the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (ACA). 

2024, 2023, and 2022 Enrollment 
 

Medi-Cal 
 

During fiscal year 2024, CalOptima Health served an average of 932,770 Medi-Cal members per month 
compared to an average of 940,893 members per month in 2023 and 859,290 members per month in 
2022. The increase is attributed to the State’s pause in Medi-Cal eligibility redetermination which began at 
the beginning of the COVID-19 pandemic in March 2020 and expired on May 11, 2023. The chart below 
displays a comparative view of average monthly membership by Medi-Cal aid category during 2024, 
2023, and 2022. 
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CalOptima Health’s Whole Child Model (WCM) program includes children who are California Children’s 
Services (CCS) eligible. These members are receiving their CCS services and non-CCS services under 
the WCM program. 

 
OneCare 

 
OneCare was introduced in October 2005 as a Medicare Advantage Special Needs Plan. It provides a full 
range of health care services to members who are eligible for both the Medicare and Medi-Cal programs 
(i.e., dual eligible). The average member months were 17,488, 17,443, and 2,342 for the years ended 
June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively. The average member month for fiscal year 2023 was 
calculated using enrollment from January 2023 through June 2023 due to the transition of OneCare 
Connect members to OneCare beginning January 1, 2023. The chart below displays the average member 
months for the past three years. 
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OneCare Connect 
 

CalOptima Health launched the OneCare Connect program to serve dual eligible members in Orange 
County in July 2015. This program combines members’ Medicare and Medi-Cal coverage and adds other 
benefits and supports. The average member months were 0, 14,360, and 14,682 for the fiscal years 
ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively. For fiscal year 2023, the average member month 
was calculated with enrollment from July 2022 through December 2022 due to the transition of OneCare 
Connect members to OneCare on January 1, 2023. The chart below displays the average member 
months for the past three years. 
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PACE began operations in October 2013. It is a community-based Medicare and Medi-Cal program that 
provides coordinated and integrated health care services to frail elders to help them to continue living 
independently in the community. The average member months were 457, 434, and 417 for the fiscal 
years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively. The chart below displays the average member 
months for the past three years. 

 
 

PACE 
 

 
Economic Factors and the State’s Fiscal Year 2024-25 Budget 

On June 29, 2024, Governor Gavin Newsom signed the Fiscal Year (FY) 2024-25 state budget bill. The 
budget addressed a $46.8 billion deficit that resulted from significant revenue volatility and included a 
combination of solutions to close the gap, including spending reductions, use of reserves, funding shifts, 
delayed or paused spending, and payment deferrals to later years. 

General Fund spending in the budget package was $211.5 billion, a decrease of $11.6 billion or 5.2 
percent from FY 2023-24. The budget included $35 billion in General Fund spending for the Medi-Cal 
program, covering approximately 14.5 million beneficiaries in FY 2024-25. 
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Some major Medi-Cal initiatives included are: 

• Continued investment in the Medi-Cal Transformation Initiative (i.e., CalAIM); 
• Actions related to the Managed Care Organization tax, including revisions to the tax calculation 

methodology to increase revenues to support the Medi-Cal program, funding for some new targeted 
Medi-Cal provider rate increases to take effect January 1, 2025, and eliminated or delayed 
implementation for other targeted provider rate increases until January 1, 2026; and 

• Continued funding for full-scope Medi-Cal coverage to all income eligible adults ages 26 to 49 
regardless of immigration status. 

 
The budget projected $212.1 billion in General Fund revenues and transfers in FY 2024-25, an increase 
of $22.7 billion or 12.0 percent compared to last fiscal year. The three largest General Fund taxes (i.e., 
personal income tax, sales and use tax, corporation tax) were projected to increase by 8.6 percent from 
FY 2023-24. The State is projected to end FY 2024-25 with $22.2 billion in total reserves. 

 
DHCS routine annual audit – In January 2024, the California Department of Health Care Services 
(DHCS) formally engaged CalOptima Health for its annual medical program audit. The audit covered the 
provision of Medi-Cal services for the period of February 1, 2023, through February 29, 2024, and 
assessed CalOptima Health’s compliance with its Medi-Cal contract and regulations. As of this writing, 
CalOptima Health is awaiting the final findings report and formal request for corrective action. 

 
DHCS State Supported Services (SSS) audit – At the time of engagement for its annual routine audit in 
January 2024, DHCS simultaneously engaged CalOptima Health in an SSS audit related to abortion 
services. DHCS conducted this audit in conjunction with the DHCS routine annual audit for the period of 
February 1, 2023, through February 29, 2024, and assessed CalOptima Health’s compliance with its 
Medi-Cal contract and regulations related to SSS. As of this writing, CalOptima Health is awaiting the final 
report. 

 
DHCS focused audit – In December 2022, the DHCS formally engaged CalOptima Health in a focused 
audit for services related to transportation and behavioral health. The audit covered the provision of 
services for the period of February 1, 2022, through January 31, 2023. DHCS conducted this focused 
audit on all managed care plans; the review was not unique to CalOptima Health. DHCS concluded its 
review and as of this writing, CalOptima Health is awaiting the final findings report and formal request for 
corrective action. 

California State Auditor (CSA) audit– In May 2023, the CSA released Report 2022-112. The audit 
covered certain aspects of CalOptima Health’s budget, services, programs and organizational changes. 
As of this writing, CalOptima Health has completed its May 2, 2024, one (1) year response and is 
awaiting comments on the response. 

CMS Program Audit – The Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) conducted a virtual, full- 
scope program audit of the OneCare and OneCare Connect programs in July 2021 through August 2021. 
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CalOptima Health received the final report from CMS in November 2021 that required several corrective 
actions. In January 2022, CMS confirmed acceptance of CalOptima Health’s corrective actions for non- 
Immediate Corrective Action Required (ICAR) conditions and requested CalOptima Health to undergo an 
independent validation audit (IVA) by July 2022. In September 2022, CalOptima Health completed an 
independent validation audit as requested by CMS to demonstrate corrective actions were completed. In 
July 2023, CalOptima Health submitted a final revalidation report on two findings related to formulary 
administration and the Special Needs Plan Model of Care (SNP-MOC). On August 15, 2023, CMS 
notified CalOptima Health that CMS has determined CalOptima Health sufficiently corrected all conditions 
noted in the Final Audit Report and the 2021 Program Audit is closed. 

 
CMS 1/3 Financial Audit – On September 21, 2023, CMS notified CalOptima Health that its OneCare 
(H5433) plan was selected for the Calendar Year 2022 CMS 1/3 Financial Audit. CMS’ contractor, acting 
in the capacity of CMS agents, conducted the audit by requesting records and supporting documentation 
for, but not limited to, claims data, solvency, enrollment, base year entries on the bids, medical and/or 
drug expenses, related party transactions, general administrative expenses and Direct and Indirect 
Remuneration (DIR). The audit has been completed and the Agree/Disagree Letter was shared with 
CalOptima Health, which included three findings and one observation. CalOptima Health provided a 
response to the auditor on June 4, 2024. As of this writing, CalOptima Health is awaiting the Final Report 
from the auditor. CalOptima Health has initiated the corrective action plan process for the findings noted. 

 
Requests for Information – This financial report has been prepared in the spirit of full disclosure to 
provide the reader with an overview of CalOptima Health’s operations. If the reader has questions or 
would like additional information, please direct the requests to CalOptima Health, 505 City Parkway West, 
Orange, CA 92868 or call (714) 347-3237. 
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Report of Independent Auditors 

 
The Board of Directors 
Orange County Health Authority, A Public Agency dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated 
Medical Assistance dba CalOptima Health 

 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Orange County Health Authority, A Public Agency dba 
Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated Medical Assistance dba CalOptima Health (the 
“Organization”), which comprise the statements of net position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the 
related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position and cash flows for the years 
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Organization as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its operations 
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the 
Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern for 12 months beyond the financial statement 
date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control–related matters that we identified during the audit. 
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Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis, schedule of changes in net pension liability and related 
ratios, schedule of plan contributions, and schedule of changes in total OPEB liability and related 
ratios, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the GASB who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We 
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

 
 
 

 
Irvine, California 
DATE 
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BOARD-DESIGNATED ASSETS AND RESTRICTED CASH 

Statements of Net Position 
June 30, 2024 and 2023 

 
 

 2024  2023 
CURRENT ASSETS    

Cash and cash equivalents $ 527,999,319  $ 771,575,961 
Investments 1,777,895,941  1,676,736,065 
Premiums due from the State of California and CMS 461,899,906  380,839,598 
Prepaid expenses and other 103,955,696  108,144,802 

 
 
 
 

Cash and cash equivalents 22,817,912  1,940,209 
Investments 1,114,945,527  574,611,484 
Restricted deposit 300,000  300,000 

  
1,138,063,439 

  
576,851,693 

 
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET 

 
77,270,145 

  
66,189,127 

INTANGIBLE RIGHT-TO-USE SUBSCRIPTION ASSET, net 19,290,669  18,018,382 
 

Total assets 
 

4,106,375,115 
  

3,598,355,628 
 
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Net pension 

 
 

74,549,007 

  
 

24,373,350 
Other postemployment benefit 1,350,000  1,596,000 

 
Total deferred outflows of resources 

 
75,899,007 

  
25,969,350 

 
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 

 
$ 4,182,274,122 

  
$ 3,624,324,978 
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CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Statements of Net Position (Continued) 
June 30, 2024 and 2023 

 
 
 
 

Medical claims liability and capitation payable  
Medical claims liability 369,433,596 $ 333,993,756 
Provider capitation and withholds 176,233,694 125,444,022 
Accrued reinsurance costs to providers 7,511,531 4,312,093 
Subscription liability 7,134,744 4,556,961 

Due to the State of California and CMS 937,276,525 1,303,463,182 
Unearned revenue  6,777,509   61,886,332 

 
1,504,367,599 1,833,656,346 

Accounts payable and other 17,667,439 14,540,984 
Accrued payroll and employee benefits and other  25,886,668   23,332,392 

Total current liabilities 1,547,921,706 1,871,529,722 

COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT 106,676,651 - 

POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE PLAN 17,370,000 18,975,000 

SUBSCRIPTION LIABILITY, net of current portion 10,595,755 12,173,318 

NET PENSION LIABILITY  45,981,359   40,465,145 

Total liabilities   1,728,545,471    1,943,143,185 
 
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Net pension 

 
 

2,248,445 

 
 

3,387,516 
Other postemployment benefit  6,398,000   7,788,000 

 
Total deferred inflows of resources  8,646,445   11,175,516  

NET POSITION 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Net investment in capital assets 78,830,315 115,592,667 
Restricted by legislative authority 127,852,909 107,969,096 
Unrestricted   2,238,398,982    1,446,444,514 

Total net position   2,445,082,206    1,670,006,277 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, 
and net position 

 
 $ 4,182,274,122  

 
 $ 3,624,324,978 
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Total operating revenues 5,372,963,895 4,239,833,266 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Medical expenses 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

 
 

 2024  2023 
REVENUES 

Premium revenues 
 

$ 5,372,963,895 
  

$ 4,239,833,266 
 
 
 
 

 
Claims expense to providers and facilities 2,094,723,338 1,815,097,808 
Provider capitation 1,477,805,330 1,275,685,079 
Other medical 528,360,774 367,744,574 
OneCare Connect - 160,125,649 
PACE 39,737,377 39,133,937 
OneCare 369,285,675 204,408,932 

 
Total medical expenses 4,509,912,494 3,862,195,979 

Administrative expenses 
Salaries, wages, and employee benefits 149,096,246  129,037,210 
Supplies, occupancy, insurance, and other 39,389,249  31,742,817 
Purchased services 22,407,022  15,551,299 
Depreciation and amortization 8,008,630  8,114,542 
Professional fees 10,609,407  7,892,802 

 
Total administrative expenses 

 
229,510,554 

  
192,338,670 

 
Total operating expenses 

 
4,739,423,048 

  
4,054,534,649 

 
OPERATING INCOME 

 
633,540,847 

  
185,298,617 

 
NON-OPERATING REVENUES 

Net investment income and other 

 
 

174,598,247 

  
 

89,740,819 
Grant expense (33,282,237)  (25,530,071) 
Rental income, net of related expenses 219,072  987,046 

 
Total non-operating revenues 

 
141,535,082 

  
65,197,794 

 
Increase in net position 

 
775,075,929 

  
250,496,411 

NET POSITION, beginning of year 1,670,006,277  1,419,509,866 
 
NET POSITION, end of year 

 
$ 2,445,082,206 

  
$ 1,670,006,277 
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 2024   2023  
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net cash provided by operating activities  305,068,770   522,501,825  

CASH FLOWS USED IN CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

 
 
 
 

Capitation payments received and other $ 4,870,608,107 $ 4,607,104,404 
Payments to providers and facilities (4,313,806,893) (3,896,885,154) 
Payments to vendors (56,642,960) (62,171,613) 
Payments to employees  (195,089,484)  (125,545,812) 

 
 
 

Payments on subscription lease obligations (8,592,862) (5,414,341) 
Purchases of capital assets  (19,216,010)  (6,499,838) 

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities  (27,808,872)  (11,914,179) 

CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

NONCASH CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Lease right-of-use assets acquired via lease obligations 

 
 $ 8,818,155  

 
 $ -  

 
  

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH OPERATING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Change in unrealized depreciation on investments  $ (5,165,292)  $ (20,441,581) 

 
  

Investment income received 201,775,923  125,584,618 
Purchases of securities (21,016,264,492)  (46,933,516,529) 
Sales of securities 20,326,715,194  46,269,973,906 
Payments of grants to providers (33,282,237)  (25,530,071) 
Collections related to rental income 219,072  987,046  

Net cash used in investing activities (520,836,540)  (562,501,030) 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (243,576,642)  (51,913,384) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 771,575,961  823,489,345  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year  $ 527,999,319  $ 771,575,961  

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH 
   

PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Operating income 

 
$ 

 
633,540,847 

 
$ 

 
185,298,617 

ADJUSTMENT TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

    

Depreciation 
Changes in assets and liabilities 

Premiums due from the State of California and CMS 

15,680,860 
 

(81,060,308) 

10,719,510 
 

24,352,789 
Prepaid expenses and other 4,189,106 (13,880,348) 
Medical claims liability 35,439,840 32,141,035 
Provider capitation and withholds 50,789,672 (67,770,606) 
Accrued reinsurance costs to providers 3,199,438 940,396 
Due to the State of California and CMS (366,186,657) 289,081,118 
Unearned revenue (55,108,823) 53,837,231 
Accounts payable and other 110,578,033 4,290,685 
Accrued payroll and employee benefits and other 2,554,276 3,764,852 
Postemployment health care plan (2,749,000) (2,207,000) 
Net pension liability (45,798,514)  1,933,546  

Net cash provided by operating activities  $ 305,068,770  $ 522,501,825  
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Note 1 – Organization 
 

Orange County Health Authority, A Public Agency dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated 
Medical Assistance dba CalOptima Health, is a County-Organized Health System (COHS) serving 
primarily Medi-Cal beneficiaries in Orange County, California. Effective August 4, 2022, Orange County 
Health Authority changed its dba name to CalOptima Health (CalOptima Health or the Organization). 
Pursuant to the California Welfare and Institutions Code, CalOptima Health was formed by the Orange 
County Board of Supervisors as a public/private partnership through the adoption of Ordinance No. 3896 
in August 1992. The agency began operations in October 1995. 

 
As a COHS, CalOptima Health maintains an exclusive contract with the State of California (the State), 
Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) to arrange for the provision of health care services to 
Orange County’s Medi-Cal beneficiaries. Orange County had approximately 901,300 and 970,600 
Medi-Cal beneficiaries for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. CalOptima Health also 
offers OneCare, a Medicare Advantage Special Needs Plan, via a contract with the Centers for Medicare 
& Medicaid Services (CMS). OneCare served approximately 17,300 and 17,700 members eligible for both 
Medicare and Medi-Cal for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

 
In July 2015, CalOptima Health began offering the OneCare Connect Cal Medi Connect Plan, a 
Medicare-Medicaid Plan, via a contract with CMS and DHCS. OneCare Connect served an average of 
14,360 members during the period July 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022 and approximately 14,400 
during the year-ended June 30, 2022. The OneCare Connect Program ended on December 31, 2022. 
Starting January 1, 2023, CalOptima Health transitioned all subscribers from OneCare Connect to the 
OneCare Plan. Enrollment in the OneCare Connect Program at December 31, 2022 was 14,385. 

 
CalOptima Health also contracts with the California Department of Aging to provide case management of 
social and health care services to approximately 500 Medi-Cal eligible seniors under the State’s 
Multipurpose Senior Services Program (MSSP). Effective January 1, 2022, MSSP transitioned from a 
managed care plan benefit to a carved-out waiver benefit. 

 
The Program of All-Inclusive Care for the Elderly (PACE) provides services to 55 years of age or older 
members who reside in the PACE service area and meet California nursing facility level of care 
requirements. The program receives Medicare and Medi-Cal funding and serves approximately 500 
members. 

 
CalOptima Health, in turn, subcontracts the delivery of health care services through health maintenance 
organizations and provider-sponsored organizations, known as Physician/Hospital Consortia, and Shared 
Risk Groups. Additionally, CalOptima Health has direct contracts with hospitals and providers for its fee- 
for-service network. 

 
CalOptima Health is Knox-Keene licensed for purposes of its Medicare programs and is subject to certain 
provisions of the Knox-Keene Health Care Service Plan Act of 1975 (the Act) to the extent incorporated 
by reference into CalOptima Health’s contract with DHCS. As such, CalOptima Health is subject to the 
regulatory requirements of the Department of Managed Health Care (DMHC) under Section 1300, Title 28 
of the California Administrative Code of Regulations, including minimum requirements of Tangible Net 
Equity (TNE), which CalOptima Health exceeded as of June 30, 2024 and 2023. 
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Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

Basis of presentation – CalOptima Health is a COHS plan governed by a 10-member Board of Directors 
appointed by the Orange County Board of Supervisors. Effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, 
CalOptima Health began reporting as a discrete component unit of the County of Orange, California. The 
County made this determination based on the County Board of Supervisors’ role in appointing all 
members of the Board of Directors. 

 
Basis of accounting – CalOptima Health uses enterprise fund accounting. Revenues and expenses are 
recognized on the accrual basis using the economic resources measurement focus. The accompanying 
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the standards of the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

 
Use of estimates – The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
Cash and cash equivalents – The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. 

 
Investments – Investments are stated at fair value in accordance with GASB Codification Section 150. 
The fair value of investments is estimated based on quoted market prices, when available. For debt 
securities not actively traded, fair values are estimated using values obtained from external pricing 
services or are estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows using current market rates 
applicable to the coupon rate, credit, and maturity of the investments. 

 
All investments with an original maturity of one year or less when purchased are recorded as current 
investments, unless designated or restricted. 

 
Board-designated assets and restricted cash – Board-designated assets based on policy updates 
approved by the Board in May 2024 include amounts designated by the Board of Directors for the 
establishment of certain reserve funds for contingencies at a desired level between 2.5 and 3.0 months of 
consolidated capitation revenue (see Note 3). The Board of Directors also established a separate reserve 
to meet the statutory requirement for minimum TNE. Restricted cash represents a $300,000 restricted 
deposit required by CalOptima Health as part of the Act (see Note 9). 

 
Capital assets – Capital assets are stated at cost at the date of acquisition. The costs of normal 
maintenance, repairs, and minor replacements are charged to expense when incurred. 
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Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. 
Long-lived assets are periodically reviewed for impairment. The following estimated useful lives are used: 

 
 Years  

 
Furniture 5 years 
Vehicles 5 years 
Computers and software 3 years 
Leasehold improvements 15 years or life of lease, whichever is less 
Building  40 years 
Building components 10 to 30 years 
Land improvements 8 to 25 years 
Tenant improvements 7 years or life of lease, whichever is less 

 
Fair value of financial instruments – The financial statements include financial instruments for which 
the fair market value may differ from amounts reflected on a historical basis. Financial instruments of the 
Organization consist of cash deposits, investments, premium receivable, accounts payable, and certain 
accrued liabilities. The Organization’s other financial instruments, except for investments, generally 
approximate fair market value based on the relatively short period of time between origination of the 
instruments and their expected realization. 

 
Medical claims liability and expenses – CalOptima Health establishes a claims liability based on 
estimates of the ultimate cost of claims in process and a provision for incurred but not yet reported (IBNR) 
claims, which is actuarially determined based on historical claim payment experience and other statistics. 
Such estimates are continually monitored and analyzed with any adjustments made as necessary in the 
period the adjustment is determined. CalOptima Health retains an outside actuary to perform an annual 
review of the actuarial projections. Amounts for claims payment incurred related to prior years vary from 
previously estimated liabilities as the claims ultimately are settled. 
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Provider capitation and withholds – CalOptima Health has provider services agreements with several 
health networks in Orange County, whereby the health networks provide care directly to covered 
members or through subcontracts with other health care providers. Payment for the services provided by 
the health networks is on a fully capitated basis. The capitation amount is based on contractually agreed- 
upon terms with each health network. CalOptima Health withholds amounts from providers at an agreed- 
upon percentage of capitation payments made to ensure the financial solvency of each contract. 
CalOptima Health also records a liability related to quality incentive payments and risk-share provisions. 
The quality incentive liability is estimated based on member months and rates agreed upon by the Board 
of Directors. For the risk-share provision liability, management allocates surpluses or deficits, multiplied 
by a contractual rate, with the shared-risk groups. Estimated amounts due to health networks pertaining 
to risk-share provisions were approximately $27,304,000 and $32,197,000 as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively, and are included in provider capitation and withholds on the statements of net position. 
During the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, CalOptima Health incurred approximately 
$1,463,590,000 and $1,312,969,000, respectively, of capitation expense relating to health care services 
provided by health networks. Capitation expense is included in the provider capitation and OneCare line 
items in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. Estimated amounts due to 
health networks as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, related to the capitation withhold arrangements, quality 
incentive payments, and risk-share provisions were approximately $176,234,000 and $125,444,000, 
respectively. 

 
Premium deficiency reserves – CalOptima Health performs periodic analyses of its expected future 
health care costs and maintenance costs to determine whether such costs will exceed anticipated future 
revenues under its contracts. Should expected costs exceed anticipated revenues, a premium deficiency 
reserve is accrued. Investment income is not included in the calculation to estimate premium deficiency 
reserves. CalOptima Health’s management determined that no premium deficiency reserves were 
necessary as of June 30, 2024 and 2023. 

 

Community reinvestment – CalOptima Health is required to commit a percentage of net position 
towards investments into the community and an additional percentage if CalOptima Health does not meet 
specified quality measures established by the State referred to as Community Reinvestment and Quality 
Achievement. As of June 30, 2024, in accordance with State contracts, the balance of the community 
reinvestment was estimated at approximately $51,800,000 $51,400,000 and the balance of the quality 
achievement was estimated at approximately $55,600,000 $55,200,000, for a total estimated accrual of 
approximately $106,677,000. As the community reinvestment and quality achievement requirement was 
effective January 1, 2024, no accrual was necessary as of June 30, 2023. 
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Accrued compensated absences – CalOptima Health’s policy permits employees who are regularly 
scheduled to work more than 20 hours per week to accrue 23 days of paid time off (PTO) based on their 
years of continuous service, with an additional week of accrual after three years of service and another 
after 10 years of service. In the event that available PTO is not used by the end of the benefit year, 
employees may carry unused time off into subsequent years, up to the maximum accrual amount equal to 
two (2) times the employee’s annual accrual. If an employee reaches his or her maximum PTO accrual 
amount, the employee will stop accruing PTO. Accumulated PTO will be paid to the employees upon 
separation from service with CalOptima Health. All compensated absences are accrued and recorded in 
accordance with GASB Codification Section C60 and are included in accrued payroll and employee 
benefits. 

 
Net position – Net position is reported in three categories, defined as follows: 

 
• Net investment in capital assets – This component of net position consists of capital assets, 

including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and is reduced by the 
outstanding balances of any bonds, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable (if any) to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

 
• Restricted by legislative authority – This component of net position consists of external constraints 

placed on net asset use by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or 
the law or regulations of other governments. It also pertains to constraints imposed by law or 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation (see Note 9). 

 
• Unrestricted – This component of net position consists of net position that does not meet the 

definition of “restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.” 
 

Operating revenues and expenses – CalOptima Health’s statements of revenues, expenses, and 
changes in net position distinguish between operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
Operating revenues result from exchange transactions associated with arranging for the provision of 
health care services. Operating expenses are all expenses incurred to arrange for the provision of health 
care services, as well as the costs of administration. Unpaid claims adjustment expenses are an estimate 
of the cost to process the IBNR claims and are included in operating expenses. Non-exchange revenues 
and expenses are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

 

Revenue recognition and due to or from the State and CMS – Premium revenue is recognized in the 
period the members are eligible to receive health care services. Premium revenue is generally received 
from the State each month following the month of coverage based on estimated enrollment and capitation 
rates as provided for in the State contract. As such, premium revenue includes an estimate for amounts 
receivable from or refundable to the State and for retrospective adjustments. These estimates are 
continually monitored and analyzed, with any adjustments recognized in the period when determined. 
OneCare premium revenue is generally received from CMS each month for the month of coverage. 
Premiums received in advance are recorded in unearned revenue on the statements of net position. 
Included in premium revenue are retroactive adjustments favorable to CalOptima Health in the amount of 
approximately $833,608,000 $966,461,000 and $376,821,000 related to retroactive capitation rate 
adjustments based on receipt of new information from DHCS during the years ended June 30, 2024 and 
2023, respectively. 
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These estimates are continually reviewed, and adjustments to the estimates are reflected currently in the 
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. Eligibility of beneficiaries is determined 
by DHCS and validated by the State. The State provides CalOptima Health the validated monthly 
eligibility file of program beneficiaries who are continuing, newly added, or terminated from the program in 
support of premium revenue for the respective month. 

 
CalOptima Health was historically subject to DHCS requirements to meet the minimum 85 percent 
medical loss ratio (MLR) for the Medi-Cal Expansion population per the Affordable Care Act (ACA). On 
April 5, 2023, CalOptima Health received written confirmation from DHCS that the expansion MLRs for 
the period of January 1, 2014, through June 30, 2016, were considered closed and final. As a result, 
CalOptima Health released the expansion MLR liability of approximately $135,390,000 during the year 
ended June 30, 2023. The amount was recorded within premium revenues on the accompanying 
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. In March 2023, CalOptima Health was 
notified that the Organization was not required to remit any MLR payments to DHCS, nor will DHCS make 
any additional payment for fiscal year 2018. DHCS has communicated that MCE MLRs are no longer 
required after June 2018 pending CMS final approval. 

 
Premium revenue and related net receivables as a percent of the totals were as follows as of June 30: 

 
 2024   2023  

 
Revenue 

 Revenue   %   Revenue   %  

Medi-Cal $ 4,918,009,421 91.5% $ 3,809,323,101 89.8% 
OneCare 407,480,604 7.6% 214,353,873 5.1% 
OneCare Connect - 0.0% 172,148,803 4.1% 
PACE  47,473,870  0.9%  44,007,489  1.0% 

  $ 5,372,963,895  100.0%  $ 4,239,833,266  100.0% 
  

 2024  

  

 2023  
 
Receivables 

 Receivables   %   Receivables   %  

Medi-Cal $ 438,045,910 94.8% $ 355,725,299 93.4% 
OneCare Connect 19,720,151 4.3% 22,601,354 5.9% 
PACE  4,133,845  0.9%  2,512,945  0.7% 

  $ 461,899,906  100.0%  $ 380,839,598  100.0% 
 
 

Effective January 1, 2023, the OneCare Connect program ended and the OneCare Connect enrollment 
transitioned to the OneCare program. Any residual revenue and expenses related to One Care Connect 
are recorded as part of the One Care revenue and expenses on the statement of revenues, expenses, 
and changes in net position. 
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Intergovernmental transfer – CalOptima Health entered into an agreement with DHCS and 
Governmental Funding Entities to receive an intergovernmental transfer (IGT) through a capitation rate 
increase of approximately $147,059,000 and $121,159,000 during the years ended June 30, 2024 and 
2023, respectively. Under the agreement, approximately $145,317,000 and $119,622,000 of the funds 
that were received from the IGT were passed through to Governmental Funding Entities and other 
contracted providers and organizations during the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 
Under GASB, the amounts that will be passed through to Governmental Funding Entities are not reported 
in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. CalOptima Health retains a portion 
of the IGT, which must be used to enhance provider reimbursement rates strengthen the delivery system, 
and support the administration of the IGT program. The funds expended must be tied to covered medical 
services provided to CalOptima Health’s Medi-Cal beneficiaries. A retainer in the amount of approximately 
$2,918,000 and $5,698,000 as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, is included in unearned 
revenues in the statements of net position. 

 
Directed Payments – DHCS implemented a hospital Directed Payment program with CalOptima Health. 
The program implements enhanced reimbursement to eligible and participating network hospitals for 
contracted services. This hospital Directed Payment program is broken into four types: (1) Private 
Hospital Directed Payment Program (PHDP), (2) Public Hospital Enhanced Payment Program (EPP), (3) 
Public Hospital Quality Incentive Program (QIP), and (4) Skilled Nursing Facility (SNF) Workforce and 
Quality Incentive Program (WQIP). Under the Directed Payment program, approximately $314,307,000 
and $293,811,000 of the funds that were received from DHCS were passed through to hospitals as 
requested by DHCS during the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The receipts from 
DHCS are included in premium revenues, and the payments made to the hospitals are included in other 
medical expenses in the statements of net position. 

 
Medicare Part D – CalOptima Health covers prescription drug benefits in accordance with Medicare 
Part D under multiple contracts with CMS. The payments CalOptima Health receives monthly from 
program premiums, which are determined from its annual bid, represent amounts for providing 
prescription drug insurance coverage. CalOptima Health recognizes premiums for providing this 
insurance coverage ratably over the term of its annual contract. CalOptima Health’s CMS payment is 
subject to risk sharing through the Medicare Part D risk corridor provisions. In addition, receipts for 
reinsurance and low-income cost subsidies, as well as receipts for certain discounts on brand name 
prescription drugs in the coverage gap, represent payments for prescription drug costs for which 
CalOptima Health is not at risk. 
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The risk corridor provisions compare costs targeted in CalOptima Health’s bids to actual prescription drug 
costs, limited to actual costs that would have been incurred under the standard coverage as defined by 
CMS. Variances exceeding certain thresholds may result in CMS making additional payments to 
CalOptima Health or require CalOptima Health to refund to CMS a portion of the premiums CalOptima 
Health received. CalOptima Health estimates and recognizes an adjustment to premiums revenue related 
to these risk corridor provisions based upon pharmacy claims experience to date, as if the annual 
contract were to terminate at the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, this estimate provides no 
consideration to future pharmacy claims experience. CalOptima Health records a receivable or payable at 
the contract level and classifies the amount as current or long-term in the accompanying statements of 
net position based on the timing of the expected settlement. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Part D 
payable balance was approximately $8,808,000 and $1,882,000, respectively, and is included in the Due 
to the State of California and CMS line item on the accompanying statements of net position. As of 
June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Part D receivable balance was approximately $52,167,000 and 
$51,860,000, respectively, and is included in the prepaid expenses and other line item on the 
accompanying statements of net position. 

 
Income taxes – CalOptima Health operates under the purview of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC), 
Section 501(a), and corresponding California Revenue and Taxation Code provisions. As such, 
CalOptima Health is not subject to federal or state taxes on related income. Accordingly, no provision for 
income tax has been recorded in the accompanying financial statements. 

 

Premium taxes – Effective July 1, 2016, Senate Bill X2-2 (SB X2-2) Managed Care Organization Tax 
authorized DHCS to implement a Managed Care Organization (MCO) provider tax subject to approval by 
CMS. This approved tax structure is based on enrollment (total member months) between specified tiers 
that are assessed different tax rates. During fiscal year 2020, the MCO tax was extended with an effective 
date of January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2022. Effective December 15, 2023, and retroactive to 
April 1, 2023, CMS approved the extension of the MCO tax through the end of December 2026. Using the 
approved structure, each MCO’s total tax liability for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, were 
calculated. CalOptima Health recognized premium tax expense of approximately $657,657,000 and 
$92,241,000 as a reduction of premium revenues in the statements of revenue, expenses, and changes 
in net position for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. As of June 30, 2024, CalOptima 
Health’s MCO tax liability was approximately $125,469,000 $153,920,000, and is included in the due to 
the State of California and CMS line item on the accompanying statements of net position. As the MCO 
tax expired on December 31, 2022 and was not approved for extension until December 15, 2023, 
CalOptima Health did not record a MCO tax liability as of June 30, 2023. 
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Risk corridors – During the year ended June 30, 2021, CalOptima Health’s contract with DHCS was 
subject to a risk corridor for the Managed Long-Term Services and Supports program for the period of 
July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2017. Additionally, the State’s fiscal year 2020-21 enacted budget and 
CalOptima Health’s contract included a COVID-19 (previously called Gross Medical Expense) risk 
corridor for the initial period of July 1, 2019 to December 31, 2020 with the option to extend the risk 
corridor starting on or after January 1, 2021 should the State determine it is necessary to account for the 
impacts of the COVID-19 public health emergency. During the year ended June 30, 2024, CalOptima 
Health was made aware that the State would not be enforcing the COVID-19 risk corridor for the periods 
starting on or after January 1, 2021. As such, the Organization released $646,800,000 of liabilities 
relating to the COVID-19 risk corridor. The State also implemented an Enhanced Care Management 
(ECM) risk corridor for the period of January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022, and was extended 
through December 31, 2024 and Unsatisfactory Immigration Status (UIS) risk corridor for the period of 
January 2024 to December 2024. 

 
CalOptima Health also participates in the Research and Prevention Tobacco Tax Act of 2016 (Proposition 
56) risk corridor for the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 and all subsequent years. All risk 
corridors are subject to certain thresholds of medical expenses compared to premium revenues. 
Variances exceeding the thresholds may require CalOptima Health to refund premium revenues back to 
DHCS. CalOptima Health estimates and recognizes an adjustment to premium revenues based on actual 
membership and capitation rates in effect. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, CalOptima Health recognized a 
liability of approximately $304,789,000 and $962,366,000, respectively, related to the risk corridors, which 
is included in the Due to the State of California and CMS line item on the statements of net position. 
During the year ended June 30, 2024, the increase to premium revenue was approximately $599,501,700 
and for year ended June 30, 2023, the reduction of premium revenue was approximately $575,761,000, 
related to the risk corridors, which is included in premium revenues on the statements of revenues, 
expenses, and changes in net position. 

 
Pensions – For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of 
resources related to pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of 
CalOptima Health’s Miscellaneous Plan of the Orange County Health Authority (the CalPERS Plan) and 
additions to or deductions from the Organization’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the 
same basis as they are reported by California Public Employees Retirement Systems (CalPERS). For this 
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

 
Subscription-based Information Technology Arrangements – CalOptima Health is the end user for 
various subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITA). Short term SBITAs, which 
have a maximum possible term of 12 months or less, are recognized as an outflow of resources when 
payment is made. For SBITAs with subscription terms extending beyond one year, CalOptima Health 
recognizes a right-to-use subscription asset and a corresponding subscription liability. Initial 
measurement of the subscription asset/liability is calculated at the present value of payments expected to 
be paid during the subscription term, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate. The right-to-use 
asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over the subscription term. 
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Reclassifications – Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year amounts to conform to the 
current year presentation. 

 
 

Note 3 – Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments 
 

Cash and investments are reported in the statements of net position as follows as of June 30: 
 

 2024   2023  
Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 527,999,319 $ 771,575,961 
Investments 1,777,895,941 1,676,736,065 

 
Board-designated assets and restricted cash 

Cash and cash equivalents 22,817,912 1,940,209 
Investments 1,114,945,527 574,611,484 
Restricted deposit  300,000   300,000 

  $ 3,443,958,699   $ 3,025,163,719 
 

Board-designated assets and restricted cash are available for the following purposes as of June 30: 
 

 2024   2023  
Board-designated assets and restricted cash 

Contingency reserve fund $ 1,137,763,439 $ 576,551,693 
Restricted deposit with DMHC  300,000   300,000 

  $ 1,138,063,439   $ 576,851,693 
 

Custodial credit risk deposits – Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the 
Organization may not be able to recover its deposits or collateral securities that are in the possession of 
an outside party. The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits 
made by public agencies by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository 
regulated under the state law. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, no deposits were exposed to custodial 
credit risk, as the Organization has pledged collateral to cover the amounts. 

 
Investments – CalOptima Health invests in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, other U.S. government 
agencies and instrumentalities, state obligations, corporate securities, money market funds, and 
mortgage or asset-backed securities. 
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Interest rate risk – In accordance with its annual investment policy (investment policy), CalOptima Health 
manages its exposure to decline in fair value from increasing interest rates by matching maturity dates to 
the extent possible with CalOptima Health’s expected cash flow draws. The investment policy limits 
maturities to five years, while also staggering maturities. CalOptima Health maintains a low-duration 
strategy, targeting a portfolio duration of three years or less, with the intent of reducing interest rate risk. 
Portfolios with low duration are less volatile because they are less sensitive to interest rate changes. As 
of June 30, 2024 and 2023, CalOptima Health’s investments, including cash equivalents, had the 
following modified duration: 

 
 

 
 Investment Type  

June 30, 2024 
Investment Maturities (in Years) 

 Fair Value   Less Than 1   1–5   More Than 5  
 

U.S. Treasury notes $  971,992,504 $  314,637,165 $  657,355,339 $ - 
U.S. Agency notes 262,740,439 8,391,603 254,348,836  - 
Corporate bonds 847,388,142 71,686,337 775,701,805  - 
Asset-backed securities 282,066,505 3,051,718 279,014,787  - 
Mortgage-backed securities 338,957,054 3,489,987 335,467,067  - 
Municipal bonds 34,517,897 1,999,272 32,518,625  - 
Government related 47,509,397 - 47,509,397  - 
Commercial paper 11,838,720 11,838,720 -  - 
Certificates of deposit 73,825,050 73,825,050 -  - 
Cash equivalents 449,240,016 449,240,016 -  - 
Cash  17,235,722   17,235,722  -  - 

 3,337,311,446  $  955,395,590  $ 2,381,915,856  $ - 
 
Accrued interest receivable 

 
 22,012,384  

     

  $ 3,359,323,830       
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June 30, 2023 
 
 
 

U.S. Treasury notes $  652,372,690 $  334,436,427 $  317,936,263 $ - 
U.S. Agency notes 294,565,404 - 294,565,404  - 
Corporate bonds 606,478,662 151,600,486 454,878,176  - 
Asset-backed securities 167,709,021 41,290,805 126,418,216  - 
Mortgage-backed securities 352,525,833 24,026,927 328,498,906  - 
Municipal bonds 69,679,079 26,904,673 42,774,406  - 
Supranational 9,707,125 - 9,707,125  - 
Commercial paper 34,824,599 34,824,599 -  - 
Certificates of deposit 48,082,917 48,082,917 -  - 
Cash equivalents 666,834,439 666,834,439 -  - 
Cash  7,274,284   7,274,284  -  - 

 2,910,054,053  $ 1,335,275,557  $ 1,574,778,496  $ - 
 
Accrued interest receivable 

 
 15,402,218  

     

  $ 2,925,456,271       

 
Investment with fair values highly sensitive to interest rate fluctuations – When interest rates fall, 
debt is refinanced and paid off early. The reduced stream of future interest payments diminishes the fair 
value of the investment. The mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities in the CalOptima Health 
portfolios are of high credit quality, with relatively short average lives that represent limited prepayment 
and interest rate exposure risk. CalOptima Health’s investments include the following investments that 
are highly sensitive to interest rate and prepayment fluctuations to a greater degree than already 
indicated in the information provided above as of June 30: 

 
  2024   2023  

Asset-backed securities $ 282,066,505 $ 167,709,021 
Mortgage-backed securities  338,957,054   352,525,833 

  $ 621,023,559   $ 520,234,854 
 

Credit risk – CalOptima Health’s investment policy conforms to the California Government Code as well 
as to customary standards of prudent investment management. Credit risk is mitigated by investing in 
only permitted investments. The investment policy sets minimum acceptable credit ratings for investments 
from the three nationally recognized rating services: Standard and Poor’s Corporation (S&P), Moody’s 
Investor Service (Moody’s), and Fitch Ratings (Fitch). For an issuer of short-term debt, the rating must be 
no less than A-1 (S&P), P-1 (Moody’s), or F-1 (Fitch), while an issuer of long-term debt shall be rated no 
less than an “A.” 
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As of June 30, 2024, following are the credit ratings of investments and cash equivalents: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Fair 
Minimum 

Legal 
Exempt 

from Rating as of Year-End 
Investment Type Value Rating Disclosure AAA or A1/P1 Aa & Aa+ Aa- A+ A A- 

 
U.S. Treasury notes 

 

 
$  1,083,583,975 

 
N/A 

 

 
$  1,083,583,975 

 

 
$ - 

 

 
$ - 

 

 
$ - 

 

 
$ - 

 

 
$ - 

 
$ - 

U.S. Agency notes 266,216,187 N/A 266,216,187 - - - - - - 
Corporate bonds 855,910,653 A- - 47,341,323 51,056,528 187,449,322 167,122,957 218,194,941 184,745,582 
Asset-backed securities 282,501,052 AA- - 273,772,351 8,728,701 - - - - 
Mortgage-backed securities 339,644,477 AA- - 339,644,477 - - - - - 
Municipal bonds 83,090,777 A- - 38,831,407 27,557,505 13,101,688 726,226 2,873,951 - 
Supranational 47,839,438 AA - 47,839,438 - - - - - 
Repurchase agreement 37,016,342 N/A - - - - - 37,016,342 - 
Certificates of deposit 75,141,932 A1/P1 - 75,141,932 - - - - - 
Commercial paper 271,143,275 A1 - - - - - 271,143,275 - 
Money market mutual funds 17,235,722 AAA - 17,235,722 - - - - - 

 
Total 

 
$ 

 
3,359,323,830 

 
$ 

 
1,349,800,162 

 
$ 

 
839,806,650 

 
$ 

 
87,342,734 

 
$ 

 
200,551,010 

 
$ 

 
167,849,183 

 
$ 

 
529,228,509 

 
$ 

 
184,745,582 

As of June 30, 2023, following are the credit ratings of investments and cash equivalents: 
 

 
Fair 

Minimum 
Legal 

Exempt 
from Rating as of Year-End 

Investment Type Value Rating Disclosure AAA Aa & Aa+ Aa- A+ A A- 

 
U.S. Treasury notes 

 

 
$ 709,754,225 

 
N/A 

 

 
$ 709,754,225 

 

 
$ - 

 

 
$ - 

 

 
$ - 

 

 
$ - 

 

 
$ - 

 
$ - 

U.S. Agency notes 472,401,379 N/A 472,401,379 - - - - - - 
Corporate bonds 610,956,872 A- - 48,288,393 8,241,443 108,468,276 189,593,093 154,798,256 101,567,411 
Asset-backed securities 167,997,222 AA- - 165,939,194 2,058,028 - - - - 
Mortgage-backed securities 355,150,030 AAA - 355,150,030 - - - - - 
Municipal bonds 107,477,262 A- - 66,287,078 26,428,815 10,727,556 1,007,344 1,568,179 1,458,290 
Supranational 9,779,429 AAA - 9,779,429 - - - - - 
Certificates of deposit 48,838,522 A1/P1 - 48,838,522 - - - - - 
Commercial paper 435,827,044 A1/P1 - 420,914,269 14,912,775 - - - - 
Money market mutual funds 7,274,286 AAA - 7,274,286 - - - - - 

 
Total 

 
$ 

 
2,925,456,271 

 
$ 

 
1,182,155,604 

 
$ 

 
1,122,471,201 

 
$ 

 
51,641,061 

 
$ 

 
119,195,832 

 
$ 

 
190,600,437 

 
$ 

 
156,366,435 

 
$ 

 
103,025,701 
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Concentration of credit risk – Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude 
of CalOptima Health’s investment in a single issuer. CalOptima Health’s investment policy limits to no 
more than 5 percent of the total fair value of investments in the securities of any one issuer, except for 
obligations of the U.S. government, U.S. government agencies, or government-sponsored enterprises, 
and no more than 10 percent may be invested in one money market mutual. As of June 30, 2024 and 
2023, all holdings complied with the foregoing limitations. 

 
The Organization categorizes its fair value investments within the fair value hierarchy established by U.S. 
GAAP. The hierarchy for fair value measurements is based upon the transparency of inputs to the 
valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. 

 
Level 1 – Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

 
Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for an asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly. 

 
Level 3 – Significant unobservable inputs. 

 
The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments at fair value on a 
recurring basis and recognized in the accompanying statements of net position, as well as the general 
classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy. 

 
Marketable securities – Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, securities are 
classified within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair 
values are estimated by using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics, or 
discounted cash flows. These securities are classified within Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy. In certain 
cases, where Level 1 or Level 2 inputs are not available, securities are classified within Level 3 of the 
hierarchy. 
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The following table presents the fair value measurements of assets recognized in the accompanying 
statements of net position measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the level within the fair value 
hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall: 

 
Investment Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2024 

 Level 1  Level 2   Level 3 Total 

 
U.S. Treasury notes 

 
$ 840,085,184 

  
$ 131,907,320 

  
$ 

  
- $ 971,992,504 

U.S. Agency notes -  262,740,439    - 262,740,439 
Corporate bonds -  847,388,142    - 847,388,142 
Asset-backed securities -  282,066,505    - 282,066,505 
Mortgage-backed securities -  338,957,054    - 338,957,054 
Municipal bonds -  34,517,897    - 34,517,897 
Government related -  47,509,397    - 47,509,397 
Commercial paper -  11,838,720    - 11,838,720 
Certificates of deposit -  73,825,050    - 73,825,050 

  
$ 840,085,184 

  
$  2,030,750,524 

  
$ 

  
- $  2,870,835,708 

 
Investment Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2023 

 Level 1  Level 2   Level 3 Total 

 
U.S. Treasury notes 

 
$ 652,372,690 

  
$ - 

  
$ 

  
- $ 652,372,690 

U.S. Agency notes -  294,565,404    - 294,565,404 
Corporate bonds -  606,478,662    - 606,478,662 
Asset-backed securities -  167,709,021    - 167,709,021 
Mortgage-backed securities -  352,525,833    - 352,525,833 
Municipal bonds -  69,679,079    - 69,679,079 
Supranational -  9,707,125    - 9,707,125 
Commercial paper -  34,824,599    - 34,824,599 
Certificates of deposit -  48,082,917    - 48,082,917 

  
$ 652,372,690 

  
$  1,583,572,640 

  
$ 

  
- $  2,235,945,330 
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Note 4 – Capital Assets 
 

Capital assets activity during the year ended June 30, 2024, consisted of the following: 
 

 June 30, 
2023 

  
Additions 

  
Retirements 

  
Transfers 

 June 30, 
2024 

Capital assets not being depreciated 
Land 

 
$ 11,912,499 

  
$3,526,568 

  
$ - 

  
$ - 

  
$ 15,439,067 

Construction in progress 3,043,229  11,178,673  -  (6,159,826)  8,062,076 
  

14,955,728 
  

$14,705,241 
  

- 
  

(6,159,826) 
  

23,501,143 
 
Capital assets being depreciated 

Furniture and equipment 

 
 

8,936,861 

  
 

- 

  
 

- 

  
 

541,889 

  
 

9,478,750 
Computers and software 36,355,519  -  (739,103)  4,911,448  40,527,864 
Leasehold improvements 5,296,726  -    15,816  5,312,542 
Building 63,883,316  4,510,769  (31,447)  690,673  69,053,311 

  
114,472,422 

  
4,510,769 

  
(770,550) 

  
6,159,826 

  
124,372,467 

 
Less: accumulated depreciation for 

Furniture and equipment 

 
 

7,351,339 

  
 

656,247 

  
 

- 

  
 

- 

  
 

8,007,586 
Computers and software 29,792,302  4,197,346  (194,212)  -  33,795,436 
Leasehold improvements 5,051,949  49,494    -  5,101,443 
Building 21,043,433  2,656,615  (1,048)  -  23,699,000 

  
63,239,023 

  
7,559,702 

  
(195,260) 

  
- 

  
70,603,465 

 
Total depreciable assets, net 

 
51,233,399 

  
(3,048,933) 

  
(575,290) 

  
6,159,826 

  
53,769,002 

 
Capital assets, net 

 
$ 66,189,127 

  
$11,656,308 

  
$ (575,290) 

  
$ - 

  
$ 77,270,145 
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Capital asset activity during the year ended June 30, 2023, consisted of the following: 
 

 June 30, 
2022 

  
Additions 

  
Retirements 

  
Transfers 

 June 30, 
2023 

Capital assets not being depreciated 
Land 

 
$ 11,912,499 

  
$ - 

  
$ - 

  
$ - 

  
$ 11,912,499 

Construction in progress 3,507,883  6,499,838  -  (6,964,492)  3,043,229 
  

15,420,382 
  

6,499,838 
  

- 
  

(6,964,492) 
  

14,955,728 
 
Capital assets being depreciated 

Furniture and equipment 

 
 

8,314,975 

  
 

- 

  
 

(81,528) 

  
 

703,414 

  
 

8,936,861 
Computers and software 39,307,282  -  (7,882,165)  4,930,402  36,355,519 
Leasehold improvements 5,059,409  -  (2,400)  239,717  5,296,726 
Building 63,092,357  -  (300,000)  1,090,959  63,883,316 

  
115,774,023 

  
- 

  
(8,266,093) 

  
6,964,492 

  
114,472,422 

 
Less: accumulated depreciation for 

Furniture and equipment 

 
 

6,909,422 

  
 

523,445 

  
 

(81,528) 

  
 

- 

  
 

7,351,339 
Computers and software 33,589,790  4,070,843  (7,868,331)  -  29,792,302 
Leasehold improvements 5,017,129  37,220  (2,400)  -  5,051,949 
Building 18,814,022  2,529,411  (300,000)  -  21,043,433 

  
64,330,363 

  
7,160,919 

  
(8,252,259) 

  
- 

  
63,239,023 

 
Total depreciable assets, net 

 
51,443,660 

  
(7,160,919) 

  
(13,834) 

  
6,964,492 

  
51,233,399 

 
Capital assets, net 

 
$ 66,864,042 

  
$ (661,081) 

  
$ (13,834) 

  
$ - 

  
$ 66,189,127 

The Organization recognized depreciation expense of approximately $7,421,000 and $7,053,000 during 
the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. During the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, 
depreciation expense of approximately $139,000 and $108,000, respectively, was included within PACE 
medical expenses on the accompanying statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 

 
 

Note 5 – Medical Claims Liability 
 

Medical claims liability consisted of the following as of June 30: 
 

 2024   2023  
 

Claims payable or pending approval $ 38,371,849 $ 52,909,889 
Provisions for IBNR claims  331,061,747   281,083,867  

 
 $ 369,433,596   $ 333,993,756  

 
The cost of health care services is recognized in the period in which care is provided and includes an 
estimate of the cost of services that has been IBNR. CalOptima Health estimates accrued claims payable 
based on historical claims payments and other relevant information. Unpaid claims adjustment expenses 
are an estimate of the cost to process the IBNR claims and are included in medical claims liability. 
Estimates are continually monitored and analyzed and, as settlements are made or estimates adjusted, 
differences are reflected in current operations. 
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Such estimates are subject to the impact of changes in the regulatory environment and economic 
conditions. Given the inherent variability of such estimates, the actual liability could differ significantly 
from the amounts provided. 

 
The following is a reconciliation of the medical claims liability for the years ended June 30: 

 
2024 2023 

 
Beginning balance 

 
$ 333,993,756 

  
$ 301,852,721 

Incurred 
Current 

 
2,394,253,671 

  
2,099,911,537 

Prior (91,115,588)  (65,796,666) 
  

2,303,138,083 
  

2,034,114,871 
Paid    

Current  2,024,213,932   1,765,917,781 
Prior  243,484,311   236,056,055 

   
2,267,698,243 

   
2,001,973,836 

 
Ending balance 

 
$ 

 
369,433,596 

  
$ 

 
333,993,756 

 
Amounts incurred related to prior years vary from previously estimated liabilities as the claims are 
ultimately adjudicated and paid. Liabilities at any year end are continually reviewed and re-estimated as 
information regarding actual claim payments becomes known. This information is compared to the 
originally established prior reporting period liability. Negative amounts reported for incurred, related to 
prior years, result from claims being adjudicated and paid for amounts less than originally estimated. The 
results included a decrease of prior year incurred of approximately $91,116,000 and $65,797,000 for the 
fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Original estimates are increased or decreased 
as additional information becomes known regarding individual claims. 

 
The amounts accrued in the Due to the State of California and CMS line item represent excess payments 
from DHCS that are primarily due to capitation payments received that do not reflect the current Medi-Cal 
rates issued by DHCS. DHCS continues to process the recoupments and the remaining overpayments 
not yet recouped are included within the Due to the State of California and CMS line item on the 
statements of net position. 
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Note 6 – Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
 

Plan description – CalOptima Health’s defined benefit pension plan, the CalPERS Plan, provides 
retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members 
and/or beneficiaries. The CalPERS Plan is part of the public agency portion of CalPERS, an agent 
multiple-employer plan administered by CalPERS, which acts as a common investment and 
administrative agent for participating public employers within the State. Optional contract provisions are 
available through the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL). CalOptima Health selects 
optional benefit provisions by contracting with CalPERS and adopting those benefits through Board of 
Directors approval (See “Benefits Provided” below for more details). CalPERS issues a publicly available 
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for CalPERS. 
Copies of the report can be obtained from CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA 
95814. 

 
Benefits provided – CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living 
adjustments, and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and/or beneficiaries. 
Pension benefits are based on plan members’ years of service, age, and final compensation (three-year 
average) at the time of retirement. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 
(Classic Member) or age 52 (New Member) with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for 
non-duty disability benefits if they have at least five years of service credit. Optional provisions elected by 
CalOptima Health include a 3% Cost of Living Allowance (Section 21335), 1959 Survivor Benefit Level 3 
(Section 21573), $5,000 Retired Death Benefit (Section 21623.5), a 3-Year Final Compensation Period 
(Section 20037), Pre-Retirement Death Benefits to Continue After Remarriage of Survivor (Section 
21551), as well as service credit purchase options for military and peace corps service (Section 21024 
and 21023.5, respectively). 

 
The CalPERS Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect as of June 30, 2024, are summarized as follows: 

 
Hire date Prior to January 1, 2013 On or after January 1, 2013 
Benefit formula 2 % at 60 2% at 62 
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service 
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life 
Retirement age 50 plus 52 plus 
Monthly benefits as a % of eligible compensation 1.092%-2.418% 1.0% to 2.5% 
Required employee contribution rates 7.00% 7.75% 
Required employer contribution rates 9.17% 9.17% 
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The following is a summary of plan participants:  

 
  June 30, 2024    June 30, 2023  

Active employees 1,599 1,583 

Retirees and beneficiaries 
Receiving benefits 

 
255 

 
220 

Deferred retirement benefits 
Terminated employees 

 
1,332 

 
1,222 

Surviving spouses 5 5 
Beneficiaries 2 1 

 
Contributions – Section 20814(c) of the California PERL requires that the employer contribution rates for 
all public employers are determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 
following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan contributions are determined through CalPERS’ 
annual actuarial valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to 
finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance 
any unfunded accrued liability. The employer is required to contribute the difference between the 
actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. The active employee contribution rate 
is 7.75 percent (Classic and PEPRA New Members) and 7.0 percent (Classic Members) of annual pay for 
the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The employer’s contribution rate is 9.17 percent 
and 8.41 percent of annual payroll for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. On October 
3, 2023, CalOptima Health made an additional discretionary payment (ADP) of approximately $50.0 
million to reduce the unfunded accrued liability and future required contributions. This ADP is not reflected 
in CalOptima Health's valuation report for the measurement period ending on June 30, 2023. 

 
CalOptima Health’s net pension liability for the CalPERS Plan is measured as the total pension liability, 
less the pension plan’s fiduciary net position. For the measurement period ended June 30, 2023 (the 
measurement date), the total pension liability was determined by rolling forward the June 30, 2022 total 
pension liability. Total pension liabilities were based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions 
as of June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022: 

 
Valuation date June 30, 2022 
Measurement date June 30, 2023 
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal 
Actuarial assumptions 

Discount rate 6.90% 
Inflation 2.30% 
Salary increases Varies by Entry Age and Service 
Investment rate of return 7.0% Net of Pension Plan Investment and Administrative Expenses; 

Includes Inflation 
Mortality rate table Derived using CalPERS' Membership data for all funds 
Post-retirement benefit increase Contract COLA up to 2.3% until Purchasing Power Protection Allowance 

Floor on Purchasing Power applies, 2.30% thereafter 
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The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The probabilities of mortality 
are based on the 2021 CalPERS Experience Study for the period from 2001 to 2019. Pre-retirement and 
Post-retirement mortality rates include generational mortality improvement using 80% of Scale MP-2020 
published by the Society of Actuaries. For more details on this table, please refer to the CalPERS 
Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions report from November 2021 that can be found on 
the CalPERS website. 

 
Changes in the net pension liability are as follows: 

 
Increase (Decreases) 

 

Total Plan Net 
Pension Fiduciary Pension 

 Liability   Net Position   Liability (Asset)  
 

Balance at June 30, 2023 $ 277,170,471 $ 236,705,326 $ 40,465,145 
Changes during the year 

Service cost 
 

19,761,157 
 

- 
 

19,761,157 
Interest on the total pension liability 19,987,952 - 19,987,952 
Differences between expected 

and actual experience 
 

5,143,171 
 

- 
 

5,143,171 
Contributions from the employer - 14,017,949 (14,017,949) 
Contributions from employees - 10,478,979 (10,478,979) 
Net investment income 
Benefit payments, including refunds 

- 15,053,200 (15,053,200) 

of employee contributions (5,027,500) (5,027,500) - 
Administrative expenses  -  (174,062)  174,062 

Net changes during the year  39,864,780  34,348,566  5,516,214 

Balance at June 30, 2024  $ 317,035,251  $ 271,053,892  $ 45,981,359 
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Increase (Decreases) 
 

Total Plan Net 
Pension Fiduciary Pension 

 Liability   Net Position   Liability (Asset)  
 

Balance at June 30, 2022 $ 240,018,505 $ 239,440,651 $ 577,854 
Changes during the year    

Service cost 17,958,280 - 17,958,280 
Interest on the total pension liability 17,450,590 - 17,450,590 
Changes of benefit terms - - - 
Differences between expected    

and actual experience (1,930,719) - (1,930,719) 
Changes of assumptions 8,006,529 - 8,006,529 
Contributions from the employer - 11,688,269 (11,688,269) 
Contributions from employees - 8,634,939 (8,634,939) 
Net investment income - (18,576,662) 18,576,662 
Benefit payments, including refunds   - 
of employee contributions (4,332,714) (4,332,714) - 

Administrative expenses  -  (149,157)  149,157 

Net changes during the year  37,151,966  (2,735,325)  39,887,291 

Balance at June 30, 2023  $ 277,170,471  $ 236,705,326  $ 40,465,145 
 
 

Discount rate and long-term rate of return – The discount rate used to measure the total pension 
liability was 6.90 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 
contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that 
contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on 
those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected 
future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension 
liability. 

 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment 
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 

 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and 
long-term market return expectations. Using historical returns of all of the funds’ asset classes, expected 
compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the next 20 years using a building-block approach. 
The expected rate of return was then adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses of 
10 Basis points. 
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The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. 
 

 Asset Class   Assumed Return Allocation  Real Return(1) 
 
Global Equity - Cap-weighted 30.0% 

 
4.54% 

Global Equity - Non-Cap-weighted 12.0% 3.84% 
Private Equity 13.0% 7.28% 
Treasury 5.0% 0.27% 
Mortgage-backed Securities 5.0% 0.50% 
Investment Grade Corporates 10.0% 1.56% 
High Yield 5.0% 2.27% 
Emerging Market Debt 5.0% 2.48% 
Private Debt 5.0% 3.57% 
Real Assets 15.0% 3.21% 
Leverage -5.0% -0.59% 

(1) An expected inflation of 2.3% was used for this period  

 
The following presents the net pension liability of the CalPERS Plan calculated using the discount rate, as 
well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 
percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate: 

 
 June 30, 2024  

 
Discount Rate -1% 

Current 
Discount Rate 

 
Discount Rate +1% 

 5.90%   6.90%   7.90%  
 

Net pension liability $ 100,402,066 $ 45,981,359 $ 2,195,114 
 

 June 30, 2023  

 
Discount Rate -1% 

Current 
Discount Rate 

 
Discount Rate +1% 

 5.90%   6.90%   7.90%  
 

Net pension liability $ 88,612,198 $ 40,465,145 $ 1,732,263 
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Pension expense and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions – CalOptima 
Health recognized pension expense of approximately $20,970,000 and $17,255,000 for the years ended 
June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, CalOptima Health recognized 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following 
sources: 

 
 June 30, 2024  

 Deferred Deferred 
Outflows Inflows 

  of Resources    of Resources  
Contributions from employers subsequent   

to the measurement date $ 1,877,932 $ - 
Net differences between projected and   

actual earnings on plan investments 12,037,633 - 
Changes in assumptions 5,542,981 (495,005) 
Differences between expected and actual experiences 5,090,744 (1,753,440) 
Additional contribution from employers subsequent   

to the measurement date  49,999,717   - 

  $ 74,549,007   $ (2,248,445) 
 
 
 
 

 
Contributions from employers subsequent 

to the measurement date 
Net differences between projected and 

 June 30, 2023  
Deferred  Deferred 
Outflows Inflows 

  of Resources    of Resources  
 

$ 2,375,580 $ - 
 

actual earnings on plan investments 12,718,340 - 
Changes in assumptions 7,732,138 (1,202,155) 
Differences between expected and actual experiences  1,547,292   (2,185,361) 

  $ 24,373,350   $ (3,387,516) 
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The deferred outflows of resources related to employer contributions subsequent to the measurement 
date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability during the year ended June 30, 2024. 
The differences reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will 
be recognized as pension expense as follows: 

 
 
 

 
Years Ending June 30, 
2024 

Deferred 
Outflows 

  of Resources  
 

$ 4,150,398 
2025 3,521,390 
2026 9,171,760 
2027 2,116,544 
2028 1,296,914 
Thereafter  165,907  

 
 $ 20,422,913  

 

 
Note 7 – Employee Benefit Plans 

 
Deferred compensation plan – CalOptima Health sponsors a deferred compensation plan created in 
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457 (the 457 Plan) under which employees are 
permitted to defer a portion of their annual salary until future years. CalOptima Health may make 
discretionary contributions to the 457 Plan as determined by the Board of Directors. For the years ended 
June 30, 2024 and 2023, no discretionary employer contributions were made. 

 
Defined contribution plan – Effective January 1, 1999, CalOptima Health established a supplemental 
retirement plan for its employees called the CalOptima Public Agency Retirement System Defined 
Contribution Supplemental Retirement Plan (PARS Plan). All regular and limited-term employees are 
eligible to participate in the PARS Plan. The current PARS Plan design does not require employee 
contributions. CalOptima Health makes discretionary employer contributions to the PARS Plan as 
authorized by the Board of Directors. Vesting occurs over 16 quarters of service. For the years ended 
June 30, 2024 and 2023, CalOptima Health contributed approximately $6,587,000 and $5,777,000, 
respectively. 

 
 

Note 8 – Postemployment Health Care Plan 
 

Plan description – CalOptima Health sponsors and administers a single-employer defined-benefit 
postemployment healthcare plan (the Plan) to provide medical, dental, and vision insurance benefits to 
eligible retired employees and their beneficiaries. Plan members receiving benefits contribute at the same 
rate as current active employees. Benefit provisions are established and may be amended by the Board 
of Directors. 
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Effective January 1, 2004, CalOptima Health terminated postemployment healthcare benefits for 
employees hired on or after January 1, 2004. For employees hired prior to January 1, 2004, the 
employee’s eligibility for retiree health benefits remains similar to the eligibility requirements for the 
defined benefit pension plan. Surviving spouses are also eligible for this benefit. 

 
During the year ended June 30, 2006, CalOptima Health modified the benefits offered to eligible 
participants, requiring participants to enroll in Medicare and specifying that CalOptima Health would be 
responsible only for the cost of Medicare supplemental coverage, subject to a cost sharing between the 
participant and CalOptima Health. 

 
For purposes of measuring the total postemployment retirement liability, deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary 
net position of CalOptima Health’s plan (OPEB Plan) and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan’s 
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis. For this purpose, benefit payments are 
recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are 
reported at fair value. 

 
U.S. GAAP requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within certain 
defined time frames. For this report, the following time frames are used: 

 
Measurement date June 30, 2023 
Measurement period July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023 
Valuation date January 1, 2024 

 
Covered employees – The following numbers of participants were covered by the benefit terms as of 
June 30: 

 
 2024   2023  

 
Inactives currently receiving benefits 

 
78 

 
76 

Active employees 60 65 
Inactives entitled to but not yet receiving benefits  2   3 

Total  140   144 
 

Contributions – The contribution requirements of plan members and CalOptima Health are established 
and may be amended by the Board of Directors. CalOptima Health’s contribution is based on projected 
pay-as-you-go financing requirements, with no additional amount to prefund benefits. CalOptima Health 
contributed approximately $522,000, including $468,000 in premium payments for retirees and $54,000 
for implied subsidies, for the year ended June 30, 2024. CalOptima Health contributed approximately 
$528,000, which related to implied subsidies, for the year ended June 30, 2023. The most recent actuarial 
report for the Plan was June 30, 2023. As of that point, the actuarial accrued liability and unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability for benefits were approximately $17,370,000. 
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Actuarial assumptions – CalOptima Health’s total postemployment retirement liability was measured as 
of June 30, 2023, and the assumptions used to calculate the total postemployment retirement liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation dated January 1, 2024. The actuarial valuation was rolled forward to 
determine the total postemployment retirement liability as of June 30, 2024, and is based on the following 
actuarial methods and assumptions: 

 
Salary increases 2.75% per annum, in aggregate 

 
Medical trend Non-Medicare – 8.50% for 2025, decreasing to an ultimate rate of 3.45% 

in 2076 
Medicare (Non-Kaiser) – 7.50% for 2025, decreasing to an ultimate rate of 

3.45% in 2076 
Medicare (Kaiser) – 6.25% for 2025, decreasing to an ultimate rate of 3.45% 

in 2076 
 

Discount rate 3.65% at June 30, 2023, Bond Buyer 20 Index 
3.54% at June 30, 2022, Bond Buyer 20 Index 

 
Mortality, retirement CalPERS 2000-2019 Experience Study 

Post-retirement mortality projected fully generational with Scale MP-2021 

 
General inflation 2.50% per annum 

 
 

Discount rate and long-term rate of return – The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability 
was 3.65 percent for June 30, 2023. There were no plan investments; as such, the expected long-term 
rate of return on investment is not applicable. 

 
Changes in the net OPEB liability – Changes in the net OPEB liability were as follows: 

 
Balance at June 30, 2023  $ 18,975,000  

 
Changes for the year 

 

Service cost 472,000 
Interest 679,000 
Actual vs. expected experience (3,332,000) 
Assumption changes 1,104,000 
Contributions – employer  (528,000) 

 
Net changes  (1,605,000) 

 
Balance at June 30, 2024  $ 17,370,000  
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Balance at June 30, 2022  $ 22,178,000  
 

Changes for the year 
Service cost 668,000 
Interest 487,000 
Contributions – employer (529,000) 
Assumption changes  (3,829,000) 

 
Net changes  (3,203,000) 

 
Balance at June 30, 2023  $ 18,975,000  

 
Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate – The following presents the net 
OPEB liability as of June 30, 2024, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current 
discount rate: 

 
1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increase 

 (2.65%)   (3.65%)   (4.65%)  
 

Total OPEB liability $ 19,841,000 $ 17,370,000 $ 15,316,000 
 
 

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in health care cost trend rates – The following 
presents the net OPEB liability as of June 30, 2024, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it 
were calculated using health care cost trend rates that are 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point 
higher than the current health care cost trend rates: 

 
  1% Decrease     Current Rate    1% Increase  

 

Total OPEB liability $ 15,102,000 $ 17,370,000 $ 20,166,000 
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For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 CalOptima Health recognized a reduction to OPEB 
expense of approximately $2,227,000 and $1,679,000, respectively. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the 
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the 
following sources: 

 
June 30, 2024 

 Deferred 
Outflows of 

 Resources  

Deferred 
Inflows of 

 Resources  

Differences between expected and actual experience $ - $ 3,679,000 
Changes in assumptions $ 828,000 2,719,000 
Employer contributions made subsequent to   

measurement date  522,000   - 

Total  $ 1,350,000   $ 6,398,000 
  

 June 30, 2023  
 Deferred Deferred 
 Outflows of Inflows of 
  Resources   Resources  

Differences between expected and actual experience $ - $ 2,867,000 
Changes in assumptions 1,068,000 4,921,000 
Employer contributions made subsequent to   

measurement date  528,000   - 

Total  $ 1,596,000   $ 7,788,000 

 
The $522,000 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the June 
30, 2023 measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the total post-employment retirement 
liability during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. 

 
Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized as expense 
as follows: 

 
Years Ending June 30,  

2025 $ (3,573,000) 
2026 (1,440,000) 
2027  (557,000) 

  $ (5,570,000) 

 
The required schedule of changes in total OPEB liability and related ratios immediately following the 
notes to the financial statements presents multiyear trend information about the actuarial accrued liability 
for benefits. 
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Note 9 – Restricted Net Position 
 

On June 28, 2000, CalOptima Health became a fully licensed health care service plan under the Act, as 
required by statutes governing the Healthy Families program. Under the Act, CalOptima Health is 
required to maintain and meet a minimum level of TNE as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, of $127,852,909 
and $107,969,096, respectively. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Organization is in compliance with its 
TNE requirement. 

 
The Act further required that CalOptima Health maintain a restricted deposit in the amount of $300,000. 
CalOptima Health met this requirement as of June 30, 2024 and 2023. 

 
 

Note 10 – Lease Commitments 
 

CalOptima Health leases office space and equipment under noncancelable, long-term operating leases, 
with minimum annual payments as follows: 

 
 
 
Years Ending June 30, 

Minimum Lease 
 Payments  

2025 $ 631,929 
2026 653,016 
2027 710,210 
2028 768,055 
2029 791,097 
Thereafter  1,678,549 

  $ 5,232,856 

 
Rental expense under operating leases was approximately $713,000 for the years ended June 30, 2024 
and 2023, respectively. 

 
 

Note 11 – Contingencies 
 

Litigation – CalOptima Health is party to various legal actions and is subject to various claims arising in 
the ordinary course of business. Management believes that the disposition of these matters will not have 
a material adverse effect on CalOptima Health’s financial position or results of operations. 

 
Regulatory matters – The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, 
state, and local governments. Violations of these laws and regulations could result in expulsion from 
government health care programs together with the imposition of significant fines and penalties. 
Management believes that CalOptima Health is in compliance with fraud and abuse, as well as other 
applicable government laws and regulations. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject 
to future government review and interpretation, as well as regulatory actions unknown or unasserted at 
this time. 
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Note 12 –Subscription-based Information Technology Arrangements 
 

CalOptima Health has several subscription contracts that expire at various dates through 2028 with some 
having certain renewal options. For those contracts where renewal options are reasonably certain to be 
exercised, CalOptima Health recognizes renewal option periods in the determinations of its intangible 
right-to-use subscription assets and subscription liabilities. CalOptima Health uses various rates ranging 
from 3.25 percent to 8 percent to determine the present value of the subscription liabilities. The 
amortization on the intangible subscription asset amounted to approximately $7,500,000 and $3,600,000 
during the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and is included in depreciation and 
amortization on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. As of June 30, 2024 
and 2023, CalOptima Health recognized approximately $19,291,000 and $18,018,000, respectively, in 
intangible right-to-use subscription assets which is comprised of the intangible right-to-use subscription 
asset cost of approximately $30,372,000 and $21,733,000, respectively, less accumulated amortization of 
approximately $11,081,000 and $3,714,000, respectively. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023 CalOptima 
Health recognized approximately $17,730,000 and $16,730,000, respectively, in SBITA subscription 
liabilities. 

 
The future subscription payments under SBITA agreements as of June 30, 2024 are as follows: 

 
 Subscriptions  

 
Years Ending June 30, 

 Principal   Interest   Total  

2025 $ 8,125,577 $ 988,688 $ 9,114,265 
2026 6,201,136 569,961 6,771,097 
2027 4,911,800 196,803 5,108,603 
2028  311,281   1,922   313,203 

Total undiscounted cash flows 19,549,794 1,757,374 21,307,168 
Less: present value discount    3,576,669 

Total subscription liabilities    $ 17,730,499 

Back to ItemBack to Agenda



 

 

 

 
 

 
Supplementary Information 

Back to ItemBack to Agenda



60 

 

 

Orange County Health Authority, A Public Agency dba Orange Prevention and Treatment 
Integrated Medical Assistance dba CalOptima Health 

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios 
Years Ended June 30 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  2024   2023   2022   2021   2020   2019   2018   2017   2016   2015  
Total pension liability           

Service cost $  19,761,157 $  17,958,280 $  16,033,791 $  15,223,385 $  14,303,164 $  13,491,596 $  13,118,795 $  10,272,406 $ 8,363,183 $ 6,464,105 
Interest 19,987,952 17,450,590 15,591,711 13,770,107 12,107,314 10,431,464 9,136,725 7,702,198 6,620,025 5,661,111 
Differences between expected           

and actual experience 5,143,171 8,006,529 (477,252) (405,662) 1,904,567 2,812,748 632,642 102,384 1,444,808 - 
Changes in assumptions - (1,930,719) - - - (4,737,905) 9,163,547 - (1,963,270) - 
Benefit payments, including refunds 

of employee contributions 
 

 (5,027,500) 
 

 (4,332,714) 
 
 (3,311,997) 

 
 (3,576,922) 

 
 (2,841,212) 

 
 (2,748,699) 

 
 (2,068,356) 

 
 (2,111,578) 

 
 (1,676,666) 

 
 (1,326,364) 

Net change in total pension liability 39,864,780 37,151,966 27,836,253 25,010,908 25,473,833 19,249,204 29,983,353 15,965,410 12,788,080 10,798,852 

Total pension liability – beginning  277,170,471  240,018,505  212,182,252   187,171,344  161,697,511  142,448,307  112,464,954   96,499,544  83,711,464  72,912,613 

Total pension liability – ending  317,035,251  277,170,471  240,018,505   212,182,252  187,171,344  161,697,511  142,448,307   112,464,954  96,499,544  83,711,465 
 
Plan fiduciary net position 

Contributions – employer 

 

 
$14,017,949 

 

 
$11,688,269 

 

 
10,742,812 

 

 
9,608,656 

 

 
8,661,466 

 

 
7,588,200 

 

 
5,234,580 

 

 
3,787,544 

 

 
3,033,171 

 

 
3,119,804 

Contributions – employee 10,478,979 8,634,939 7,981,938 7,518,241 6,853,391 6,213,420 5,793,911 4,951,820 4,142,126 3,385,296 
Net investment income 15,053,200 (18,576,662) 42,647,021 8,189,430 9,377,613 10,225,467 11,496,425 498,498 1,913,380 12,062,654 
Benefit payments, including refunds (5,027,500)  -        

of employee contributions - (4,332,714) (3,311,997) (3,576,922) (2,841,212) (2,748,699) (2,068,356) (2,111,578) (1,676,666) (1,326,364) 
Other changes in fiduciary net position  (174,062)  (149,157)  (181,370)  (225,629)  (98,234)  (530,428)  (143,264)  (54,828)  (101,246)  - 

Net change in fiduciary net position 34,348,566 (2,735,325) 57,878,404 21,513,776 21,953,024 20,747,960 20,313,296 7,071,456 7,310,765 17,241,390 

Plan fiduciary net position – beginning  236,705,326  239,440,651  181,562,247   160,048,471  138,095,447  117,347,487  97,034,191   89,962,735  82,651,970  65,410,580 

Plan fiduciary net position – ending  271,053,892  236,705,326  239,440,651   181,562,247  160,048,471  138,095,447  117,347,487   97,034,191  89,962,735  82,651,970 

Plan net pension liability – ending  $  45,981,359  $  40,465,145  $ 577,854   $  30,620,005  $  27,122,873  $  23,602,064  $  25,100,820   $  15,430,763  $ 6,536,809  $ 1,059,495 
 
Plan fiduciary net position as 

percentage of the total liability 

 

 
 

85.50% 

 

 
 

85.40% 

 

 
 

99.76% 

 

 
 

85.57% 

 

 
 

85.51% 

 

 
 

85.40% 

 

 
 

82.38% 

 

 
 

86.28% 

 

 
 

93.23% 

 

 
 

98.73% 

Covered-employee payroll $ 120,641,983 $ 109,836,572 $ 103,913,095 $  98,088,822 $  91,587,145 $  85,764,390 $  80,217,654 $  68,583,296 $  55,676,606 $  40,940,556 

Plan net pension liability as a percentage           

of covered-employee payroll 38.11% 36.84% 0.56% 31.22% 29.61% 27.52% 31.29% 22.50% 11.74% 2.59% 
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Schedule of Plan Contributions 
Years Ended June 30 

 
2024   2023   2022   2021   2020   2019   2018   2017   2016   2015  

$  14,017,949 

 

 
$  11,688,269 

 

 
$  10,742,812 

 

 
$ 9,608,656 

 

 
$ 8,661,466 

 

 
$ 7,588,200 

 

 
$ 5,234,580 

 

 
$ 3,787,544 

 

 
$ 3,033,171 

 

 
$ 3,119,804 

         

(14,017,949)  (11,688,269)  (10,742,812)  (9,608,656)  (8,661,466)  (7,588,200)  (5,234,580)  (3,787,544)  (3,033,171)  (3,119,804) 

$ -   $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - 

$ 120,641,983 $ 109,836,572 $ 103,913,095 $  98,088,822 $  91,587,145 $  85,764,390 $  80,217,654 $  68,583,296 $  55,676,606 $  40,940,556 

11.62% 
 

10.64% 
 

10.34% 
 

9.80% 
 

9.46% 
 

8.85% 
 

6.53% 
 

5.52% 
 

5.45% 
 

7.62% 
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unty Health Authority, A Public Agency dba Orange Prevention and Treatment 
Integrated Medical Assistance dba CalOptima Health 

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 
Periods Ended June 30 

2023-2024 2022-2023 2021-2022 2020-2021 2019–2020 2018–2019 2017–2018 
(Measurement (Measurement (Measurement (Measurement (Measurement (Measurement (Measurement 

Period Period Period Period Period Period Period 
  2022–2023) 

y 
  2021–2022)   2020–2021)   2019–2020)   2018–2019)   2017–2018)   2016–2017)  

$ 472,000 $ 668,000 $ 1,149,000 $ 811,000 $ 832,000 $ 867,000 $ 1,012,000 
679,000 487,000 718,000 922,000 977,000 900,000 770,000 

- - - - - - - 
ence (3,332,000) - (6,241,000) - (1,072,000) - - 

1,104,000 (3,829,000) (4,514,000) 4,623,000 938,000 (1,067,000) (2,923,000) 
 (528,000)  (529,000)  (544,000)  (570,000)  (556,000)  (560,000)  (572,000) 

(1,605,000) (3,203,000) (9,432,000) 5,786,000 1,119,000 140,000 (1,713,000) 
g of year)  18,975,000  22,178,000  31,610,000  25,824,000  24,705,000  24,565,000  26,278,000  

ar)  $ 17,370,000  $ 18,975,000  $ 22,178,000  $ 31,610,000  $ 25,824,000  $ 24,705,000  $ 24,565,000  

$ 17,370,000 
  

$ 18,975,000 
  

$ 22,178,000 
  

$ 31,610,000 
  

$ 25,824,000 
  

$ 24,705,000 
  

$ 24,565,000 
8,536,000  8,864,000  9,126,000  8,513,000  8,353,000  8,150,000  9,135,000 

oll 203.5%  214.1%  243.0%  371.3%  309.2%  303.1%  268.9% 

Back to ItemBack to Agenda



CalOptima Health
2 0 24  AU D IT  R ESULTS

Discussion with the Finance and 
Audit Committee (FAC)

September 19, 2024

Back to ItemBack to Agenda



1. Scope of Services
2. Summary of Audit Process
3. Areas of Audit Emphasis
4. Matters to Be Communicated to the FAC
5. Your Service Team

Agenda

2 Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Health Back to ItemBack to Agenda



Scope of Services

We have performed the following services for CalOptima Health:

3 Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Health

Attest Services

• Annual financial statement audit as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Nonattest Services

• Assisted management with drafting the financial 
statements, excluding Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024.

• Assisted in the completion of the Auditee portion of the 
Data Collection Form for the single audit as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2024.

• Implemented Moss Adams Claims Audit Tool application 
that is used by CalOptima Health’s claims department for 
conducting pre and post payment claims audits. Perform 
ongoing support of application and application 
customizations requested by CalOptima Health.
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• Our audit was generally performed in accordance with our initial plan. When the results 
of a planned audit procedure did not provide sufficient evidence or our original plan 
was based on an incorrect understanding of a transaction, process, or accounting 
policy of the entity, we made the necessary adjustments to our audit plan to incorporate 
the procedures necessary to support our opinion on the financial statements.

• We have completed our testing of all significant account balances and classes of 
transactions.

• We intend to issue our independent auditor’s report and communicate required internal 
control related matters dated September 20, 2024.

Summary of Audit Process 

4

Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Health

Back to ItemBack to Agenda



Areas of Audit Emphasis

During the audit, we identified the following:

5 Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Health

Significant Risks Procedures

Medical claims 
liability and claims 
expense

• Tested the internal controls for claims payments and provider capitation systems
• Tested the data used by the actuary to estimate the claims liability and reviewed the 

experience and qualifications of the actuary
• Performed a retrospective review of the prior year’s claims liability
• No material errors noted

Capitation revenue 
and receivables

• Developed independent expectations of revenue using membership data and rates
• Obtained an understanding of management’s reserve methodology and validated key 

inputs through our audit procedures
• Verified subsequent receipt of cash and other substantive procedures
• No material errors noted

Amounts due to 
the State of 
California or DHCS

• Tested the provider capitation and other accrual calculations and agreed amounts 
accrued to subsequent payments

• Obtained an understanding of the nature of the amounts payable to the State of California
• Tested inputs into the estimates used to calculate the amounts due
• No material errors noted
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Matters to Be Communicated to the FAC

6

We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion about 
whether the financial statements that have been prepared by 
management, with your oversight, are prepared, in all material 
respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial 
statements does not relieve you or management of your 
responsibilities.

Our responsibility with regard to the financial 
statement audit under U.S. auditing standards:

:

Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Health
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Matters to Be Communicated to the FAC

7 Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Health

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAS) as 
well as Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. As part of an audit conducted in 
accordance with these auditing standards, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Our responsibility with regard to the financial 
statement audit under U.S. auditing standards:
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Matters to Be Communicated to the FAC

8 Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Health

Our audit of the financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control or to identify deficiencies in the design 
or operation of internal control. Accordingly, we considered the 
entity’s internal control solely for the purpose of determining our audit 
procedures and not to provide assurance concerning such internal 
control.

Our responsibility with regard to the financial 
statement audit under U.S. auditing standards:
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Matters to Be Communicated to the FAC

9 Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Health

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related 
to the financial statement audit that are, in our professional judgment, 
relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting 
process. However, we are not required to design procedures for the 
purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you.

Our responsibility with regard to the financial 
statement audit under U.S. auditing standards:
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Matters to Be Communicated to the FAC

10 Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Health

MOSS ADAMS COMMENTS 

The quality of the entity’s accounting policies 
and underlying estimates are discussed 
throughout this presentation. There were no 
changes in the entity’s approach to applying the 
critical accounting policies.

• Significant management estimates that 
impacted the financial statements include 
the following: fair value of investments, 
capital asset lives, actuarially determined 
accruals for incurred but not reported (IBNR) 
medical claims liabilities, other non-IBNR 
medical liabilities, pension, and other 
postemployment liabilities.

MATTERS TO BE COMMUNICATED

Significant Accounting Practices

Our views about qualitative aspects of the 
entity’s significant accounting practices, 
including accounting policies, accounting 
estimates, and financial statement disclosures.
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Matters to Be Communicated to the FAC

11 Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Health

MOSS ADAMS COMMENTS 

The disclosures in the financial statements are 
clear and consistent. Certain financial statement 
disclosures are particularly sensitive because of 
their significance to financial statements users. 
We call your attention to the following notes: 

• Note 3 – Cash, Cash Equivalents, and 
Investments

• Note 5 – Medical Claims Liability
• Note 6 – Defined Benefit Pension Plan
• Note 8 – Postemployment Health Care Plan

MATTERS TO BE COMMUNICATED

Significant Accounting Practices

Our views about qualitative aspects of the 
entity’s significant accounting practices, 
including accounting policies, accounting 
estimates, and financial statement disclosures.
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Matters to Be Communicated to the FAC

12 Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Health

MOSS ADAMS COMMENTS 

No significant unusual transactions were 
identified during our audit of the entity’s financial 
statements.

MATTERS TO BE COMMUNICATED

Significant Unusual Transactions
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Matters to Be Communicated to the FAC

13 Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Health

MOSS ADAMS COMMENTS 

No significant difficulties were encountered 
during our audit of the entity’s financial 
statements.

MATTERS TO BE COMMUNICATED

Significant Difficulties Encountered 
During the Audit

We are to inform those charged with governance 
of any significant difficulties encountered in 
performing the audit. Examples of difficulties may 
include significant delays by management, an 
unreasonably brief time to complete the audit, 
unreasonable management restrictions 
encountered by the auditor, or an unexpected 
extensive effort required to obtain sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence.
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Matters to Be Communicated to the FAC

14 Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Health

MOSS ADAMS COMMENTS 

There were no disagreements with 
management.

MATTERS TO BE COMMUNICATED

Disagreements with Management

Disagreements with management, whether or 
not satisfactorily resolved, about matters that 
individually or in the aggregate could be 
significant to the entity’s financial statements, or 
the auditor’s report.
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Matters to Be Communicated to the FAC

15 Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Health

MOSS ADAMS COMMENTS 

There were no circumstances that affected the 
form and content of the auditor’s report.

MATTERS TO BE COMMUNICATED

Circumstances that affect the form and 
content of the auditor’s report
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Matters to Be Communicated to the FAC

16 Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Health

MOSS ADAMS COMMENTS 

There were no other findings or issues arising 
from the audit to report.

MATTERS TO BE COMMUNICATED

Other findings or issues arising from the audit 
that are, in the auditor’s professional judgment, 
significant and relevant to those charged with 
governance regarding their oversight of the 
financial reporting process.
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Matters to Be Communicated to the FAC

17 Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Health

MOSS ADAMS COMMENTS 

No uncorrected misstatements were identified.

MATTERS TO BE COMMUNICATED

Uncorrected Misstatements

Uncorrected misstatements, or matters 
underlying those uncorrected misstatements, as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, could 
potentially cause future-period financial 
statements to be materially misstated.
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Matters to Be Communicated to the FAC

18 Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Health

MOSS ADAMS COMMENTS 

No material misstatements were identified as a 
result of our audit. 

MATTERS TO BE COMMUNICATED

Material, Corrected Misstatements

Material, corrected misstatements that were 
brought to the attention of management as a 
result of audit procedures.
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Matters to Be Communicated to the FAC

19 Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Health

MOSS ADAMS COMMENTS 

We will request certain representations from 
management that will be included in the 
management representation letter which will be  
dated the same date as our audit report.

MATTERS TO BE COMMUNICATED

Representations Requested of 
Management
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Matters to Be Communicated to the FAC

20 Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Health

MOSS ADAMS COMMENTS 

We are not aware of instances where 
management consulted with other accountants 
about significant auditing or accounting matters.

MATTERS TO BE COMMUNICATED

Management’s Consultation with 
Other Accountants

When we are aware that management has 
consulted with other accountants about 
significant auditing or accounting matters, we 
discuss with those charged with governance our 
views about the matters that were the subject of 
such consultation.

Back to ItemBack to Agenda



Matters to Be Communicated to the FAC

21 Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Health

MOSS ADAMS COMMENTS 

No significant issues arose during the audit that 
have not been addressed elsewhere in this 
presentation.

MATTERS TO BE COMMUNICATED

Significant issues arising from the 
audit that were discussed, or the 
subject of correspondence with 
management

Back to ItemBack to Agenda



Matters to Be Communicated to the FAC

22 Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Health

MOSS ADAMS COMMENTS

Nothing to note.

• There were no material weaknesses noted 
and no significant deficiencies to 
communicate.

MATTERS TO BE COMMUNICATED
AU-C 240, Consideration of Fraud in a Financial 
Statement Audit

AU-C 250, Consideration of Laws and Regulations in 
an Audit of Financial Statements

AU-C 265, Communicating Internal Control Related 
Matters Identified in an Audit

AU-C 550, Related Parties

AU-C 560, Subsequent Events and Subsequently 
Discovered Facts

AU-C 570, The Auditor’s Consideration of An Entity’s 
Ability to Continue as a Going Concern

AU-C 600, Audits of Group Financial Statements 
(Including the Work of Component Auditors)

Back to ItemBack to Agenda



Matters to Be Communicated to the FAC

23 Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Health

MOSS ADAMS COMMENTS 

Nothing to note. 

 

MATTERS TO BE COMMUNICATED
AU-C 701, Communicating Key Audit Matters in the 
Independent Auditor’s Report

AU-C 705, Modifications to the Opinion in the 
Independent Auditor’s Report

AU-C 706, Emphasis-of-Matter Paragraphs and Other-
Matter Paragraphs in the Independent Auditor’s Report

AU-C 720, The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to 
Other Information Included in Annual Reports

AU-C 730, Required Supplementary Information

AU-C 930, Interim Financial Information

AU-C 935, Compliance Audits

Back to ItemBack to Agenda



Your Service Team

24

Aparna 
Venkateswaran
Engagement Reviewer

Aparna.Venkateswaran@
mossadams.com
949-517-9473

Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Health

Ashley Merda
Audit Senior Manager

Ashley.Merda@
mossadams.com
949-517-9431

Chris Pritchard
Concurring Reviewer

Chris.Pritchard@
mossadams.com
415-677-8262

Magdalena Bilska
Audit Senior

Magdalena.Bilska@
mossadams.com
949-517-9449

Nimar Kaushik
Audit Senior

Nimar.Kaushik@
mossadams.com
949-474-2676
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CALOPTIMA HEALTH BOARD ACTION AGENDA REFERRAL 
 

Action To Be Taken September 19, 2024 
Meeting of the CalOptima Health Board of Directors’ 

Finance and Audit Committee 
 

Report Item 
8. Recommend Reappointments to the CalOptima Health Board of Directors’ Investment 

Advisory Committee 
 
Contact 
Nancy Huang, Chief Financial Officer, (657) 235-6935 
 
Recommended Actions 
Recommend that the CalOptima Health Board of Directors reappoint the following individuals to the 
Board of Directors’ Investment Advisory Committee for two (2)-year terms beginning October 6, 
2024: 
 

1. Colleen Clark; 
2. David Hutchison, and 
3. James Meehan. 

 
Background 
At a Special Meeting of the CalOptima Health Board of Directors (Board) held on September 10, 
1996, the Board authorized the creation of the CalOptima Health Investment Advisory Committee 
(IAC), established qualifications for committee members, and directed staff to proceed with the 
recruitment of the volunteer members of the IAC. 
 
When creating the IAC, the Board stipulated that the IAC would consist of five (5) members, 
including one (1) member who would automatically serve by virtue of his or her position as 
CalOptima Health’s Chief Financial Officer (CFO). The remaining four (4) members would be 
Orange County residents who possess experience in one (1) or more of the following areas: 
investment banking, investment brokerage and sales, investment management, financial management 
and planning, commercial banking, or financial accounting. 
 
At the September 5, 2000, meeting, the Board approved expanding the composition of the IAC from 
five (5) members to seven (7) members in order to have more diverse opinions and backgrounds to 
advise CalOptima Health on its investment activities. 
 
Discussion 
The candidates recommended for reappointment have proven leadership and expertise in finance and 
accounting. 
 
Colleen Clark has served as a member of the IAC since October 1, 2020, and has over twenty-seven 
(27) years of experience and knowledge of public finance, investments, accounting, and government 
and legislative processes. Ms. Clark was the Director of Public Finance for the County of Orange and 
worked as the Deputy Chief Executive Officer and CFO for the Orange County Great Park. Ms. 

Back to Agenda



CalOptima Health Board Action Agenda Referral 
Recommend Reappointments to the 
CalOptima Health Board of Directors’ 
Investment Advisory Committee 
Page 2 
 

  

Clark served as the CFO at the Transportation Corridor Agency in Irvine and is a retired Certified 
Public Accountant. 
 
David Hutchison, CFA, has served as a member of the IAC since October 1, 2020, and currently 
works for Triad Investment Management where he is a Partner and Portfolio Manager. Mr. Hutchison 
has over twenty (20) years of investment experience and has previously held positions as President of 
Hutchison Capital, Investment Strategist for Chamberlain Group, and Senior Equity Analyst for 
Insight Capital Research & Management. He is a chartered financial analyst (CFA) charter holder and 
member of both CFA Institute and CFA Society Orange County. 
 
James Meehan is a current member of the Investment Committee of the Pacific Gas and Electric 
Company, which provides independent oversight and reporting of $5 billion in trust fund assets. Mr. 
Meehan has over forty (40) years of experience in the investment industry, with positions as 
Managing Director/Partner at Pacific Alternative Asset Management Company, Senior Vice 
President at PIMCO, and President of JPM Financial Group. Mr. Meehan has a B.A. in Economics 
from the University of Notre Dame, an M.B.A. in Finance and Accounting from the University of 
San Diego and holds his FINRA Series 3, 6, 22, and 63 licenses. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
There is no fiscal impact. Individuals appointed to the IAC assist CalOptima Health in suggesting 
updates to and ensuring compliance with CalOptima Health’s Board-approved Annual Investment 
Policy, and monitor the performance of CalOptima Health’s investments, investment advisor, and 
investment managers. 
 
Rationale for Recommendation 
The individuals recommended for CalOptima Health’s IAC have extensive experience that meets or 
exceeds the specified qualifications for membership on the IAC. 
 
Concurrence 
Troy R. Szabo, Outside General Counsel, Kennaday Leavitt 
Board of Directors’ Investment Advisory Committee 
 
Attachment 
None 
 
 
 
   /s/   Michael Hunn  09/12/2024 
Authorized Signature     Date 
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CALOPTIMA HEALTH BOARD ACTION AGENDA REFERRAL 
 

Action To Be Taken September 19, 2024 
Meeting of the CalOptima Health Board of Directors’ 

Finance and Audit Committee 
 
Report Item 
9. Recommend Reappointment and Committee Chair Reappointment to the CalOptima Health 

Board of Directors’ Investment Advisory Committee 
 
Contact 
Nancy Huang, Chief Financial Officer, (657) 235-6935 
 
Recommended Actions 
Recommend that the CalOptima Health Board of Directors reappoint Rodney Johnson: 

1. To the Investment Advisory Committee for a two (2)-year term, effective October 6, 2024; 
and 

2. To serve as Chair of the Investment Advisory Committee for a two (2)-year term, beginning 
October 6, 2024, and continuing until October 5, 2026, or until a successor is appointed. 

 
Background 
At a Special Meeting of the CalOptima Health Board of Directors (Board) held on September 10, 
1996, the Board authorized the creation of the CalOptima Health Investment Advisory Committee 
(IAC), established qualifications for committee members, and directed staff to proceed with the 
recruitment of the volunteer members of the IAC. 
 
When creating the IAC, the Board specified that the IAC would consist of five (5) members, 
including one (1) member who would automatically serve by virtue of his or her position as 
CalOptima Health’s Chief Financial Officer. The remaining four (4) members would be Orange 
County residents who possess experience in one (1) or more of the following areas: investment 
banking, investment brokerage and sales, investment management, financial management and 
planning, commercial banking, or financial accounting. 
 
At the September 5, 2000, meeting, the Board approved expanding the composition of the IAC from 
five (5) members to seven (7) members in order to have more diverse opinions and backgrounds to 
advise CalOptima Health on its investment activities. 
 
Discussion 
The candidate recommended for reappointment, Rodney Johnson, has consistently provided 
leadership and service to CalOptima Health through his long-time participation as an IAC member. 
 
Mr. Johnson has served as a member of the IAC since June 6, 2013, and has over thirty (30) years of 
experience in the field of public finance. He is currently the Treasurer for Los Angeles County 
Metropolitan Transportation. Mr. Johnson previously worked as the Deputy Treasurer of the Orange 
County Transportation Authority and has extensive public and private sector experience specializing 
in multiple areas of municipal finance, defined contribution, and defined benefit retirement plans. His 
responsibilities include all aspects of municipal debt issuance and administration, investment of 
public funds, and creation, implementation, and management of public policy. Mr. Johnson has an 
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M.P.A. from California State University, Long Beach and a B.A. from California State University, 
Fullerton. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
There is no fiscal impact. An individual appointed to the IAC assists CalOptima Health in suggesting 
updates to and ensuring compliance with CalOptima Health’s Board-approved Annual Investment 
Policy, and monitors the performance of CalOptima Health’s investments, investment advisors, and 
investment managers. 
 
Rationale for Recommendation 
The individual recommended for CalOptima Health’s IAC has extensive experience that meets or 
exceeds the specified qualifications for membership on the IAC. 
 
Concurrence 
Troy R. Szabo, Outside General Counsel, Kennaday Leavitt 
Board of Directors’ Investment Advisory Committee 
 
Attachment 
None 
 
 
 
   /s/   Michael Hunn  09/12/2024 
Authorized Signature     Date 
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Our 
Mission​
To serve member 
health with 
excellence and 
dignity, respecting 
the value and needs 
of each person.​

Our 
Vision
By 2027, remove 
barriers to health 
care access for our 
members, implement 
same-day treatment 
authorizations and 
real-time claims 
payments for our 
providers, and 
annually assess 
members’ social 
determinants of 
health.

1
CalOptima Health, A Public Agency

Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
September 19, 2024

Nancy Huang, Chief Financial Officer

Financial Summary
July 31, 2024
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Financial Highlights: 
July 2024
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○ Notable events/items in July 2024
 $526.2 million of Board-approved Medi-Cal (MC) Provider 

Rate Increases effective July 2024 through December 2026
 $1.9 million of Provider Workforce Development payments

Financial Highlights Notes: 
July 2024

Back to Agenda
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○ Change in Net Assets Surplus or (Deficit)
 Month To Date (MTD) July 2024: $2.4 million, favorable to 

budget $19.7 million or 113.8% driven primarily by net 
investment income

○ Enrollment
 MTD: 910,928 members, favorable to budget 4,206 or 0.5% 

○ Revenue
 MTD: $364.5 million, favorable to budget $7.0 million or 2.0% 

driven by the MC Line of Business (LOB) due to prior year 
revenue

FY 2024-25: Management Summary

Back to Agenda



5

○ Medical Expenses
 MTD: $368.9 million, unfavorable to budget $12.3 million 

or 3.5% driven by MC LOB
• Primarily due to higher-than-expected utilization in Facilities, 

Professional and Managed Long-Term Services and Supports 
(MLTSS) claims

○ Administrative Expenses
 MTD: $18.9 million, favorable to budget $5.7 million or 

23.0%

○ Non-Operating Income (Loss)
 MTD: $25.8 million, favorable to budget $19.4 million or 

305.6% due to net investment income

FY 2024-25: Management Summary 
(cont.)

Back to Agenda
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○ Medical Loss Ratio (MLR)
 MTD: Actual 101.2%, Budget 99.8%

○ Administrative Loss Ratio (ALR)
 MTD: Actual 5.2%, Budget 6.9%

○ Balance Sheet Ratios
 Current ratio*: 1.8
 Board Designated Reserve level: 2.86
 Statutory Designated Reserve level: 1.03
 Net-position: $2.4 billion, including required Tangible Net 

Equity (TNE) of $129.6 million

FY 2024-25: Key Financial Ratios

*Current ratio compares current assets to current liabilities. It measures 
CalOptima Health’s ability to pay short-term obligationsBack to Agenda



7

Enrollment Summary: 
July 2024

*CalOptima Health Total does not include MSSPBack to Agenda
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Consolidated Revenue & Expenses: 
July 2024 MTD
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Balance Sheet: As of
July 2024

Back to Agenda



10

Board Designated Reserve and TNE 
Analysis: As of July 2024

Back to Agenda



11

Spending Plan: As of 
July 2024
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Homeless Health Initiative and 
Allocated Funds: 
As of July 2024
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Housing and Homelessness 
Incentive Program

As of July 2024
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@CalOptima
www.caloptima.org

Stay Connected With Us
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UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

July 31, 2024 
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Actual Budget $ Variance % Variance

Member Months 910,928 906,722 4,206 0.5%

Revenues 364,495,576 357,511,618 6,983,958 2.0%

Medical Expenses 368,942,408 356,629,323 (12,313,085)  (3.5%)

Administrative Expenses 18,922,484 24,574,716 5,652,232 23.0%

Operating Margin (23,369,316) (23,692,421) 323,105 1.4%

Non-Operating Income (Loss)

Net Investment Income/Expense 27,743,765 6,666,660 21,077,105 316.2%

Net Rental Income/Expense (32,539) (117,280) 84,741 72.3%

Net MCO Tax 2,309 - 2,309 100.0%

Grant Expense (1,953,924) (198,333) (1,755,591)  (885.2%)

Total Non-Operating Income (Loss) 25,759,611 6,351,047 19,408,564 305.6%

Change in Net Assets 2,390,296 (17,341,374) 19,731,670 113.8%

Medical Loss Ratio 101.2% 99.8% 1.5%

Administrative Loss Ratio 5.2% 6.9% 1.7%

Operating Margin Ratio  (6.4%)  (6.6%) 0.2%

Total Operating 100.0% 100.0%

CalOptima Health - Consolidated

Financial Highlights

For the One Month Ending July 31, 2024

July 2024

Page 3
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Total FTE's MTD
Actual Budget Fav/Unfav

Medi-Cal 1,286 1,361 75
OneCare 170 186 16
PACE 107 113 6
MSSP 20 25 5
Total 1,583 1,685 101

MM per FTE MTD
Actual Budget Fav/Unfav

Medi-Cal 694 653 (41)
OneCare 102 93 (8)
PACE 5 4 (1)
MSSP 24 23 (1)
Consolidated 575 538 (37)

Open FTE
Total Medical Admin

Medi-Cal 76 32 44
OneCare 9 6 3
PACE 3 2 1
MSSP 2 1 1
Total 90 41 49

For the One Month Ending July 31, 2024
Full Time Employee Data

CalOptima Health - Consolidated

Page 4
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MEMBER MONTHS

REVENUE $ PMPM $ PMPM $ PMPM

Medi-Cal $326,646,004 $365.74 $318,214,555 $357.99 $8,431,449 $7.75

OneCare 33,315,969 1,924.55 35,149,566 2,025.21 (1,833,597) (100.66)

PACE 4,320,741 8,539.01 3,893,980 8,320.47 426,761 218.54

MSSP 212,862 450.03 253,517 446.33 (40,655) 3.70

  Total Operating Revenue 364,495,576         400.14 357,511,618          394.29 6,983,958 5.85

MEDICAL EXPENSES

Medi-Cal 335,869,970         376.07 319,488,435          359.42 (16,381,535) (16.65)

OneCare 29,845,248 1,724.06 33,126,880 1,908.67 3,281,632 184.61

PACE 3,014,203 5,956.92 3,773,267 8,062.54 759,064 2,105.62

MSSP 212,987 450.29 240,741 423.84 27,754 (26.45)

  Total Medical Expenses 368,942,408         405.02 356,629,323          393.32 (12,313,085) (11.70)

GROSS MARGIN (4,446,832) (4.88) 882,295 0.97 (5,329,127) (5.85)

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and Benefits 12,965,151 14.23 13,980,048 15.42 1,014,897 1.19

Professional Fees 528,414 0.58 1,486,776 1.64 958,362 1.06

Purchased Services 2,007,164 2.20 2,879,158 3.18 871,994 0.98

Printing & Postage 181,242 0.20 843,997 0.93 662,755 0.73

Depreciation & Amortization 711,172 0.78 1,027,958 1.13 316,786 0.35

Other Expenses 2,155,814 2.37 3,913,336 4.32 1,757,522 1.95

Indirect Cost Allocation, Occupancy 373,526 0.41 443,443 0.49 69,917 0.08

  Total Administrative Expenses 18,922,484 20.77 24,574,716 27.10 5,652,232 6.33

NET INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS (23,369,316)          (25.65) (23,692,421) (26.13) 323,105 0.48

INVESTMENT INCOME

Interest Income 15,667,507 17.20 6,666,660 7.35 9,000,847 9.85

Realized Gain/(Loss) on Investments (150,398) (0.17) - - (150,398) (0.17)

Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Investments 12,226,656 13.42 - - 12,226,656 13.42

  Total Investment Income 27,743,765 30.46 6,666,660 7.35 21,077,105 23.11

NET RENTAL INCOME/EXPENSE (32,539) (0.04) (117,280) (0.13) 84,741 0.09

NET MCO TAX 2,309 - - - 2,309 - 

GRANT EXPENSE (1,953,924) (2.14) (198,333) (0.22) (1,755,591) (1.92)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 2,390,296 2.62 (17,341,374) (19.13) 19,731,670 21.75

MEDICAL LOSS RATIO 101.2% 99.8% 1.5%

ADMINISTRATIVE LOSS RATIO 5.2% 6.9% 1.7%

910,928 906,722 4,206 

Actual Budget Variance

CalOptima Health - Consolidated - Month to Date

Statement of Revenues and Expenses

For the One Month Ending July 31, 2024

Page 5
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Medi-Cal OneCare PACE MSSP Consolidated

MEMBER MONTHS 893,111 17,311 506 473 910,928

REVENUES
     Capitation Revenue 326,646,004$               33,315,969$            4,320,741$        212,862$          364,495,576$
          Total Operating Revenue 326,646,004 33,315,969              4,320,741          212,862            364,495,576

MEDICAL EXPENSES
     Provider Capitation 112,974,612 14,999,872              127,974,484
     Claims 149,062,758 5,586,521 1,114,619          155,763,898
     MLTSS 51,350,595 15,508               30,890              51,396,993
     Prescription Drugs 8,289,213 634,005             8,923,217
     Case Mgmt & Other Medical 22,482,005 969,642 1,250,071          182,097            24,883,815
          Total Medical Expenses 335,869,970 29,845,248              3,014,203          212,987            368,942,408

Medical Loss Ratio 102.8% 89.6% 69.8% 100.1% 101.2%

GROSS MARGIN (9,223,966) 3,470,721                1,306,538          (125) (4,446,832) 

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
     Salaries & Benefits 11,571,376 1,136,812 163,155             93,808              12,965,151
     Non-Salary Operating Expenses 2,418,415 229,979 67,009               1,417 2,716,820
     Depreciation & Amortization 710,234 939 711,172
     Other Operating Expenses 2,133,818 7,561 8,399 6,037 2,155,814
     Indirect Cost Allocation, Occupancy (668,667) 1,020,480 14,383               7,330 373,526
          Total Administrative Expenses 16,165,175 2,394,832                253,885             108,591            18,922,484

Administrative Loss Ratio 4.9% 7.2% 5.9% 51.0% 5.2%

Operating Income/(Loss) (25,389,141) 1,075,889                1,052,652          (108,716)          (23,369,316) 

Investments and Other Non-Operating 2,309 25,759,611

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (25,386,832)$               1,075,889$              1,052,652$        (108,716)$        2,390,296$

BUDGETED CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (22,217,025) (1,176,133)               (182,466)            (116,797)          (17,341,374) 

Variance to Budget - Fav/(Unfav) (3,169,807)$ 2,252,022$              1,235,118$        8,081$              19,731,670$  

CalOptima Health - Consolidated - Month to Date
Statement of Revenues and Expenses by LOB

For the One Month Ending July 31, 2024

Page 6Back to Agenda



        CalOptima Health 
Unaudited Financial Statements as of July 31, 2024 

MONTHLYRESULTS: 

• Change in Net Assets is $2.4 million, favorable to budget $19.7 million
• Operating deficit is $23.4 million, with a surplus in non-operating income of $25.8 million

Change in Net Assets by Line of Business (LOB) ($ millions): 

July 2024 

Actual Budget Variance 
Medi-Cal   (25.4) (22.2) (3.2) 

OneCare 1.1 (1.2) 2.3 

PACE 1.1 (0.2) 1.2 

MSSP (0.1) (0.1) 0.0 

Total Operating Income (Loss) (23.4) (23.7) 0.3 

Non-Operating Income (Loss) 

Net Investment Income/Expense 27.7 6.7 21.1 

Net Rental Income/Expense 0.0 (0.1) 0.1 

Net Operating Tax 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Grant Expense (2.0) (0.2) (1.8) 

Net QAF & IGT Income/Expense 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Other Income/Expense 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Total Non-Operating Income/(Loss) 25.8 6.4 19.4 

TOTAL 2.4 (17.3) 19.7 

Page 7
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July 2024

Enrollment (by Aid Category) Actual Budget $ Variance %Variance

SPD 145,255 135,811 9,444 7.0%

TANF Child 271,982 274,183 (2,201) (0.8%)

TANF Adult 127,866 138,427 (10,561) (7.6%)

LTC 2,458 2,628 (170) (6.5%)

MCE 335,825 328,242 7,583 2.3%

WCM 9,725 9,607 118 1.2%

Medi-Cal Total 893,111 888,898 4,213 0.5%

OneCare 17,311 17,356 (45) (0.3%)

PACE 506 468 38 8.1%

MSSP 473 568 (95) (16.7%)

CalOptima Health Total 910,928 906,722 4,206 0.5%

Enrollment (by Network)

HMO 292,966 305,473 (12,507) (4.1%)

PHC 178,523 180,244 (1,721) (1.0%)

Shared Risk Group 142,978 135,868 7,110 5.2%

Fee for Service 278,644 267,313 11,331 4.2%

Medi-Cal Total 893,111 888,898 4,213 0.5%

OneCare 17,311 17,356 (45) (0)

PACE 506 468 38 8.1%

MSSP 473 568 (95) (16.7%)

CalOptima Health Total 910,928 906,722 4,206 0.5%

Note:* Total membership does not include MSSP

CalOptima Health - Consolidated

Enrollment Summary

For the One Month Ending July 31, 2024

Page 8
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Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 YTD Actual YTD Budget Variance

HMOs

SPD 17,150 17,150 16,304 846

TANF Child 66,405 66,405 69,075 (2,670)

TANF Adult 54,590 54,590 63,200 (8,610)

LTC 2 2 2

MCE 153,578 153,578 155,514 (1,936)

WCM 1,241 1,241 1,380 (139)

Total 292,966 292,966 305,473 (12,507)

PHCs

SPD 4,906 4,906 4,511 395

TANF Child 140,053 140,053 142,491 (2,438)

TANF Adult 3,994 3,994 4,894 (900)

LTC 0 0

MCE 22,999 22,999 21,872 1,127

WCM 6,571 6,571 6,476 95

Total 178,523 178,523 180,244 (1,721)

Shared Risk Groups

SPD 7,270 7,270 6,479 791

TANF Child 32,783 32,783 31,890 893

TANF Adult 27,519 27,519 29,230 (1,711)

LTC 0 1 (1)

MCE 74,704 74,704 67,531 7,173

WCM 702 702 737 (35)

Total 142,978 142,978 135,868 7,110

Fee for Service (Dual)

SPD 100,293 100,293 93,850 6,443

TANF Child 0 2 (2)

TANF Adult 1,145 1,145 1,816 (671)

LTC 2,178 2,178 2,346 (168)

MCE 4,008 4,008 8,996 (4,988)

WCM 6 6 9 (3)

Total 107,630 107,630 107,019 611

Fee for Service (Non-Dual - Total)

SPD 15,636 15,636 14,667 969

TANF Child 32,741 32,741 30,725 2,016

TANF Adult 40,618 40,618 39,287 1,331

LTC 278 278 281 (3)

MCE 80,536 80,536 74,329 6,207

WCM 1,205 1,205 1,005 200

Total 171,014 171,014 160,294 10,720

Grand Totals

SPD 145,255 145,255 135,811 9,444

TANF Child 271,982 271,982 274,183 (2,201)

TANF Adult 127,866 127,866 138,427 (10,561)

LTC 2,458 2,458 2,628 (170)

MCE 335,825 335,825 328,242 7,583

WCM 9,725 9,725 9,607 118

Total MediCal MM 893,111 893,111 888,898 4,213

OneCare 17,311 17,311 17,356 (45)

PACE 506 506 468 38

MSSP 473 473 568 (95)

Grand Total 910,928 910,928 906,722 4,206

Note:* Total membership does not include MSSP

CalOptima Health

Enrollment Trend by Network

Fiscal Year 2025
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ENROLLMENT: 
Overall, July enrollment was 910,928 

• Favorable to budget 4.206 or 0.5%  

• Decreased 8,124 or 0.9% from Prior Month (PM) (June 2024) 

• Decreased 77,788 or 7.9% from Prior Year (PY) (July 2023) 

 

Medi-Cal enrollment was 893,111 

• Favorable to budget 4,213 or 0.5% 

• Seniors and Persons with Disabilities (SPD) favorable to budget 9,444 

• Medi-Cal Expansion (MCE) favorable to budget 7,583  

• Whole Child Model (WCM) favorable to budget 118 

• Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) unfavorable to budget 12,762 

• Long-Term Care (LTC) unfavorable to budget 170 

• Decreased 8,192 from PM 

 

OneCare enrollment was 17,311  

• Unfavorable to budget 45 or 0.3% 

• Increased 58 from PM 
 

PACE enrollment was 506 

• Favorable to budget 38 or 8.1% 

• Increased 10 from PM 

 
MSSP enrollment was 473 

• Unfavorable to budget 95 or 16.7% due to MSSP currently being understaffed.  There is a staff to member 

ratio that must be met.  

• Decreased 10 from PM 
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Actual Budget $ Variance % Variance Actual Budget $ Variance % Variance

893,111                888,898              4,213                 0.5% Member Months 893,111               888,898              4,213                  0.5%

Revenues

326,646,004         318,214,555       8,431,449          2.6% Medi-Cal Capitation Revenue 326,646,004        318,214,555        8,431,449           2.6%

326,646,004         318,214,555       8,431,449          2.6% Total Operating Revenue 326,646,004        318,214,555        8,431,449           2.6%

Medical Expenses

112,974,612         112,577,048       (397,564)            (0.4%) Provider Capitation 112,974,612        112,577,048        (397,564)             (0.4%)

73,446,035           65,769,075         (7,676,960)         (11.7%) Facilities Claims 73,446,035          65,769,075          (7,676,960)          (11.7%)

75,616,723           70,725,416         (4,891,307)         (6.9%) Professional Claims 75,616,723          70,725,416          (4,891,307)          (6.9%)

51,350,595           49,034,014         (2,316,581)         (4.7%) MLTSS 51,350,595          49,034,014          (2,316,581)          (4.7%)

11,890,148           10,275,560         (1,614,588)         (15.7%) Incentive Payments 11,890,148          10,275,560          (1,614,588)          (15.7%)

8,094,011             9,277,113           1,183,102          12.8% Medical Management 8,094,011            9,277,113           1,183,102           12.8%

2,497,847             1,830,209           (667,638)            (36.5%) Other Medical Expenses 2,497,847            1,830,209           (667,638)             (36.5%)0.0%

335,869,970         319,488,435       (16,381,535)       (5.1%)   Total Medical Expenses 335,869,970        319,488,435        (16,381,535)        (5.1%)

(9,223,966)            (1,273,880)          (7,950,086)         (624.1%) Gross Margin (9,223,966)          (1,273,880)          (7,950,086)          (624.1%)

Administrative Expenses

11,571,376           12,438,819         867,443             7.0% Salaries, Wages & Employee Benefits 11,571,376          12,438,819          867,443              7.0%

526,591                1,374,418           847,827             61.7% Professional Fees 526,591               1,374,418           847,827              61.7%

1,759,037             2,363,425           604,388             25.6% Purchased Services 1,759,037            2,363,425           604,388              25.6%

132,787                575,522              442,735             76.9% Printing & Postage 132,787               575,522              442,735              76.9%

710,234                1,026,358           316,124             30.8% Depreciation & Amortization 710,234               1,026,358           316,124              30.8%

2,133,818             3,771,034           1,637,216          43.4% Other Operating Expenses 2,133,818            3,771,034           1,637,216           43.4%

(668,667)               (606,431)             62,236               10.3% Indirect Cost Allocation, Occupancy (668,667)             (606,431)             62,236                10.3%

16,165,175           20,943,145         4,777,970          22.8% Total Administrative Expenses 16,165,175          20,943,145          4,777,970           22.8%

Non-Operating Income (Loss)

0.0% 0.0%

2,309                    -                     2,309                 100.0% Net  Operating Tax 2,309                  -                      2,309                  100.0%

2,309                    -                     2,309                 100.0%   Total Non-Operating Income (Loss) 2,309                  -                      2,309                  100.0%

(25,386,832)          (22,217,025)        (3,169,807)         (14.3%) Change in Net Assets (25,386,832)        (22,217,025)        (3,169,807)          (14.3%)

102.8% 100.4% 2.4% Medical Loss Ratio 102.8% 100.4% 2.4%

4.9% 6.6% 1.6% Admin Loss Ratio 4.9% 6.6% 1.6%

Month to Date Year to Date

CalOptima Health

Medi-Cal

Statement of Revenues and Expenses

For the One Month Ending July 31, 2024
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MEDI-CAL INCOME STATEMENT– JULY MONTH: 

REVENUES of $326.6 million are favorable to budget $8.4 million driven by: 

• Favorable volume related variance of $1.5 million

• Favorable price related variance of $6.9 million due primarily to prior year retroactive enrollment

  MEDICALEXPENSES of $335.9 million are unfavorable to budget $16.4 million driven by: 

• Unfavorable volume related variance of $1.5 million

• Unfavorable price related variance of $14.9 million due to:

➢ Facilities Claims expenses unfavorable variance of $7.4 million due to higher-than-expected

utilization

➢ Professional Claims expense unfavorable variance of $4.6 million due to higher-than-expected

utilization

➢ Managed Long-Term Services and Supports (MLTSS) expense unfavorable variance of $2.1

million

➢ Incentive Payments expense unfavorable variance of $1.6 million

➢ Offset by net remaining expenses favorable variance of $0.7 million

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES of $16.2 million are favorable to budget $4.8 million driven by:

• Non-Salary expenses favorable to budget $3.9 million

• Salaries, Wages & Employee Benefits expense favorable to budget $0.9

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS is ($25.4) million, unfavorable to budget $3.2 million
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Actual Budget $ Variance % Variance Actual Budget $ Variance % Variance

17,311              17,356               (45)                   (0.3%) Member Months 17,311                17,356                  (45)                 (0.3%)

Revenues

23,960,704       25,788,529        (1,827,825)       (7.1%) Medicare Part C Revenue 23,960,704         25,788,529           (1,827,825)     (7.1%)

9,355,265         9,361,037          (5,772)              (0.1%) Medicare Part D Revenue 9,355,265           9,361,037             (5,772)            (0.1%)

33,315,969       35,149,566        (1,833,597)       (5.2%) Total Operating Revenue 33,315,969         35,149,566           (1,833,597)     (5.2%)

Medical Expenses

14,999,872       15,747,648        747,776           4.7% Provider Capitation 14,999,872         15,747,648           747,776          4.7%

3,681,966         4,777,677          1,095,711        22.9% Inpatient 3,681,966           4,777,677             1,095,711       22.9%

1,904,556         1,740,596          (163,960)          (9.4%) Ancillary 1,904,556           1,740,596             (163,960)        (9.4%)

8,289,213         8,934,171          644,959           7.2% Prescription Drugs 8,289,213           8,934,171             644,959          7.2%

(21,905)             513,556             535,461           104.3% Incentive Payments (21,905)              513,556                535,461          104.3%

991,547            1,413,232          421,685           29.8% Medical Management 991,547              1,413,232             421,685          29.8%

29,845,248       33,126,880        3,281,632        9.9% Total Medical Expenses 29,845,248         33,126,880           3,281,632       9.9%

3,470,721         2,022,686          1,448,035        71.6% Gross Margin 3,470,721           2,022,686             1,448,035       71.6%

Administrative Expenses

1,136,812         1,249,499          112,687           9.0% Salaries, Wages & Employee Benefits 1,136,812           1,249,499             112,687          9.0%

406                   102,083             101,677           99.6% Professional Fees 406                     102,083                101,677          99.6%

181,345            455,700             274,355           60.2% Purchased Services 181,345              455,700                274,355          60.2%

48,228              243,950             195,722           80.2% Printing & Postage 48,228                243,950                195,722          80.2%

7,561                121,504             113,943           93.8% Other Operating Expenses 7,561                  121,504                113,943          93.8%

1,020,480         1,026,083          5,603               0.5% Indirect Cost Allocation, Occupancy 1,020,480           1,026,083             5,603              0.5%0.0% 0.0%

2,394,832         3,198,819          803,987           25.1% Total Administrative Expenses 2,394,832           3,198,819             803,987          25.1%

1,075,889         (1,176,133)         2,252,022        191.5% Change in Net Assets 1,075,889           (1,176,133)           2,252,022       191.5%

89.6% 94.2% (4.7%) Medical Loss Ratio 89.6% 94.2% (4.7%)

7.2% 9.1% 1.9% Admin Loss Ratio 7.2% 9.1% 1.9%

Month to Date Year to Date

CalOptima Health

OneCare

Statement of Revenues and Expenses

For the One Month Ending July 31, 2024
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ONECARE INCOME STATEMENT – JULY MONTH: 
 

 REVENUES of $33.3 million are unfavorable to budget $1.8 million driven by: 

• Unfavorable volume related variance of $0.1 million 

• Unfavorable price related variance of $1.7 million  

 

 

MEDICALEXPENSES of $29.8 million are favorable to budget $3.3 million driven by: 

• Favorable volume related variance of $0.1 million 

• Favorable price related variance of $3.2 million 

 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES of $2.4 million are favorable to budget $0.8 million driven by: 

• Non-Salary expenses favorable to budget $0.7 million  

• Salaries, Wages & Employee Benefits expense favorable to budget $0.1 million 

 

 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS is $1.1 million, favorable to budget $2.3 million 
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Actual Budget $ Variance % Variance Actual Budget $ Variance % Variance

506                       468                 38               8.1% Member Months 506                      468                       38                       8.1%

Revenues

3,235,072             2,938,645       296,427      10.1% Medi-Cal Capitation Revenue 3,235,072            2,938,645             296,427              10.1%

724,030                719,822          4,208          0.6% Medicare Part C Revenue 724,030               719,822                4,208                  0.6%

361,639                235,513          126,126      53.6% Medicare Part D Revenue 361,639               235,513                126,126              53.6%0.0% 0.0%

4,320,741             3,893,980       426,761      11.0% Total Operating Revenue 4,320,741            3,893,980             426,761              11.0%

Medical Expenses

1,250,071             1,408,289       158,218      11.2% Medical Management 1,250,071            1,408,289             158,218              11.2%

417,350                737,096          319,746      43.4% Facilities Claims 417,350               737,096                319,746              43.4%

485,349                811,288          325,939      40.2% Professional Claims 485,349               811,288                325,939              40.2%

634,005                537,206          (96,799)       (18.0%) Prescription Drugs 634,005               537,206                (96,799)               (18.0%)

15,508                  18,941            3,433          18.1% MLTSS 15,508                 18,941                  3,433                  18.1%

211,920                260,447          48,527        18.6% Patient Transportation 211,920               260,447                48,527                18.6%0.0% 0.0%

3,014,203             3,773,267       759,064      20.1% Total Medical Expenses 3,014,203            3,773,267             759,064              20.1%

1,306,538             120,713          1,185,825   982.4% Gross Margin 1,306,538            120,713                1,185,825           982.4%

Administrative Expenses

163,155                179,157          16,002        8.9% Salaries, Wages & Employee Benefits 163,155               179,157                16,002                8.9%

-                        8,858              8,858          100.0% Professional Fees -                       8,858                    8,858                  100.0%

66,782                  60,033            (6,749)         (11.2%) Purchased Services 66,782                 60,033                  (6,749)                 (11.2%)

227                       24,525            24,298        99.1% Printing & Postage 227                      24,525                  24,298                99.1%

939                       1,600              661             41.3% Depreciation & Amortization 939                      1,600                    661                     41.3%

8,399                    12,548            4,149          33.1% Other Operating Expenses 8,399                   12,548                  4,149                  33.1%

14,383                  16,458            2,075          12.6% Indirect Cost Allocation, Occupancy 14,383                 16,458                  2,075                  12.6%0.0% 0.0%

253,885                303,179          49,294        16.3% Total Administrative Expenses 253,885               303,179                49,294                16.3%

1,052,652             (182,466)         1,235,118   676.9% Change in Net Assets 1,052,652            (182,466)               1,235,118           676.9%

69.8% 96.9% (27.1%) Medical Loss Ratio 69.8% 96.9% (27.1%)

5.9% 7.8% 1.9% Admin Loss Ratio 5.9% 7.8% 1.9%

Month to Date Year to Date

CalOptima Health

PACE

Statement of Revenues and Expenses

For the One Month Ending July 31, 2024
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Actual Budget $ Variance % Variance Actual Budget $ Variance % Variance

473                   568                   (95)              (16.7%) Member Months 473                    568                    (95)                 (16.7%)

Revenues

212,862             253,517             (40,655)       (16.0%) Revenue 212,862             253,517             (40,655)          (16.0%)

212,862             253,517             (40,655)       (16.0%) Total Operating Revenue 212,862             253,517             (40,655)          (16.0%)

Medical Expenses

182,097             207,784             25,687        12.4% Medical Management 182,097             207,784             25,687           12.4%

30,890               32,957               2,067          6.3% Waiver Services 30,890               32,957               2,067             6.3%0.0% 0.0%

182,097             207,784             25,687        12.4% Total Medical Management 182,097             207,784             25,687           12.4%

30,890               32,957               2,067          6.3% Total Waiver Services 30,890               32,957               2,067             6.3%

212,987             240,741             27,754        11.5% Total Program Expenses 212,987             240,741             27,754           11.5%

(125)                  12,776               (12,901)       (101.0%) Gross Margin (125)                   12,776               (12,901)          (101.0%)

Administrative Expenses

93,808               112,573             18,765        16.7% Salaries, Wages & Employee Benefits 93,808               112,573             18,765           16.7%

1,417                1,417                0                 0.0% Professional Fees 1,417                 1,417                 0                    0.0%

6,037                8,250                2,213          26.8% Other Operating Expenses 6,037                 8,250                 2,213             26.8%

7,330                7,333                3                 0.0% Indirect Cost Allocation, Occupancy 7,330                 7,333                 3                    0.0%

108,591             129,573             20,982        16.2% Total Administrative Expenses 108,591             129,573             20,982           16.2%

(108,716)           (116,797)           8,081          6.9% Change in Net Assets (108,716)            (116,797)            8,081             6.9%

100.1% 95.0% 5.1% Medical Loss Ratio 100.1% 95.0% 5.1%

51.0% 51.1% 0.1% Admin Loss Ratio 51.0% 51.1% 0.1%

Month to Date Year to Date

CalOptima Health

Multipurpose Senior Services Program

Statement of Revenues and Expenses

For the One Month Ending July 31, 2024
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Actual Budget $ Variance % Variance Actual Budget $ Variance % Variance

Revenues

-                    -                -              0.0% Rental Income -                   -                -              0.0%

-                    -                -              0.0% Total Operating Revenue -                   -                -              0.0%

Administrative Expenses

46,628               22,905          (23,723)        (103.6%) Purchased Services 46,628             22,905          (23,723)        (103.6%)

180,300             195,000        14,700        7.5% Depreciation & Amortization 180,300           195,000        14,700        7.5%

24,795               26,654          1,859          7.0% Insurance Expense 24,795             26,654          1,859          7.0%

97,187               181,186        83,999        46.4% Repair & Maintenance 97,187             181,186        83,999        46.4%

79,313               56,824          (22,489)        (39.6%) Other Operating Expenses 79,313             56,824          (22,489)        (39.6%)

(428,223)           (482,569)       (54,346)        (11.3%) Indirect Cost Allocation, Occupancy (428,223)          (482,569)       (54,346)        (11.3%)

-                    -                -              0.0% Total Administrative Expenses -                   -                -              0.0%

-                    -                -              0.0% Change in Net Assets -                   -                -              0.0%

CalOptima Health

Building - 505 City Parkway

Statement of Revenues and Expenses

For the One Month Ending July 31, 2024

Month to Date Year to Date
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Actual Budget $ Variance % Variance Actual Budget $ Variance % Variance

Revenues

156,423             135,866    20,557        15.1% Rental Income 156,423           135,866          20,557        15.1%

156,423             135,866    20,557        15.1% Total Operating Revenue 156,423           135,866          20,557        15.1%

Administrative Expenses

-                    -            -              0.0% Professional Fees -                   -                  -              0.0%

26,470               9,330        (17,140)       (183.7%) Purchased Services 26,470             9,330              (17,140)       (183.7%)

34,573               51,000      16,427        32.2% Depreciation & Amortization 34,573             51,000            16,427        32.2%

8,135                 8,746        611             7.0% Insurance Expense 8,135               8,746              611             7.0%

38,832               94,592      55,760        58.9% Repair & Maintenance 38,832             94,592            55,760        58.9%

48,022               25,978      (22,044)       (84.9%) Other Operating Expenses 48,022             25,978            (22,044)       (84.9%)

-                    -            -              0.0% Indirect Cost Allocation, Occupancy -                   -                  -              0.0%

156,033             189,646    33,613        17.7% Total Administrative Expenses 156,033           189,646          33,613        17.7%

391                    (53,780)     54,171        100.7% Change in Net Assets 391                  (53,780)           54,171        100.7%

CalOptima Health

Building - 500 City Parkway

Statement of Revenues and Expenses

For the One Month Ending July 31, 2024

Month to Date Year to Date
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Actual Budget $ Variance % Variance Actual Budget $ Variance % Variance

Revenues

8,000                 -            8,000          100.0% Rental Income 8,000               -            8,000          100.0%

8,000                 -            8,000          100.0% Total Operating Revenue 8,000               -            8,000          100.0%

Administrative Expenses

-                    -            -              0.0% Professional Fees -                   -            -              0.0%

26,107               42,500      16,393        38.6% Purchased Services 26,107             42,500      16,393        38.6%

9,397                 21,000      11,603        55.3% Depreciation & Amortization 9,397               21,000      11,603        55.3%

4,415                 -            (4,415)         (100.0%) Insurance Expense 4,415               -            (4,415)         (100.0%)

298                    -            (298)            (100.0%) Repair & Maintenance 298                  -            (298)            (100.0%)

713                    -            (713)            (100.0%) Other Operating Expenses 713                  -            (713)            (100.0%)

-                    -            -              0.0% Indirect Cost Allocation, Occupancy -                   -            -              0.0%

40,930               63,500      22,570        35.5% Total Administrative Expenses 40,930             63,500      22,570        35.5%

(32,930)             (63,500)     30,570        48.1% Change in Net Assets (32,930)            (63,500)     30,570        48.1%

CalOptima Health

Building - 7900 Garden Grove Blvd

Statement of Revenues and Expenses

For the One Month Ending July 31, 2024

Month to Date Year to Date
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     OTHER PROGRAM INCOME STATEMENTS – JULY MONTH: 

 PACE 

• CHANGE IN NET ASSETS is $1.1 million, favorable to budget $1.2 million driven primarily by lower-than-expected

utilization

 MSSP 

• CHANGE IN NET ASSETS is ($108,716), favorable to budget $8,081 due to lower-than-expected enrollment 

and utilization

 NON-OPERATING INCOME STATEMENTS – JULY MONTH 

 BUILDING 500 

• CHANGE IN NET ASSETS is $391, favorable to budget $54,171
➢ Net of $156,423 in rental income and $156,033 in expenses

 BUILDING 7900 

• CHANGE IN NET ASSETS is ($32,930), favorable to budget $30,570

 INVESTMENT INCOME 

• Favorable variance of $21.1 million due to $9.0 million of interest income and $12.1 million of realized and unrealized

gain on investments
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July-24 June-24 $ Change % Change

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 431,456,858         527,999,317          (96,542,460)              (18.3%)

Short-term Investments 1,811,449,506      1,777,895,940       33,553,566               1.9%

Premiums due from State of CA and CMS 519,060,585         554,686,484          (35,625,898)              (6.4%)

Prepaid Expenses and Other 12,258,407           11,169,119            1,089,288                 9.8%

  Total Current Assets 2,774,225,356      2,871,750,860       (97,525,504)              (3.4%)

Board Designated Assets

Board Designated Reserves 1,018,259,764      1,005,885,164       12,374,600               1.2%

Statutory Designated Reserves 133,879,815         131,878,274          2,001,541                 1.5%

  Total Designated Assets 1,152,139,579      1,137,763,438       14,376,141               1.3%

Restricted Deposit 300,000                300,000                 -                           0.0%

Capital Assets, Net 95,907,297           96,560,808            (653,511)                   (0.7%)

Total Assets 4,022,572,232      4,106,375,106       (83,802,874)              (2.0%)

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Advance Discretionary Payment 49,999,717           49,999,717            -                           0.0%

Net Pension 24,549,290           24,549,290            -                           0.0%

Other Postemployment Benefits 1,350,000             1,350,000              -                           0.0%

  Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 75,899,007           75,899,007            -                           0.0%

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 4,098,471,239      4,182,274,113       (83,802,874)              (2.0%)

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Medical Claims Liability 1,156,284,351      1,144,332,594       11,951,757               1.0%

Provider Capitation and Withholds 161,546,335         176,233,694          (14,687,359)              (8.3%)

Accrued Reinsurance Costs to Providers 9,111,531             7,511,531              1,600,000                 21.3%

Unearned Revenue 15,773,081           15,261,163            511,918                    3.4%

Accounts Payable and Other 89,909,675           172,319,606          (82,409,932)              (47.8%)

Accrued Payroll and Employee Benefits and Other 22,030,992           25,886,668            (3,855,676)                (14.9%)

Other Current Liabilities 107,551,092         106,693,306          857,786                    0.8%

  Total Current Liabilities 1,562,207,057      1,648,238,562       (86,031,505)              (5.2%)

GASB 96 Subscription Liabilities 16,754,820           16,955,572            (200,752)                   (1.2%)

Postemployment Health Care Plan 17,409,087           17,370,000            39,087                      0.2%

Net Pension Liability 45,981,359           45,981,359            -                           0.0%

Total Liabilities 1,642,352,323      1,728,545,493       (86,193,170)              (5.0%)

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Pension 2,248,445             2,248,445              -                           0.0%

Other Postemployment Benefits 6,398,000             6,398,000              -                           0.0%

  Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 8,646,445             8,646,445              -                           0.0%

Net Position

Required TNE 129,641,346         127,852,909          1,788,438                 1.4%

Funds in excess of TNE 2,317,831,124      2,317,229,266       601,858                    0.0%

   Total Net Position 2,447,472,470      2,445,082,175       2,390,296                 0.1%

TOTAL LIABILITIES & DEFERRED INFLOWS & NET POSITION 4,098,471,239      4,182,274,113       (83,802,874)              (2.0%)

CalOptima Health

Balance Sheet

July 31, 2024
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Investment Account Name Market Value

Low High Mkt - Low Mkt - High

Payden & Rygel Tier One 509,254,219         

MetLife Tier One 509,005,545         

Board Designated Reserves 1,018,259,764      890,364,243         1,068,437,092      127,895,520      (50,177,328)      

Current Reserve Level 2.86                     2.50                     3.00                     

Investment Account Name Market Value

Low High Mkt - Low Mkt - High

Payden & Rygel Tier Two 67,111,406           

MetLife Tier Two 66,768,409           

Statutory Designated Reserves 133,879,815         129,641,346         142,605,481         4,238,469          (8,725,666)        

Current Reserve Level 1.03                     1.00                     1.10                     

Statutory Designated Reserves

Benchmark Variance

CalOptima Health

Board Designated Reserve and TNE Analysis

as of July 31, 2024

Board Designated Reserves

Benchmark Variance
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July 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Change in net assets 2,390,296           

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation & Amortization 935,443              

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Prepaid expenses and other (1,089,288)          

Capitation receivable 35,625,898         

Medical claims liability 13,551,757         

Deferred revenue 511,918              

Payable to health networks (14,687,359)        

Accounts payable (82,409,932)        

Accrued payroll (3,816,589)          

Other accrued liabilities 657,035              

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (48,330,821)        

GASB 68, GASB 75 and Advance Discretionary Payment Adjustments -                          

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Net Asset transfer from Foundation -                          

Net cash provided by (used in) in capital and related financing activities -                          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Change in Investments (33,553,566)        

Change in Property and Equipment (281,932)             

Change in Restricted Deposit & Other -                          

Change in Board designated reserves (14,376,141)        

Change in Homeless Health Reserve -                          

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (48,211,639)        

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (96,542,460)        

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of period $527,999,317

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period 431,456,858       

July 31, 2024

Statement of Cash Flow

CalOptima Health
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BALANCE SHEET – JULY MONTH: 
 

ASSETS of $4.1 billion decreased $83.8 million from June or 2.0% 

• Operating Cash and Short-term Investments net decrease of $63.0 million is due to variable monthly MC capitation 

receipts and decrease in Provider capitation payments due to WCM retrospective risk corridor reconciliation  

• Premiums due from State of California (CA) and Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) decreased $35.6 

million due to timing of capitation payments, Calendar Year (CY) 2024 OneCare Risk Adjustment Factor (RAF) 

• Total Designated Assets increased $14.4 million due to interest income, realized gains and change in unrealized gains 

in long-term investments less outflow 

 

LIABILITIES of $1.6 billion decreased $86.2 million from June or 5.0% 

• Accounts Payable and other decreased $82.4 million due to Managed Care Organization (MCO) tax payments  

• Provider Capitation and Withholds decreased $14.7 million due primarily due to PY Targeted Rate Increase (TRI) 

capitation payment 

• Medical Claims Liabilities increased $12.0 million due to timing of claim payments 

 

 

NET ASSETS of $2.4 billion, increased $2.4 million from June or 0.1% 
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Back to Agenda



Category Item Description Amount (millions) Approved Initiative Expense to Date %
Total Net Position @ 7/31/2024 $2,447.5 100.0%

Resources Assigned Board Designated Reserve1 $1,018.3 41.6%
Statutory Designated Reserve1 $133.9 5.5%
Capital Assets, net of Depreciation $95.9 3.9%

Resources Allocated2 Homeless Health Initiative3 $17.0 $61.7 44.7 0.7%
Housing and Homelessness Incentive Program3 22.5 87.4 64.9 0.9%
Intergovernmental Transfers (IGT) 59.9 111.7 51.8 2.4%
Digital Transformation and Workplace Modernization4 58.1 100.0 41.9 2.4%
CalFresh Outreach Strategy 0.2 2.0 1.8 0.0%
CalFresh and Redetermination Outreach Strategy 1.9 6.0 4.1 0.1%
Coalition of Orange County Community Health Centers Grant 30.0 50.0 20.0 1.2%
OneCare Member Health Rewards and Incentives 0.2 0.5 0.3 0.0%
General Awareness Campaign 1.3 4.7 3.4 0.1%
Member Health Needs Assessment 1.1 1.3 0.2 0.0%
Five-Year Hospital Quality Program Beginning MY 2023 135.7 153.5 17.9 5.5%
Medi-Cal Annual Wellness Initiative 2.5 3.8 1.3 0.1%
Skilled Nursing Facility Access Program 10.0 10.0 0.0 0.4%
In-Home Care Pilot Program with the UCI Family Health Center 2.0 2.0 0.0 0.1%
National Alliance for Mental Illness Orange County Peer Support Program Grant 4.0 5.0 1.0 0.2%
Community Living and PACE center (previously approved for project located in Tustin) 17.6 18.0 0.4 0.7%
Wellness & Prevention Program Grant 2.1 2.7 0.6 0.1%
CalOptima Health Provider Workforce Development Fund Grant 45.6 50.0 4.4 1.9%
Distribution Event- Naloxone Grant 2.3 15.0 12.7 0.1%
Garden Grove Bldg. Improvement 10.0 10.5 0.5 0.4%
Post-Pandemic Supplemental 9.6 107.5 97.9 0.4%
CalOptima Health Community Reinvestment Program 37.1 38.0 0.9 1.5%
Outreach Strategy for newly eligible Adult Expansion members 4.3 5.0 0.7 0.2%
Quality Initiatives from unearned Pay for Value Program 23.3 23.3 0.0 1.0%
Expansion of CalOptima Health OC Outreach and Engagement Strategy 0.7 1.0 0.3 0.0%
Medi-Cal Provider Rate Increases 508.7 526.2 17.5 20.8%

Subtotal: $1,007.7 $1,396.8 $389.1 41.2%

Resources Available for New Initiatives Unallocated/Unassigned1 $191.7 7.8%

1 Total Designated Reserves and unallocated reserve amount can support approximately 108 days of CalOptima Health's current operations
2 Initiatives that have been paid in full in the previous year are omitted from the list of Resources Allocated
3 See HHI and HHIP summaries and Allocated Funds for list of Board approved initiatives.  Amount reported includes only portion funded by reserves
4 On June 6, 2024, the Board of Directors approved an update to the Digital Transformation Strategy which will impact these figures beginning July 2024

CalOptima Health
Spending Plan

For the One Month Ending July 31, 2024
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Item Name

Actual Budget Variance %

Member Months 910,928 906,722 4,206 0.5%

Operating Revenue 364,495,576 357,511,618 6,983,958 2.0%

Medical Expenses 368,942,408 356,629,323 (12,313,085) (3.5%)

General and Administrative Expense 18,922,484 24,574,716 5,652,232 23.0%

Non-Operating Income/(Loss) 25,759,611 6,351,047 19,408,564 305.6%

Summary of Income & Expenses 2,390,296 (17,341,374) 19,731,670 113.8%

Medical Loss Ratio (MLR) Actual Budget Variance

Consolidated 101.2% 99.8% 1.5%

Administrative Loss Ratio (ALR) Actual Budget Variance

Consolidated 5.2% 6.9% 1.7%

Key:
> 0%

> -20%, < 0%

< -20%

Investment Balance (excluding CCE) Current Month Prior Month Change %

@7/31/2024 2,914,322,823 2,875,867,220 38,455,603 1.3%

Unallocated/Unassigned Reserve Balance

Current Month

@ July 2024

Fiscal Year Ending 

June 2024 Change %

Consolidated 191,737,595 187,643,914 4,093,680 2.2%

Days Cash On Hand*  108

*Total Designated Reserves and unallocated reserve amount can support approximatley 108 days of CalOptima Health's current operations.
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As of July 31, 2024

  Key Financial Indicators

  CalOptima Health
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Actual Spend Approved Budget Variance $ Variance % Actual Spend Approved Budget Variance $ Variance % Actual Spend Approved Budget Variance $ Variance %

Capital Assets (Cost, Information Only):

Total Capital Assets 483,576                         404,167                            (79,409)                  -19.6% 483,576                        404,167                        (79,409)                  -19.6% 8,926,436                     24,404,876                   15,478,440                   63.4%

Operating Expenses:
Salaries, Wages & Benefits 578,516                         589,848                            11,332                   1.9% 578,516                        589,848                        11,332                   1.9% 11,584,783                   11,596,115                   11,332                           0.1%

Professional Fees 276,212                         522,875                            246,663                 47.2% 276,212                        522,875                        246,663                 47.2% 2,037,275                     2,283,938                     246,663                         10.8%

Purchased Services 22,848                           142,000                            119,153                 83.9% 22,848                           142,000                        119,153                 83.9% 172,848                         292,000                         119,153                         40.8%

GASB 96 Amortization Expenses 46,878                           293,417                            246,539                 84.0% 46,878                           293,417                        246,539                 84.0% 2,018,081                     2,264,620                     246,539                         10.9%

Other Expenses 680,919                         747,888                            66,969                   9.0% 680,919                        747,888                        66,969                   9.0% 14,210,411                   14,277,380                   66,969                           0.5%

Medical Management 229,257                         -                                    (229,257)               0.0% 229,257                        -                                 (229,257)                0.0% 2,980,335                     2,751,078                     (229,257)                       -8.3%

Total Operating Expenses 1,834,629                     2,296,028                        461,399                 20.1% 1,834,629                     2,296,028                     461,399                 20.1% 33,003,733                   33,465,131                   461,399                         1.4%

Funding Balance Tracking: Approved Budget Actual Spend Variance

Beginning Funding Balance 100,000,000                 100,000,000                    -                         

    Less:

Capital Assets¹ 31,525,709                   8,926,436                        22,599,273           

FY2023 Operating Budget² 8,381,011                     8,381,011                        -                         

FY2024 Operating Budget 22,788,092                   22,788,092                      -                         

FY2025 Operating Budget 27,552,335                   1,834,629                        25,717,706           

Ending Funding Balance 9,752,853                     58,069,832                      

Add: Prior year unspent Operating Budget -                                 

Total available Funding 9,752,853                     

¹ Staff will continue to monitor the project status of DTS' Capital Assets

² Unspent budget from this period is added back to available DTS funding

³ On June 6, 2024, the Board of Directors approved an update to the Digital Transformation Strategy 

which will impact these figures beginning July 2024.

Note: Report includes applicable transactions for GASB 96, Subscription.

July 2024 FY 2025 Year-to-Date All Time to Date

CalOptima Health

Digital Transformation Strategy ($100 million total reserve)

Funding Balance Tracking Summary

For the One Month Ending July 31, 2024
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Funds Allocation, approved initiatives:

 Allocated 

Amount Utilized Amount

Remaining 

Approved 

Amount

Enhanced Medi-Cal Services at the Be Well OC Regional Mental Health and Wellness Campus 11,400,000          11,400,000          -                       

Recuperative Care 6,194,190            6,194,190            -                       

Medical Respite 250,000               250,000               -                       

Day Habilitation (County for HomeKey) 2,500,000            2,500,000            -                       

Clinical Field Team Start-up & Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC) 1,600,000            1,600,000            -                       

CalOptima Health Homeless Response Team 1,681,734            1,681,734            -                       

Homeless Coordination at Hospitals 10,000,000          9,956,478            43,522                  

CalOptima Health Days, Homeless Clinical Access Program (HCAP) and FQHC Administrative Support 963,261               800,678               162,583                

FQHC (Community Health Center) Expansion 21,902                 21,902                 -                       

HCAP and CalOptima Health Days 9,888,914            3,421,240            6,467,675             

Vaccination Intervention and Member Incentive Strategy 123,348               54,649                 68,699                  

Street Medicine¹ 10,076,652          7,079,766            2,996,886             

Outreach and Engagement 7,000,000            -                       7,000,000             

Housing and Homelessness Incentive Program (HHIP)² 40,100,000          -                       40,100,000           

Subtotal of Approved Initiatives $101,800,000 $44,960,637 $56,839,364

Transfer of funds to HHIP² (40,100,000)         -                       (40,100,000)         

Program Total $61,700,000 $44,960,637 $16,739,364

Notes:

¹On March 7, 2024, CalOptima Health's Board of Directors approved $5M. $3.2 million remaining from Street Medicine Initiative (from the HHI reserve)

CalOptima Health

Summary of Homeless Health Initiatives (HHI) and Allocated Funds

As of July 31, 2024

  and $1.8 million from existing reserves to fund 2-year agreements to Healthcare in Action and Celebrating Life Community Health Center

²On September 1, 2022, CalOptima Health's Board of Directors approved reallocation of $40.1M from HHI to HHIP
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Summary by Funding Source: Total Funds  Allocated Amount Utilized Amount

Remaining 

Approved 

Amount Funds Available for New Initiatives

DHCS HHIP Funds 72,931,189 35,200,994 25,812,256 9,388,738 37,730,195¹

Existing Reserves & HHI Transfer 87,384,530 87,384,530 64,873,947 22,510,583 -

Total 160,315,719 122,585,524 90,686,203 31,899,321 37,730,195

Funds Allocation, approved initiatives:  Allocated Amount Utilized Amount

Remaining 

Approved 

Amount Funding Source(s)

Office of Care Coordination 2,200,000                 2,200,000                 -                  HHI

Pulse For Good 800,000                    431,300                    368,700           HHI

Consultant 600,000                    -                           600,000           HHI

Equity Grants for Programs Serving Underrepresented Populations 4,021,311                 3,271,805                 749,507           HHI & DHCS

Infrastructure Projects 5,832,314                 5,391,731                 440,583           HHI

Capital Projects 98,247,369               77,195,575               21,051,794      HHI, DHCS & Existing Reserves

System Change Projects 10,184,530               1,863,856                 8,320,674        DHCS

Non-Profit Healthcare Academy 700,000                    331,935                    368,065           DHCS

Total of Approved Initiatives $122,585,524¹ $90,686,202 $31,899,322

Notes:

¹Total funding $160.3 million: $40.1 million Board-approved reallocation from HHI, $47.2 million from CalOptima Health existing reserves and $73.0 million

  from DHCS HHIP incentive payments

CalOptima Health

Summary of Housing and Homelessness Incentive Program (HHIP) and Allocated Funds

As of July 31, 2024
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Transfer Month Line of Business From To Amount Expense Description Fiscal Year

July Medi-Cal ITS - Applications Management - System Development Enhancement 

for CalAIM

ITS - Applications Management - Care Management System - ZeOmega JIVA $249,000 To reallocate funds from ITS - Applications Management - System Development Enhancement for CalAIM to Care Management System – ZeOmega JIVA for reporting post Go Live. 2024-25

July Medi-Cal ITS - Infrastructure - Other Operating Expenses - Maintenance HW/SW 

- Server - VMWare

ITS - Infrastructure - Other Operating Expenses - Maintenance HW/SW - DocuSign $32,650 To repurpose funds from ITS - Infrastructure - Maintenance HW/SW – VMWare to Maintenance HW/SW – DocuSign to provide funding for additional signatures needed to avoid overage fees. 2024-25

July Medi-Cal Accounting - Purchased Services Accounting - Printing and Postage $20,000 To reallocate funds from Accounting – Purchased Services to Accounting – Printing and Postage to provide additional funding for toner purchase. 2024-25

This report summarizes budget transfers between general ledger classes that are greater than $10,000 and less than $250,000.

This is the result of Board Resolution No. 12-0301-01 which permits the CEO to make budget allocation changes within certain parameters.

CalOptima Health

Budget Allocation Changes

Reporting Changes as of July 31, 2024
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 4 

Attachment A: FY 2023-24 Operating Budget for All Lines of Business Non-Operating Items 

Attachment A: Fiscal Year 2023-24 Operating Budget for All Lines of Business and Non-Operating Items

Medi-Cal OneCare PACE MSSP Facilities Other Consolidated

Member Months 10,575,923                  211,878                     5,743                    6,816               -                    -                    10,793,544               

Avg Members 881,327                       17,656                       479                       568                  -                    -                    899,462                     

Revenues

Capitation revenue 3,578,731,345$           383,711,815$            49,407,644$         3,042,208$      -$                  -$                  4,014,893,012$       

Total 3,578,731,345$           383,711,815$            49,407,644$         3,042,208$      -$                  -$                  4,014,893,012$       

Medical Costs

1 Provider capitation 1,210,953,834$           170,221,061$            -$                      -$                -$                  -$                  1,381,174,895$       

2 Professional Facility & Ancillary 1,265,027,432$           70,337,505$              21,670,206$         -$                -$                  -$                  1,357,035,143$       

3 LTC/Skilled Nursing Facilities 608,348,656$              -$                          1,451,606$           395,487$         -$                  -$                  610,195,749$           

4 Prescription Drugs -$                             118,367,539$            5,779,360$           -$                -$                  -$                  124,146,899$           

5 Case Mgmt & Oth Medical 269,855,469$              20,298,960$              17,640,534$         2,216,540$      -$                  -$                  310,011,503$           

Total 3,354,185,390$           379,225,066$            46,541,707$         2,612,027$      -$                  -$                  3,782,564,190$       

MLR 93.73% 98.83% 94.20% 85.86% 94.21%

Gross Margin 224,545,955$              4,486,750$                2,865,937$           430,181$         -$                  -$                  232,328,822$           

Administrative Expenses

Salaries, Wages, & Employee Benefits 125,743,461$              14,014,634$              2,201,599$           1,104,778$      -$                  -$                  143,064,472$           

Non-Salary Operating Expenses 54,554,814$                6,534,141$                316,182$              105,300$         3,372,405$       -$                  64,882,842$             

Depreciation & Amortization 4,800,000$                  -$                          10,800$                -$                2,532,000$       -$                  7,342,800$               

Indirect Cost Allocation, Occupancy Expense (6,313,095)$                 11,383,000$              178,353$              90,300$           (5,904,405)$      -$                  (565,847)$                 

Total 178,785,179$              31,931,776$              2,706,934$           1,300,378$      -$                  -$                  214,724,267$           

ALR 5.00% 8.32% 5.48% 42.74% 5.35%

Operating Income/(Loss) 45,760,775$             (27,445,026)$         159,003$            (870,197)$     -$                 -$                 17,604,555$             

Digital Transformation Strategy (26,622,899)$    (26,622,899)$            

Non-Operating

Net Investment Income 25,000,000$      25,000,000$             

500 Building (392,553)$         (392,553)$                 

Total Non-Operating 24,607,447$   24,607,447$             
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Board Action Approval Details and Summary for Administrative Budget 

CalOptima Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget

Board Action Approval Summary

Board Action Approval Summary Medi-Cal OneCare PACE MSSP Facilities Other Net Impact

Avg Members -                    -                               

Revenues -$                             -$                          -$                      -$                  -$                  -$                    -$                             

Medical Costs 811,723$                     25,345$                     55,940$                7,153$              -$                  -$                    900,161$                     

Administrative Expenses

Salaries, Wages, & Employee Benefits 395,815$                     46,946$                     4,081$                  2,997$              -$                  -$                    449,839$                     

Non-Salary Operating Expenses 35,000$                       -$                          -$                      -$                  -$                  -$                    

Depreciation & Amortization -$                             -$                          -$                      -$                  -$                  -$                    -$                             

Indirect Cost Allocation, Occupancy -$                             -$                          -$                      -$                  -$                  -$                    -$                             

Total 465,815$                     46,946$                     4,081$                  2,997$              -$                  -$                    484,839$                     

Grant Expense -$                             -$                          -$                      -$                  -$                  -$                    -$                             

Net Impact 1,277,538$               72,291$                   60,021$              10,150$          -$                 -$                   1,385,000$               

CalOptima Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget

Board Action Approval Details 

Board Action Approval Details: Medi-Cal OneCare PACE MSSP Facilities Other Net Impact

1 BOD Date - June 29, 2023

Report Item No. 2

   To: Professional Fees 35,000$                       35,000$                     

2 BOD Date - November 2, 2023

Report Item No. 16

   To: Salaries, Wages & Employee Benefits 395,815$                     

   To: Medical Management 201,723$                     

   To: Salaries, Wages & Employee Benefits 46,946$                     

   To: Medical Management 25,345$                     

   To: Salaries, Wages & Employee Benefits 4,081$                  

   To: Medical Management 55,940$                

   To: Salaries, Wages & Employee Benefits 2,997$              

   To: Medical Management 7,153$              740,000$                   

3 BOD Date - December 7, 2023

Report Item No. 15

   To: Medical Management 610,000$                     610,000$                   
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CEO Administrative Budget Allocation Changes 

This report summarizes budget transfers between general ledger classes that are greater than $10,000 and less than $250,000.  

This is the result of Board Resolution No. 12-0301-01 which permits the CEO to make budget allocation changes within certain parameters. 

Transfer 

Month

Line of 

Business From To  Amount Expense Description

Fiscal 

Year

July Medi-Cal Facilities - Purchased Services - TB Shots, Flu 

Shots, COVID Related Services & COVID 

Cleaning/Building Sanitization

Facilities - Purchased Services - Moving Services $40,000 To repurpose from TB/Flu Shots and COVID Cleaning to provide more funding 

for Moving Services.

($16,000 from TB Shots, Flu Shots, COVID related services, $24,000 from 

COVID Cleaning/Building Sanitization)

2023-24

July Medi-Cal DTS Capital: I&O Internet Bandwidth DTS Capital: I&O Network Bandwidth $36,000 To reallocate funds from I&O Internet Bandwidth to I&O Network Bandwidth 

to cover shortage of fund for RFP. 

2023-24

July Medi-Cal Communication - Professional Fees - 

Marketing/Advertising Agency Consulting

Community Relations - Other Operating Expenses - 

Membership Fees

$60,000 To reallocate funds from Communication - Professional Fees 

Marketing/Advertising Agency Consulting to Community Relations - Membership 

Fees to help fund E-Indicator Sponsorship bi-weekly newsletter.

2023-24

July Medi-Cal IS - Application Development - Corporate 

Application HR - Dayforce In-View

IS - Application Development - Corporate 

Application HR - SilkRoad OpenHire and 

Wingspan

$23,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Application Development - Corporate Application 

HR - Dayforce In-View to Corporate Application HR - SilkRoad OpenHire and 

Wingspan due to shortage of funds for renewal of contract. 

2023-24

August Medi-Cal Quality Analytics - Other Operating Expenses - 

Incentives

Case Management - Other Operating Expenses - 

WPATH - Health Plan Provider Training

$24,500 To reallocate funds from Quality Analytics - Incentives to Case Management - 

WPATH - Health Plan Provider Training to provide funding for Blue Peak 

training.

2023-24

August Medi-Cal Quality Analytics - Other Operating Expenses - 

Incentives

Utilization Management - Purchased Services $74,000 To reallocate funds from Quality Analytics - Incentives to Utilization 

Management - Purchased Services to provide funding for the Periscope 

Implementation.

2023-24

August OneCare Pharmacy Management - Professional Fees Utilization Management - Purchased Services $15,000 To reallocate funds from Pharmacy Management - Professional Fees to 

Utilization Management - Purchased Services to provide funding for the 

Periscope Implementation.

2023-24

August Medi-Cal Strategic Development - Professional Fees - DC 

Equity Consultant & Equity Initiative Activities

Strategic Development - Other Operating 

Expenses - Incentives

$67,000 To reallocate funds from Strategic Development - DC Equity Consultant & 

Equity Initiative Activities to Strategic Development - Incentives to provide 

funding to purchase member incentive gift cards. 

2023-24

September OneCare Office of Compliance - Professional Fees - CPE 

Audit

Office of Compliance - Professional Fees - Blue 

Peak Services

$20,000 To reallocate funds from Strategic Development - Professional Fees - CPE Audit 

to Professional Fees - Blue Peak Services to provide funding for Blue Peak 

Services.

2023-24

September Medi-Cal Customer Service - Member Communication - 

Maintenance of Business, Ad-Hoc/New Projects

Provider Data Management Services - Purchased 

Services

$60,000 To reallocate funds from Customer Service - Member Communication - 

Maintenance of Business, Ad-Hoc/New Projects to Provider Data Management 

Services - Purchased Services to provide funding for provider directory PDF 

Remediation services. 

2023-24

September Medi-Cal Facilities - Audio Visual Enhancements Facilities - CalOptima Health New Vehicle $13,135 To reallocate funds from Facilities - Audio Visual Enhancements to Facilities - 

CalOptima Health New Vehicle for a new company vehicle.

2023-24

September Medi-Cal Medical Management - Other Operating Expenses 

- Training & Seminar

Behavioral Health Integration - Professional Fees $16,000 To reallocate funds from Medical Management - Other Operating Expenses - 

Training & Seminar to Behavioral Health Integration - Professional Fees to 

provide funding for Autism Spectrum Therapies.

2023-24

September Medi-Cal Population Health Management - Purchased 

Services -  Capacity Building Vendor

Population Health Management - Purchased 

Services - Capacity Building

$150,000 To repurpose funds from Purchased Services - Capacity Building Vendor to 

support the new Medi-Cal benefit, including incentives for contracting with CCN 

and delegated Health Networks, doula training, and technical assistance.

2023-24

September Medi-Cal IS - Enterprise Data & Sys Integration - 

Professional Fees

Enterprise Project Management Office - 

Professional Fees

$75,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Enterprise Data & Sys Integration - Professional 

Fees to Enterprise Project Management Office - Professional Fees to provide 

funding for the Business Continuity Project consultation. 

2023-24

September Medi-Cal IS - Application Development - Maintenance 

HW/SW

Enterprise Project Management Office - 

Professional Fees

$55,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Application Development - Maintenance HW/SW 

to Enterprise Project Management Office - Professional Fees to provide funding 

for the Business Continuity Project consultation.

2023-24

October Medi-Cal DTS Capital: Migrate Data Warehouse/Analytics 

to the Cloud

DTS Capital: Enterprise Data Quality 

Enhancement

$140,000 To reallocate funds from AppDev - Migrate Data Warehouse/Analytics to 

AppDev - Enterprise Data Quality Enhancement to help with Collibra Data 

Governance invoice.

2023-24

October Medi-Cal Medi-Cal/CalAIM - Other Operating Expenses - 

Food Service Supply

Medi-Cal/CalAIM - Other Operating Expenses - 

Travel

$16,000 To reallocate funds from Medi-Cal/CalAIM - Food Service Supply to Medi-

Cal/CalAIM - Travel to provide funding for Center for Care Innovations.

2023-24

October Medi-Cal IS - Infrastructure - Other Operating Expenses - 

Maintenance HW/SW

Provider Data Management Services - Purchased 

Services

$54,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Infrastructure - Maintenance HW/SW to Provider 

Data Management Services - Purchased Services to provide funding for the 

provider directory PDF remediation service. 

2023-24

October OneCare IS - Applications Management - Maintenance 

HW/SW

Provider Data Management Services - Purchased 

Services

$24,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Applications Management - Maintenance HW/SW 

to Provider Data Management Services - Purchased Services to provide funding 

for the provider directory PDF remediation service. 

2023-24

November Medi-Cal IS - Application Management - Maintenance 

HW/SW

Medical Management - Professional Fees $100,000 To reallocate funds from IS-Application Management - Maintenance HW/SW to 

Medical Management - Professional Fees to fund a consulting project.

2023-24

November Medi-Cal Executive Office - Professional Fees Executive Office - Other Operating Expenses - 

Professional Dues

$28,000 To reallocate funds from Executive Office - Professional Fees to Professional 

Dues to pay for CCI Membership.

2023-24

November Medi-Cal IS - Infrastructure - Misc HW/SW Technology 

Equipment (New Hire Equip)

IS - Infrastructure - HW/SW Maintenance (Palo 

Alto Firewall)

$84,000 To reallocate funds from Infrastructure - Misc HW/SW Technology Equipment 

(New Hire Equip) to HW/SW Maintenance (Palo Alto Firewall) to help with 

shortage of funds due to co-termed contract.

2023-24

December Medi-Cal 505 Building - Repair & Maintenance 505 Building - Purchased Services $228,798 To reallocate funds from 505 Building - Repair & Maintenance to Purchased 

Services to move security contracts to the appropriate account.

2023-24

December Medi-Cal 500 Building - Repair & Maintenance 500 Building - Purchased Services $192,120 To reallocate funds from 500 Building - Repair & Maintenance to Purchased 

Services to move security contracts to the appropriate account.

2023-24

December Medi-Cal IS - Infrastructure - Misc HW/SW Equip Supplies IS - Infrastructure - Maintenance HW/SW - F5 

Network

$47,000 To reallocate funds from Infrastructure - Misc HW/SW Equip Supplies to 

Infrastructure - Maintenance HW/SW - F5 Network to help with the annual 

renewal invoice.

2023-24

CalOptima Health

Budget Allocation Changes
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CEO Administrative Budget Allocation Changes (Cont’d) 

This report summarizes budget transfers between general ledger classes that are greater than $10,000 and less than $250,000.  

This is the result of Board Resolution No. 12-0301-01 which permits the CEO to make budget allocation changes within certain parameters. 

Transfer 

Month

Line of 

Business From To  Amount Expense Description

Fiscal 

Year

December Medi-Cal IS - Infrastructure - Misc HW/SW Equip Supplies IS - Infrastructure - Maintenance HW/SW - 

Calabrio

$29,000 To reallocate funds from Infrastructure - Misc HW/SW Equip Supplies to 

Infrastructure - Maintenance HW/SW - Calabrio to help with the annual renewal 

invoice.

2023-24

December Medi-Cal IS - Applications Management - Maintenance 

HW/SW (IBM WebSphere)

IS - Enterprise Data & Sys Integration - 

Maintenance HW/SW (Tableau)

$249,990 To reallocate funds from IS - Applications Management - Maintenance HW/SW 

(IBM WebSphere) to IS - Enterprise Data & Sys Integration - Maintenance 

HW/SW (Tableau) to help with Tableau invoice.

2023-24

December Medi-Cal Facilities - Comp. supply/Minor Equipment Facilities - R&M - Building $100,000 To reallocate fund from Facilities - Comp. Supply/Minor Equipment to R&M - 

Building to address unanticipated repair costs.

2023-24

December Medi-Cal IS - Applications Management - Professional Fees - 

Altruista

IS - Application Management - Purchased 

Services - MCG

$40,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Applications Management - Professional Fees - 

Altruista to Purchased Services - MCG to help with CMS requirement to add a 

link in CalOptima Health’s website for Medicare members.

2023-24

January Medi-Cal IS - Infrastructure - Other Operating Expenses - 

Misc HW/SW Equipment

Delegation Oversight - Professional Fees $96,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Infrastructure - Misc HW/SW Equipment to 

Delegation Oversight - Professional Fees to provide funding for a consultant 

services. 

2023-24

January Medi-Cal IS - Application Development - Professional Fees Operations Management - Professional Fees $150,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Application Development – Professional Fees to 

Operations Management - Professional Fees to help with additional services. 

2023-24

January Medi-Cal IS - Applications Management - Integrated 

Provider Data Management System

IS - Infrastructure - New Ticketing Tool for 

CalOptima Health Staff

$50,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Applications Management - Integrated Provider 

Data Management System to New Ticketing Tool for CalOptima Health Staff 

due to shortfall of funds in Phase II. 

2023-24

February Medi-Cal IS - Infrastructure - New Hire Equipment Executive Office - Public Activities $17,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Infrastructure - New Hire Equipment to Executive 

Office - Public Activities to provide funding to support events. 

2023-24

February OneCare Customer Service - Printing and Postage - 

Communications

Cultural & Linguistics - Purchased Services $50,000 To reallocate funds from Customer Service - Printing and Postage to Cultural & 

Linguistics - Purchased Services to supplement the anticipated gap.

2023-24

February Medi-Cal IS - Enterprise Data & Sys Integration - 

Professional Fees

Grievance & Appeals - Purchased Services $20,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Enterprise Data & Sys Integration - Professional 

Fees to Grievance & Appeals - Purchased Services to provide additional funding 

for data scanning and storage.

2023-24

February Medi-Cal IS - Infrastructure - Other Operating Expenses - 

Misc HW/SW Equipment Supplies

Provider Data Management Services - Purchased 

Services

$71,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Infrastructure - Misc HW/SW Equipment Supplies 

to Provider Data Management Services - Purchased Services to provide funding 

for provider directory PDF Remediation Services.

2023-24

February OneCare Communications - Professional Fees Communications - Printing and Postage - Member 

Communication

$150,000 To reallocate funds from Communications - Professional Fees to Member 

Communication to provide funding needed for OneCare marketing and 

advertising program.

2023-24

February Medi-Cal IS - Infrastructure - Other Operating Expenses - 

Misc HW/SW Equip - New Hire Equipment

IS - Infrastructure - Other Operating Expenses - 

HW/SW Maintenance - Network - Cisco

$18,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Infrastructure - New Hire Equipment to Network - 

Cisco due to shortfall of funds. 

2023-24

March OneCare Quality Analytics - Professional Fees Quality Analytics - Other Operating Expenses - 

Incentives

$120,000 To reallocate funds from Quality Analytics - Professional Fees to Quality 

Analytics - Incentives to provide funding for OC Health Reward Program. 

2023-24

March OneCare Quality Analytics - Purchased Services - Stars 

Initiatives

Quality Analytics - Other Operating Expenses - 

Incentives

$120,000 To reallocate funds from Quality Analytics - Stars Initiatives to Quality Analytics - 

Incentives to provide funding for OC Health Reward Program. 

2023-24

March Medi-Cal Facilities - Other Operating Expenses - Office 

Supplies

Facilities - Other Operating Expenses - R&M - 

Building

$100,000 To reallocate funds from Facilities - Office Supplies to R&M - Building to 

provide funding needed for building maintenance.

2023-24

March Medi-Cal IS - Infrastructure - Other Operating Expenses -  

Misc HW/SW Equip - Technology Equipment

IS - Infrastructure - Other Operating Expenses - 

Maintenance HW/SW - UGovernIT

$40,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Infrastructure - Technology Equipment to 

UGovernIT due to shortfall of funds. 

2023-24

March Medi-Cal IS - Infrastructure - Other Operating Expenses - 

Telephone - Telco Misc HW/SW

IS - Infrastructure - Other Operating Expenses - 

Maintenance HW/SW - Palo Alto Firewall

$118,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Infrastructure - Telco Misc HW/SW to Palo Alto 

Firewall due to shortfall of funds. 

2023-24

March Medi-Cal IS - Application Development - Provider Virtual 

Agent Support

IS - Application Development - Migrate Website 

Content Management System to the Cloud

$67,100 To reallocate funds from Provider Virtual Agent Support to Migrate Website 

Content Management System to the Cloud due to shortfall of funds. 

2023-24

March Medi-Cal IS - Enterprise Data & Sys Integration - 

Professional Fees

Executive Office - Professional Fees $28,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Enterprise & Sys Integration - Professional Fees to 

Executive Office - Professional Fees to provide funding for communications 

consultant.

2023-24

March Medi-Cal IS - Cyber Security - Other Operating Expenses - 

Maintenance HW/SW - Data Loss Prevention 

Suite

IS - Cyber Security - Other Operating Expenses - 

Subscriptions - Tipping Point Intrusion Prevention 

System

$32,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Cyber Security - Maintenance HW/SW - Data 

Loss Prevention Suite to Subscriptions - Tipping Point Intrusion Prevention 

System due to shortage of funds. 

2023-24

March Medi-Cal IS - Infrastructure - Other Operating Expenses - 

Misc HW/SW Equip - Computer Equipment 

Refresh

IS - Application Development - Other Operating 

Expenses - Maintenance HW/SW - Secure Auth 

Web Access Management 

$220,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Infrastructure - Computer Equipment Refresh to IS 

- Application Development - Secure Auth Web Access Management due to 

shortage of funds. 

2023-24

April Medi-Cal IS - Applications Management - Other Operating 

Expenses - Maint HW/SW - Vendor Selection 

TBD

IS - Applications Management - Other Operating 

Expenses - Maint HW/SW - MCG Integrated 

Criteria

$20,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Applications Management - Maint HW/SW - 

Vendor Selection TBD to Maint HW/SW - MCG Integrated Criteria due to 

shortage of funds. 

2023-24

April Medi-Cal Communications - Printing and Postage - Member 

Communication

Communications- Purchased Services - 

Advertising

$25,000 To reallocate funds from Communications - Member Communication to 

Advertising to provide additional funding for the remainder of the fiscal year. 

2023-24

April PACE PACE Marketing - Printing and Postage - Member 

Communication

PACE Marketing - Purchased Services - 

Advertising

$34,000 To reallocate funds from PACE Marketing - Member Communication to 

Advertising to provide additional funding for the remainder of the fiscal year. 

2023-24

April OneCare Sales & Marketing - Purchased Services - FMO 

and/or Broker Agency Commissions and Override 

Fees

IS - Applications Management - Other Operating 

Expenses - HealthEdge Burgess Group

$150,000 To reallocate funds from the Sales & Marketing - FMO and/or Broker Agency 

Commissions and Override Fees to IS - Applications Management - HealthEdge 

Burgess Group due to shortage of funds. 

2023-24

April Medi-Cal IS - Infrastructure - Other Operating Expenses - 

Misc. HW/SW Technology Equipment

IS - Application Development - Other Operating 

Expenses - Ceridian

$161,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Infrastructure - Misc. HW/SW Technology 

Equipment to IS - Application Development - Ceridian due to shortage of funds. 

2023-24

May Medi-Cal IS - Enterprise Data & Sys Integration - 

Professional Fees

Grievance & Appeals - Professional Fees $82,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Enterprise Data & Sys Integration - Professional 

Fees to Grievance & Appeals - Professional Fees to provide funding needed for 

consulting service. 

2023-24

May Medi-Cal Equity and Community Health - Printing and 

Postage

Equity and Community Health - Purchased 

Services

$130,000 To reallocate funds from Equity and Community Health - Printing and Postage to 

Purchased Services to provide funding for a new training module.

2023-24

CalOptima Health

Budget Allocation Changes

Reporting Changes for Period July 2023 to June 2024
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CEO Administrative Budget Allocation Changes (Cont’d) 

This report summarizes budget transfers between general ledger classes that are greater than $10,000 and less than $250,000.  

This is the result of Board Resolution No. 12-0301-01 which permits the CEO to make budget allocation changes within certain parameters. 

Transfer 

Month

Line of 

Business From To  Amount Expense Description

Fiscal 

Year

May OneCare Customer Service - Printing and Postage - 

Communications

Cultural & Linguistic Services - Purchased 

Services - Telephonic Interpretation

$60,000 To reallocate funds from Customer Service - Communications to Cultural & 

Linguistic Services - Telephonic Interpretation to provide additional funding 

needed for the remainder of the fiscal year.

2023-24

May Medi-Cal IS - Application Development - Other Operating 

Expenses - Maintenance HW/SW

Operations Management - Professional Fees - 

DTS Consulting Services

$230,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Application Development - Maintenance HW/SW 

to Operations Management - DTS Consulting Services due to shortfall of funds. 

2023-24

May OneCare Communications - Printing and Postage - Member 

Communication

Communications - Professional Fees $150,000 To reallocate funds from Communications - Member Communication to 

Professional Fees to provide additional funding needed for the remainder of the 

year.

2023-24

May Medi-Cal IS - Infrastructure - Other Operating Expenses - 

New Hire Equipment

IS - Application Development - Other Operating 

Expenses - Human Resource Applicant Tracking 

System

$92,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Infrastructure - New Hire Equipment to IS - 

Application Development - Human Resource Applicant Tracking System due to 

shortage of funds. 

2023-24

May Medi-Cal IS - Infrastructure - Professional Fees - IT Service 

Management

IS - Infrastructure - Other Operating Expenses - 

HDI Training & Seminars

$23,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Infrastructure - IT Service Management to IS - 

Infrastructure - HDI Training & Seminars due to shortage of funds.

2023-24

May Medi-Cal IS - Infrastructure - Professional Fees - IT Service 

Management

IS - Infrastructure - Other Operating Expenses - 

Azure Training & Seminars

$25,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Infrastructure - IT Service Management to IS - 

Infrastructure - Azure Training & Seminars due to shortage of funds.

2023-24

May Medi-Cal IS - Infrastructure - Other Operating Expenses - 

Subscriptions

Customer Service - Purchased Services $100,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Infrastructure - Subscriptions to Customer Service - 

Purchased Services to provide additional funding to pay for Centauri invoices for 

the remainder of the fiscal year.

2023-24

June Medi-Cal IS - Infrastructure - Other Operating Expenses - 

Subscriptions

Customer Service - Member Communication $120,000 To reallocate funds from IS - Infrastructure - Subscriptions to Customer Service - 

Member Communication to provide additional funding to pay for printing for the 

remainder of the fiscal year.

2023-24

June Medi-Cal Medical Management - Other Operating Expenses 

- Professional Dues

Medical Management - Other Operating Expenses 

- Training & Seminars

$30,000 To reallocate funds from Medical Management - Professional Dues to Training 

& Seminars to provide funding needed for the overage in the account and for 

The Innovative Health Care Leader course.

2023-24

June Medi-Cal Communications - Printing and Postage - Member 

Communication

Communications - Purchased Services - General $12,000 To reallocate funds from Communications - Member Communication to 

Purchased Services - General to provide additional funding for purchasing image 

credits for the remainder of the fiscal year.

2023-24

June Medi-Cal Facilities - Audio Visual Enhancements Facilities - Furniture Upgrades $71,000 To reallocate funds from Facilities - Audio Visual Enhancements to Facilities - 

Furniture Upgrades provide funding for additional furniture purchases.

2023-24

June Medi-Cal Human Resources - Professional Fees - Executive 

Recruiters

Human Resources - Advertising $25,000 To reallocate funds from Human Resources - Executive Recruiters to 

Advertising to provide additional funding for job postings.

2023-24

June Medi-Cal 500 Building - Technology Updates 500 Building - Tenant Improvements $200,000 To reallocate funds from 500 Building - Technology Updates to 500 Building - 

Tenant Improvements to provide funding for change orders.

2023-24

CalOptima Health

Budget Allocation Changes

Reporting Changes for Period July 2023 to June 2024
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Revised Attachment A: FY 2023-24 Operating Budget for All Lines of Business and Non-Operating Items 

CalOptima Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget

Budgeted Statement of Revenue & Expenses 

Attachment A - Revised By Line of Business

Medi-Cal OneCare PACE MSSP Facilities Other Consolidated

Member Months 10,575,923                  211,878                     5,743                    6,816                -                    -                      10,793,544               

Avg Members 881,327                       17,656                       479                       568                   -                    -                      899,462                     

Revenues

Capitation revenue 3,578,731,345$           383,711,815$            49,407,644$         3,042,208$       -$                  -$                    4,014,893,012$       

Total 3,578,731,345$           383,711,815$            49,407,644$         3,042,208$       -$                  -$                    4,014,893,012$       

Medical Costs

1 Provider capitation 1,210,953,834$           170,221,061$            -$                      -$                  -$                  -$                    1,381,174,895$       

2 Claims Payments 1,265,027,432$           70,337,505$              21,670,206$         -$                  -$                  -$                    1,357,035,143$       

3 LTC/Skilled Nursing Facilities 608,348,656$              -$                          1,451,606$           395,487$          -$                  -$                    610,195,749$           

4 Prescription Drugs -$                             118,367,539$            5,779,360$           -$                  -$                  -$                    124,146,899$           

5 Case Mgmt & Oth Medical 270,667,192$              20,324,305$              17,696,474$         2,223,693$       -$                  -$                    310,911,664$           

Total 3,354,997,113$           379,250,411$            46,597,647$         2,619,180$       -$                  -$                    3,783,464,351$       

MLR 93.73% 98.83% 94.20% 85.86% 94.24%

Gross Margin 223,734,232$              4,461,405$                2,809,997$           423,028$          -$                  -$                    231,428,661$           

Administrative Expenses

Salaries, Wages, & Employee Benefits 126,139,276$              14,061,580$              2,205,680$           1,107,775$       -$                  -$                    143,514,311$           

Non-Salary Operating Expenses 54,589,814$                7,498,541$                316,182$              105,300$          3,372,405$       -$                    65,882,242$             

Depreciation & Amortization 4,800,000$                  -$                          10,800$                -$                  2,532,000$       -$                    7,342,800$               

Indirect Cost Allocation, Occupancy Expense (6,313,095)$                 11,383,000$              178,353$              90,300$            (5,904,405)$      -$                    (565,847)$                 

Total 179,215,994$              32,943,122$              2,711,015$           1,303,375$       -$                  -$                    216,173,506$           

ALR 5.01% 8.59% 5.49% 42.84% 5.38%

Operating Income/(Loss) 44,518,237$                (28,481,717)$            98,982$                (880,347)$         -$                  -$                    15,255,155$             

Digital Transformation Strategy (30,002,899)$      (30,002,899)$            

Non-Operating

Net Investment Income 25,000,000$        25,000,000$             

500 Building (392,553)$           (392,553)$                 

Street Medicine Support Center (510,000)$           (510,000)$                 

Total Non-Operating 24,097,447$     24,097,447$             

Back to Agenda



 10 

Personnel Budget Summary 

FY 2023-24 Personnel Summary 

Line of Business Filled Open Total Vacancy %

Medi-Cal 1,282.3 78.0 1,360.3 5.7%

OC 180.3 9.8 190.1 5.1%

PACE 112.0 2.0 114.0 1.8%

MSSP 21.5 2.0 23.5 8.5%

Total 1,596.1 91.8 1,687.9 5.4%

Notes:

FTE count is based on position control reconciliation.

FTE count includes both medical and administrative positions.

FY 2023-24 Personnel (FTEs) - June 30, 2024

Back to Agenda
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Budgeted Reclassification/Re-Evaluations ending June 30, 2024 

Reclassification/Re-Evaluations 

Source: Reclassification/Re-Evaluation provided by the Human Resources Department.  

New Job Title
Action

Effective Date
FY2023-24 Quarter

Re-Evaluation 

Increase %

Manager Quality Analytics 2/11/2024 Q3 0.00%

Analyst 2/24/2024 Q3 6.68%

Financial Analyst II 2/24/2024 Q3 8.42%

Financial Analyst III 2/24/2024 Q3 16.24%

ITS Analyst Int 2/24/2024 Q3 5.01%

Program Manager 2/24/2024 Q3 5.01%

Program Manager 2/24/2024 Q3 5.00%

Program Manager Sr 2/24/2024 Q3 4.99%

Program Specialist Sr 2/24/2024 Q3 5.02%

Claims Resolution Specialist 2/25/2024 Q3 3.82%

Claims Resolution Specialist 2/25/2024 Q3 1.89%

Cloud Engineer 2/25/2024 Q3 5.00%

Cloud Engineer (Infrastructure) 2/25/2024 Q3 5.00%

Contracts Specialist 2/25/2024 Q3 19.35%

Financial Analyst III 2/25/2024 Q3 24.02%

ITS Administrator 2/25/2024 Q3 9.40%

Manager Provider Network 2/25/2024 Q3 6.02%

Provider Network Specialist Sr 2/25/2024 Q3 5.00%

Sr Manager II 2/25/2024 Q3 8.76%

Supervisor Payroll 2/25/2024 Q3 16.03%

Manager Population Health Management 2/27/2024 Q3 5.88%

Program Manager 3/10/2024 Q3 5.86%

Member Liaison Specialist Sr 3/24/2024 Q3 0.00%

Member Liaison Specialist Sr 3/24/2024 Q3 0.00%

Member Liaison Specialist Sr 3/24/2024 Q3 0.00%

Total Financial 

Impact
$53,222.54
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Unbudgeted Reclassification/Re-Evaluations ending June 30, 2024 

Reclassification/Re-Evaluations (Cont’d) 

Source: Reclassification/Re-Evaluation provided by the Human Resources Department.  

New Job Title
Action

Effective Date
FY2023-24 Quarter

Re-Evaluation 

Increase %

Clinical Trainer (LVN) 10/8/2023 Q2 -

Accountant IV 11/18/2023 Q2 -

Accountant IV 11/18/2023 Q2 -

Contracts Manager Sr. 11/19/2023 Q2 -

Financial Analyst III (Budgeting) 11/19/2023 Q2 -

Sr. Manager II, Financial Analysis 11/19/2023 Q2 -

Financial Analyst III 11/21/2023 Q2 -

Auditor (Claims) 12/3/2023 Q2 -

Auditor (Claims) 12/3/2023 Q2 -

Business Analyst 12/3/2023 Q2 -

Sr Manager I 12/3/2023 Q2 -

ITS Architect II (Database Architect) 12/16/2023 Q2 -

ITS Developer Advisor 12/16/2023 Q2 -

ITS Developer Advisor 12/16/2023 Q2 -

ITS Developer Advisor 12/16/2023 Q2 -

ITS Developer Advisor 12/16/2023 Q2 -

Program Specialist Sr 12/16/2023 Q2 -

Health Coach 12/17/2023 Q2 -

ITS Developer Advisor 12/17/2023 Q2 -

Manager Information Technology Services 12/17/2023 Q2 -

Health Educator Sr 12/19/2023 Q2 -

Grievance Resolution Specialist 12/31/2023 Q2 -

Grievance Resolution Specialist 12/31/2023 Q2 -

Grievance Resolution Specialist 12/31/2023 Q2 3.25%

Grievance Resolution Specialist 12/31/2023 Q2 3.16%

Grievance Resolution Specialist 12/31/2023 Q2 5.32%

Program Specialist Int 12/31/2023 Q2 -

Program Specialist Int 12/31/2023 Q2 -

Supervisor Grievance and Appeals 12/31/2023 Q2 38.68%

Provider Relations Rep Sr 1/13/2024 Q3 -

Provider Relations Rep Sr 1/13/2024 Q3 -

Provider Relations Rep Sr 1/14/2024 Q3 -

Project Manager IV 1/28/2024 Q3 -

QI Nurse Specialist - LVN 6/10/2024 Q4 -

QI Nurse Specialist - LVN 6/10/2024 Q4 -

QI Nurse Specialist - LVN 6/10/2024 Q4 -

QI Nurse Specialist - LVN 6/10/2024 Q4 -

Total Financial 

Impact
$21,222.86
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FY 2023-24 Q4: Market Adjustment (Org Salary Savings Funded) ending June 30, 2024 

Market Adjustment 

Source: Market Adjustment provided by the Human Resources Department.  

Job Title Funding Source
Action

Effective Date
FY2023-24 Quarter

Market

Adjustment

% Increase

Data Analyst Org Salary Savings 10/8/2023 Q2 2.72%

QI Nurse Specialist (LVN) Org Salary Savings 12/16/2023 Q2 11.93%

QI Nurse Specialist (LVN) Org Salary Savings 12/16/2023 Q2 17.64%

QI Nurse Specialist (LVN) Org Salary Savings 12/19/2023 Q2 20.42%

Accountant IV Org Salary Savings 3/23/2024 Q3 5.00%

Accountant IV Org Salary Savings 3/23/2024 Q3 5.00%

Auditor Sr Org Salary Savings 3/23/2024 Q3 5.00%

Buyer Org Salary Savings 3/23/2024 Q3 5.00%

Certified Coding Specialist Sr Org Salary Savings 3/23/2024 Q3 9.00%

Designer Sr Org Salary Savings 3/23/2024 Q3 5.00%

Financial Analyst II Org Salary Savings 3/23/2024 Q3 10.00%

Health Educator Sr Org Salary Savings 3/23/2024 Q3 5.00%

Human Resources Representative Sr Org Salary Savings 3/23/2024 Q3 5.00%

ITS Analyst Int Org Salary Savings 3/23/2024 Q3 5.00%

ITS Developer Advisor Org Salary Savings 3/23/2024 Q3 5.00%

ITS Developer Advisor Org Salary Savings 3/23/2024 Q3 5.00%

ITS Developer Advisor Org Salary Savings 3/23/2024 Q3 5.00%

ITS Developer Advisor Org Salary Savings 3/23/2024 Q3 5.00%

Manager Audit & Oversight Org Salary Savings 3/23/2024 Q3 10.00%

Manager Utilization Management Org Salary Savings 3/23/2024 Q3 10.00%

Manager Utilization Management Org Salary Savings 3/23/2024 Q3 10.00%

Program Specialist Sr Org Salary Savings 3/23/2024 Q3 5.00%

Provider Relations Rep Sr Org Salary Savings 3/23/2024 Q3 5.00%

Provider Relations Rep Sr Org Salary Savings 3/23/2024 Q3 5.00%

Supervisor Provider Data Management Services Org Salary Savings 3/23/2024 Q3 5.00%

Auditor Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 5.00%

Auditor Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 5.00%

Business Analyst Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 5.00%

Care Manager Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 5.00%

Certified Coding Specialist Sr Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 8.00%

Claims Examiner - Lead Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 10.00%

Contracts Manager Sr Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 5.00%

Customer Service Coordinator Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 5.00%

Customer Service Rep - Lead Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 5.00%

Customer Service Rep Sr Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 5.00%

Customer Service Rep Sr Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 5.00%

Customer Service Rep Sr Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 5.00%

Director III Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 10.00%

Director IV Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 10.00%

Health Coach Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 5.00%

ITS Architect II Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 5.00%

ITS Developer Advisor Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 5.00%

Manager Information Technology Services Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 5.00%

Manager Population Health Management Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 10.00%

Manager Population Health Management Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 10.00%

Manager Quality Analytics Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 5.00%

Medical Authorization Asst Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 5.00%

Process Excellence Manager II Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 10.00%

Process Excellence Manager II Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 5.00%

Program Specialist Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 10.00%

Program Specialist Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 5.00%
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FY 2023-24 Q4: Market Adjustment (Org Salary Savings Funded) ending June 30, 2024 

Market Adjustment (Cont’d) 

Source: Market Adjustment provided by the Human Resources Department.  

Job Title Funding Source
Action

Effective Date
FY2023-24 Quarter

Market

Adjustment

% Increase

Program Specialist Int Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 5.00%

Program Specialist Int Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 5.00%

Project Manager IV Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 5.00%

Provider Relations Rep Sr Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 5.00%

Service Desk Technician Sr Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 5.00%

Social Worker Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 10.00%

Sr Manager I Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 5.00%

Supervisor Claims Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 10.00%

Supervisor Claims Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 10.00%

Supervisor Long Term Support Services Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 10.00%

Therapy Aide PACE Org Salary Savings 3/24/2024 Q3 10.00%

Auditor Org Salary Savings 3/26/2024 Q3 5.00%

Community Relations Specialist Sr Org Salary Savings 3/26/2024 Q3 5.00%

Financial Analyst III Org Salary Savings 3/26/2024 Q3 5.00%

Health Educator Sr Org Salary Savings 3/26/2024 Q3 5.00%

Marketing and Outreach Specialist Sr Org Salary Savings 3/26/2024 Q3 5.00%

Accountant III Org Salary Savings 6/30/2024 Q4 5.00%

Accounting Clerk Sr Org Salary Savings 6/30/2024 Q4 5.00%

Certified Coding Specialist Sr Org Salary Savings 6/30/2024 Q4 2.00%

Data Analyst Int Org Salary Savings 6/30/2024 Q4 2.00%

Executive Director Org Salary Savings 6/30/2024 Q4 5.00%

Facilities & Support Services Coord - Lead Org Salary Savings 6/30/2024 Q4 5.00%

Facilities & Support Services Coordinator Org Salary Savings 6/30/2024 Q4 0.25%

Facilities & Support Services Coordinator Org Salary Savings 6/30/2024 Q4 4.13%

Facilities & Support Services Coordinator Org Salary Savings 6/30/2024 Q4 5.56%

Facilities & Support Services Coordinator Org Salary Savings 6/30/2024 Q4 9.06%

Facilities & Support Services Coordinator Sr Org Salary Savings 6/30/2024 Q4 5.00%

Medical Authorization Asst Org Salary Savings 6/30/2024 Q4 2.00%

Medical Authorization Asst Org Salary Savings 6/30/2024 Q4 5.00%

Supervisor Coding Initiatives Org Salary Savings 6/30/2024 Q4 2.00%

Supervisor Facilities Org Salary Savings 6/30/2024 Q4 5.00%

Supervisor Utilization Management Org Salary Savings 6/30/2024 Q4 3.00%

Supervisor Utilization Management Org Salary Savings 6/30/2024 Q4 3.00%

Supervisor Utilization Management Org Salary Savings 6/30/2024 Q4 3.00%

Supervisor Utilization Management Org Salary Savings 6/30/2024 Q4 3.00%

Supervisor Utilization Management Org Salary Savings 6/30/2024 Q4 3.00%

Supervisor Utilization Management Org Salary Savings 6/30/2024 Q4 3.00%

Supervisor Utilization Management Org Salary Savings 6/30/2024 Q4 3.00%

Total Financial 

Impact
$144,369.99

Back to Agenda
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Changes to Executive Compensation ending June 30, 2024 

Changes to Executive Compensation 

Source: Changes to Executive Compensation provided by the Human Resources Department.   

Job Title
Action

Effective Date
FY2023-24 Quarter % Increase

Executive Director (Finance) 6/30/2024 Q4 5.00%

Back to Agenda
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Administrative Expense Summary by Category as of June 30, 2024 

 

Administrative Expense Summary by Category 

Note: This report includes expenses related to Board-approved initiatives and Digital Transformation strategy (DTS). Please note that the Administrative Expense Summary by Category does not 

include expenditures and budget for Facilities. 

Consolidated Administrative Expense Summary

June MTD Variance YTD Variance FY 2024

LOB Actual Budget $ % Actual Budget $ % Budget

MC 20,947,803$  19,370,317$  (1,577,486)$   -8% 198,379,519$   224,890,462$   26,510,943$    12% 224,890,462$  

OC 1,832,054$    1,993,893$    161,839$       8% 17,370,693$     21,560,123$     4,189,430$      19% 21,560,123$    

OCC -$              -$              -$  (4,364)$             -$                  4,364$  -$  

PACE 135,674$       226,202$       90,528$         40% 2,539,170$       2,521,862$       (17,308)$         -1% 2,521,862$      

Total 22,915,531$  21,590,412$  (1,325,119)$   -6% 218,285,018$   248,972,447$   30,687,429$    12% 248,972,447$  

Professional Fees

June MTD Variance YTD Variance FY 2024

LOB Actual Budget $ % Actual Budget $ % Budget

MC 1,405,971$    1,202,125$    (203,846)$      -17% 9,658,777$       12,994,835$     3,336,058$      26% 12,994,835$    

OC 210,425$       169,500$       (40,925)$        -24% 626,955$          999,000$          372,046$         37% 999,000$         

OCC -$              -$              -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

PACE 3,959$           4,901$           942$  19% 323,674$          58,845$  (264,829)$       -450% 58,845$           

Total 1,620,355$    1,376,526$    (243,829)$      -18% 10,609,405$     14,052,680$     3,443,275$      25% 14,052,680$    

Purchased Services

June MTD Variance YTD Variance FY 2024

LOB Actual Budget $ % Actual Budget $ % Budget

MC 2,169,384$    2,915,042$    745,658$       26% 19,623,401$     27,224,770$     7,601,369$      28% 27,224,770$    

OC 374,495$       357,712$       (16,783)$        -5% 2,624,933$       3,468,790$       843,857$         24% 3,468,790$      

OCC -$              -$              -$  (4,364)$  -$  4,364$  -$  

PACE (25,598)$        16,471$         42,069$         255% 163,056$          132,495$          (30,561)$         -23% 132,495$         

Total 2,518,281$    3,289,225$    770,944$       23% 22,407,026$     30,826,055$     8,419,029$      27% 30,826,055$    

Printing and Postage

June MTD Variance YTD Variance FY 2024

LOB Actual Budget $ % Actual Budget $ % Budget

MC 426,240$       634,010$       207,770$       33% 4,929,369$       5,643,680$       714,311$         13% 5,643,680$      

OC 145,768$       204,348$       58,580$         29% 1,300,206$       1,927,450$       627,244$         33% 1,927,450$      

OCC -$  -$  -$  0$  -$  (0)$  -$  

PACE 59$  (5,257)$          (5,316)$          101% 11,005$  11,850$  845$  7% 11,850$           

Total 572,067$       833,101$       261,034$       31% 6,240,580$       7,582,980$       1,342,400$      18% 7,582,980$      

Other Operating Expenses

June MTD Variance YTD Variance FY 2024

LOB Actual Budget $ % Actual Budget $ % Budget

MC 3,328,409$    3,904,018$    575,609$       15% 29,020,460$     44,464,333$     15,443,873$    35% 44,464,333$    

OC 115,911$       134,371$       18,460$         14% 802,881$          1,103,301$       300,420$         27% 1,103,301$      

OCC -$              -$              -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

PACE 15,321$         10,272$         (5,049)$          -49% 108,416$          112,992$          4,576$  4% 112,992$         

Total 3,459,641$    4,048,661$    589,020$       15% 29,931,756$     45,680,626$     15,748,870$    34% 45,680,626$    

Salaries, Wages & Benefits

June MTD Variance YTD Variance FY 2024

LOB Actual Budget $ % Actual Budget $ % Budget

MC 13,617,799$  10,715,122$  (2,902,677)$   -27% 135,147,514$   134,562,844$   (584,670)$       0% 134,562,844$  

OC 985,455$       1,127,962$    142,507$       13% 12,015,719$     14,061,582$     2,045,863$      15% 14,061,582$    

OCC -$  -$  -$  (0)$                    -$                  0$  -$  

PACE 141,933$       199,815$       57,882$         29% 1,933,018$       2,205,680$       272,662$         12% 2,205,680$      

Total 14,745,187$  12,042,899$  (2,702,288)$   -22% 149,096,250$   150,830,106$   1,733,856$      1% 150,830,106$  
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Quarterly Capital Budget Update as of  

June 30, 2024 
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FY 2023-24 Board Approved Capital Attachment A 

Attachment A
Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024 New Capital Budget by Project

INFRASTRUCTURE TOTAL CAPITAL

Web Monitoring Solution Tool 419,000                                

Managed Service Provider Support 350,000                                

Test Environment for Database High Availability 300,000                                

Conference Room Video/Audio Enhancement 60,000                                  

Event Management and Escalation Toolset 50,000                                  

Outages and Incident Windows Toolset 25,000                                  

Patch Management Solution 11,500                                  

TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE 1,215,500$                        

APPLICATION MANAGEMENT TOTAL CAPITAL

Business Continuity Plan 70,000                                  

Project Portfolio Management 50,000                                  

TOTAL APPLICATION MANAGEMENT 120,000$                           

CYBER SECURITY TOTAL CAPITAL

Security Incident Event Monitoring 250,000                                

Electronic Patient Health Information Access Database Monitoring 120,000                                

TOTAL CYBER SECURITY 370,000$                           

505 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS TOTAL CAPITAL

Mustering System 1,000,000                             

Front/Back Entrance Door Upgrade 550,000                                

Office Tenant Improvements 400,000                                

Furniture Upgrades 300,000                                

Building Exterior Signage Upgrade 280,000                                

Audio Visual Enhancements 225,000                                

In Road Warning Light Crosswalk 200,000                                

Touchless Faucets 183,000                                

Capital Lease Copiers 110,000                                

Fire Panel Annunciator 75,000                                  

Electric Car Charging Station 68,000                                  

CalOptima Health New Vehicle 65,000                                  

HVAC Equipment Replacement 60,000                                  

Electric Water Heater 18,500                                  

Security Desk Alarm Annunciator 18,500                                  

Digital Directory in Lobby 15,000                                  

TOTAL 505 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS 3,568,000$                        

500 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS TOTAL CAPITAL

Tenant Improvements 4,200,000                             

Technology Updates 2,100,000                             

Office Furniture and Other Equipment 1,370,000                             

HVAC Equipment Replacement 650,000                                

Building Exterior Signage 200,000                                

Parking Lot Security - Blue Light 200,000                                

New Fire Control Panel 50,000                                  

Building Security Cameras 40,500                                  

Backflow Relocation 25,000                                  

Touchless Faucets in Common Area Restrooms 15,000                                  

TOTAL 500 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS 8,850,500$                        

PACE TOTAL CAPITAL

Electronic Medical Record Upgrade 500,000                                

Flooring Upgrade 100,000                                

Building Blinds Upgrade 8,500                                    

Chemical Dishwasher 8,500                                    

TOTAL PACE 617,000$                           

TOTAL FY 2023-24 ROUTINE CAPITAL BUDGET 14,741,000$                      
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Board Action and CEO Approval Details for Capital Projects 

CEO Approved Action Details Project Description TOTAL CAPITAL

1 CEO Date - 9/12/2023

From 505 Building Audio Visual Enhancements (13,135)                                

To 505 Building CalOptima Health New Vehicle 13,135                                  

2 CEO Date - 6/19/2024

From Infrastructure Patch Mangement Solution (6,000)                                  

To Infrastructure Conference Room Video/Audio Enhancement 6,000                                    

3 CEO Date - 6/27/2024

From Facilities Audio Visual Enhancements (71,000)                                

To Facilities Furniture Upgrade 71,000                                  

4 CEO Date - 6/28/2024

From 500 Building Technology Updates (200,000)                              

To 500 Building Tenant Improvements 200,000                                

TOTAL CEO Approved Actions -$                                    

Board Approved Action Details Project Description TOTAL CAPITAL

1 COBAR Date - 9/7/2023

Street Medicine Support Center Redevelopment 10,000,000                           

TOTAL Board Approved Actions 10,000,000$                      

Back to Agenda
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FY 2023-24 Revised Capital Attachment A 

 

Revised Attachment A
Fiscal Year 2023-24 New Capital Budget by Project

INFRASTRUCTURE TOTAL CAPITAL

Web Monitoring Solution Tool 419,000                                

Managed Service Provider Support 350,000                                

Test Environment for Database High Availability 300,000                                

Conference Room Video/Audio Enhancement 66,000                                  

Event Management and Escalation Toolset 50,000                                  

Outages and Incident Windows Toolset 25,000                                  

Patch Management Solution 5,500                                    

TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE 1,215,500$                        

APPLICATION MANAGEMENT TOTAL CAPITAL

Business Continuity Plan 70,000                                  

Project Portfolio Management 50,000                                  

TOTAL APPLICATION MANAGEMENT 120,000$                           

CYBER SECURITY TOTAL CAPITAL

Security Incident Event Monitoring 250,000                                

Electronic Patient Health Information Access Database Monitoring 120,000                                

TOTAL CYBER SECURITY 370,000$                           

505 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS TOTAL CAPITAL

Mustering System 1,000,000                             

Front/Back Entrance Door Upgrade 550,000                                

Office Tenant Improvements 400,000                                

Furniture Upgrades 371,000                                

Building Exterior Signage Upgrade 280,000                                

In Road Warning Light Crosswalk 200,000                                

Touchless Faucets 183,000                                

Audio Visual Enhancements 140,865                                

Capital Lease Copiers 110,000                                

CalOptima Health New Vehicle 78,135                                  

Fire Panel Annunciator 75,000                                  

Electric Car Charging Station 68,000                                  

HVAC Equipment Replacement 60,000                                  

Electric Water Heater 18,500                                  

Security Desk Alarm Annunciator 18,500                                  

Digital Directory in Lobby 15,000                                  

TOTAL 505 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS 3,568,000$                        

500 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS TOTAL CAPITAL

Tenant Improvements 4,200,000                             

Technology Updates 2,100,000                             

Office Furniture and Other Equipment 1,370,000                             

HVAC Equipment Replacement 650,000                                

Building Exterior Signage 200,000                                

Parking Lot Security - Blue Light 200,000                                

New Fire Control Panel 50,000                                  

Building Security Cameras 40,500                                  

Backflow Relocation 25,000                                  

Touchless Faucets in Common Area Restrooms 15,000                                  

TOTAL 500 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS 8,850,500$                        

PACE TOTAL CAPITAL

Electronic Medical Record Upgrade 500,000                                

Flooring Upgrade 100,000                                

Building Blinds Upgrade 8,500                                    

Chemical Dishwasher 8,500                                    

TOTAL PACE 617,000$                           

STREET MEDICINE SUPPORT CENTER TOTAL CAPITAL

Street Medicine Support Center Development 10,000,000                           

TOTAL GARDEN GROVE BUILDING 10,000,000$                      

TOTAL FY24 REVISED CAPITAL BUDGET 24,741,000$                      
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FY 2023-24 Capital Spending Summary 

Spending Summary through June 30, 2024

INFRASTRUCTURE TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSE REMAINING

Web Monitoring Solution Tool 419,000                                -                        419,000                

Managed Service Provider Support 350,000                                -                        350,000                

Test Environment for Database High Availability 300,000                                -                        300,000                

Conference Room Video/Audio Enhancement 66,000                                  (5,054)                   60,946                  

Outages and Incident Windows Toolset 25,000                                  -                        25,000                  

Patch Management Solution 5,500                                    -                        5,500                    

Event Management and Escalation Toolset 50,000                                  (48,650)                 1,350                    

TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE 1,215,500$                        (53,704)$             1,161,796$        

APPLICATION MANAGEMENT TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSE REMAINING

Business Continuity Plan 70,000                                  -                        70,000                  

Project Portfolio Management 50,000                                  -                        50,000                  

TOTAL APPLICATION MANAGEMENT 120,000$                           -$                     120,000$            

CYBER SECURITY TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSE REMAINING

Security Incident Event Monitoring 250,000                                (90,463)                 159,537                

Electronic Patient Health Information Access Database Monitoring 120,000                                -                        120,000                

TOTAL CYBER SECURITY 370,000$                           (90,463)$             279,537$            

505 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSE REMAINING

Mustering System 1,000,000                             -                        1,000,000             

Front/Back Entrance Door Upgrade 550,000                                (200,000)               350,000                

Office Tenant Improvements 400,000                                (59,655)                 340,345                

Building Exterior Signage Upgrade 280,000                                -                        280,000                

In Road Warning Light Crosswalk 200,000                                (3,573)                   196,428                

Audio Visual Enhancements 140,865                                (33,852)                 107,013                

Fire Panel Annunciator 75,000                                  -                        75,000                  

Touchless Faucets 183,000                                (123,975)               59,025                  

HVAC Equipment Replacement 60,000                                  (19,958)                 40,042                  

Capital Lease Copiers 110,000                                (86,490)                 23,510                  

Electric Car Charging Station 68,000                                  (45,955)                 22,045                  

Electric Water Heater 18,500                                  -                        18,500                  

Security Desk Alarm Annunciator 18,500                                  -                        18,500                  

Digital Directory in Lobby 15,000                                  -                        15,000                  

Furniture Upgrades 371,000                                (356,085)               14,915                  

CalOptima Health New Vehicle 78,135                                  (78,135)                 -                        

TOTAL 505 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS 3,568,000$                        (1,007,678)$       2,560,322$        

500 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSE REMAINING

Tenant Improvements 4,400,000                             (1,793,620)            2,606,380             

Technology Updates 1,900,000                             (724,711)               1,175,289             

Office Furniture and Other Equipment 1,370,000                             (205,387)               1,164,613             

HVAC Equipment Replacement 650,000                                -                        650,000                

Parking Lot Security - Blue Light 200,000                                -                        200,000                

Building Exterior Signage 200,000                                (25,513)                 174,487                

New Fire Control Panel 50,000                                  -                        50,000                  

Building Security Cameras 40,500                                  -                        40,500                  

Backflow Relocation 25,000                                  -                        25,000                  

Touchless Faucets in Common Area Restrooms 15,000                                  -                        15,000                  

TOTAL 500 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS 8,850,500$                        (2,749,231)$       6,101,269$        

PACE TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSE REMAINING

Electronic Medical Record Upgrade 500,000                                -                        500,000                

Flooring Upgrade 100,000                                -                        100,000                

Chemical Dishwasher 8,500                                    -                        8,500                    

Building Blinds Upgrade 8,500                                    (7,145)                   1,355                    

TOTAL PACE 617,000$                           (7,145)$               609,855$            

STREET MEDICINE SUPPORT CENTER TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSE REMAINING

Street Medicine Support Center 10,000,000                           (100,593)               9,899,407             

TOTAL STREET MEDICINE SUPPORT CENTER 10,000,000$                      (100,593)$          9,899,407$        

TOTAL FY24 REVISED CAPITAL BUDGET 24,741,000$                      (4,008,814)$       20,732,186$      

Back to Agenda



 22 

Quarterly Purchasing Report 
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Source: Quarterly Purchasing Report provided by the Procurement and Vendor Management Department. 

FY24 Q4 Spent Remaining 

Nature of Services Budgeted Purchase or Contract Highlights Bidding Outcome Previous Vendor PO # Year Amount on Expires

Current 2024 Contract

HR Software for Hiring and Annual 

Reviews
 $      105,888 Silk Road Technology Inc Incumbent via BOD Approval N/A 17-10876-015 105,888$    -$          105,888$      06/30/25

Naloxone Storage and Shipping Fees  $      107,995 Medea Inc BOD Approval N/A 24-10149 107,995$    -$          107,995$      06/30/24

Media Placement and Support for 

CalFresh Campaign
 $      131,820 Maricich & Associates Inc Incumbent via RFP N/A 23-10009-010 131,820$    131,820$    -$             01/31/25

PACE Digital Media Campaign  $      142,500 Maricich & Associates Inc Incumbent via RFP N/A 23-10009-008 142,500$    142,500$    -$             07/31/24

Bus Advertising for PACE  $      144,505 Vector Media Holding Group Sole Source Outfront Media 24-10891 144,505$    59,605$      84,900$        07/31/24

CalOptima Health Brand Campaign 

Refresh
 $      145,000 Maricich & Associates Inc Incumbent via RFP N/A 23-10009-011 145,000$    145,000$    -$             06/30/24

Recruiting Software for HR  $      155,000 JOBELEPHANT.COM INC Informal Bid N/A 21-10310-004 155,000$    -$          155,000$      06/30/25

Sit/Stand Bases  $      157,598 Office Furniture Group LLC Incumbent via RFP N/A 24-10989 157,598$    157,598$    -$             06/30/24

Architectural Services - 1st Floor 500 

Building
 $      169,163 H. Hendy Associates Incumbent via RFP N/A 23-10089-004 169,163$    31,187$      137,976$      06/30/24

UIPath RPA Software  $      175,317 Element Blue LLC Incumbent via RFP N/A 23-10711-004 175,317$    -$          175,317$      05/30/25

Crowdstrike Retainer Services  $      188,451 Tevora Business Solutions Inc IFB 24-063 N/A 24-10083 188,451$    188,451$    -$             06/09/25

Adobe License Renewals  $      193,945 CDW Corporation Informal Bid N/A 24-10032 193,945$    -$          193,945$      06/09/25

Financial Auditor Services  $      215,250 Moss Adams LLP Incumbent via RFP N/A 22-10461-002 215,250$    41,759$      173,491$      12/31/24

Annual HP Hardware Maintenance  $      215,877 Nth Generation Computing Inc Incumbent via RFP N/A 23-10341-002 215,877$    -$          215,877$      06/30/25

DTS Execution Consulting  $      228,137 Accenture LLP RFP 24-065 N/A 24-11028 228,137$    -$          228,137$      05/31/27

Architectural Services - 3rd Floor 500 

Building
 $      236,180 H. Hendy Associates Incumbent via RFP N/A 23-10089-007 236,180$    147,739$    88,441$        06/30/24

Non-Profit Healthcare Workshop  $      236,935 Consilience Group LLC Incumbent via RFP N/A 24-10172 236,935$    -$          236,935$      06/30/24

DEI Training  $      239,500 Elevated Health Equity Informal RFP 24-071 N/A 24-10080 239,500$    -$          239,500$      10/01/24

Non-Profit Healthcare Workshop  $      246,726 Consilience Group LLC Incumbent via RFP N/A 24-10172-001 246,726$    -$          246,726$      06/30/25

MC Daily Mailing Fulfillment Services  $      250,000 The Dot Printer Inc Incumbent via RFP N/A 24-10870-MC25 250,000$    -$          250,000$      06/30/25

MC Member Health Reward Incentives  $      250,008 Target Corp N/A N/A 24-10965 250,008$    250,008$    -$             06/30/24

Microsoft Premier Support Renewal  $      250,249 Microsoft Corporation N/A N/A 20-10955-005 250,249$    250,249$    -$             04/21/25

Data Protection and Recovery 

Operations
 $      250,471 Ahead Inc Incumbent via RFP N/A 23-10723-001 250,471$    -$          250,471$      07/06/25

UIPath RPA Software  $      274,170 Element Blue LLC Incumbent via RFP N/A 23-10711-005 274,170$    -$          274,170$      06/30/25

Jiva Phase 2 Implementation  $      289,950 ZeOmega Inc Incumbent via RFP Altruista 22-10797-005 289,950$    -$          289,950$      06/30/27

Laptop Refresh  $      299,988 Dell Computers N/A N/A 24-10082 299,988$    -$          299,988$      06/30/24

NCQA Consulting Services  $      307,273 Health Management Associates Inc RFP 24-056 N/A 24-10114 307,273$    -$          307,273$      06/30/27

Closed Loop Referals  $      330,000 
Aunt Bertha, A Public Benefit 

Corporation
RFP 24-024 N/A 24-10904 330,000$    -$          330,000$      06/30/25

505 Building Entry Doors  $      336,901 Seashore Construction Inc RFP 24-027 N/A 24-10592 336,901$    200,000$    136,901$      12/31/24

Federal Advocacy Services  $      342,000 DC Health Care Advisors LLC RFP 24-055 Potomac Partners 24-11007 342,000$    -$          342,000$      12/31/26

Crowdstrike Renewal  $      360,464 Tevora Business Solutions Inc Incumbent N/A 22-10694-002 360,464$    360,464$    -$             04/14/25

HN Provider Directory  $      429,936 Sapphire Printing Group Incumbent via RFP N/A 23-10093-MC24 429,936$    391,529$    38,407$        06/30/24

Strategic Communications  $      444,000 Venture Strategic Inc RFP 24-051 N/A 24-10057 444,000$    -$          444,000$      06/30/26

Quarterly Purchase Report

April 1, 2024 through June 30, 2024

Completed Major Commitments over $100,000

Contract 

Amount
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FY 2023-24 Fourth Quarter Purchasing Report (Cont’d) 

FY24 Q4 Spent Remaining 

Nature of Services Budgeted Purchase or Contract Highlights Bidding Outcome Previous Vendor PO # Year Amount on Expires

Current 2024 Contract

FACETs Consulting Services  $      515,475 Catalyst Solutions LLC Incumbent N/A 17-10747-009 515,475$    395,544$    119,931$      06/30/24

Data Warehouse Data Engine  $      534,583 Delphix Corp Incumbent via RFP N/A 22-10788-003 534,583$    -$          534,583$      08/14/25

Zscaler  $      534,632 Optiv Security Inc. IFB 24-072 N/A 24-10166 534,632$    -$          534,632$      06/30/25

MC APR-DRG Claims Pricing 

Software
 $   1,097,209 Healthedge Software Inc Incumbent via RFP N/A 22-10967-008 1,097,209$ 1,097,209$ -$             08/08/25

Provider Lifecycle Management System  $   1,148,499 Accenture LLP RFP 24-005
Cactus & Change 

Healthcare
24-10859 1,148,499$ -$          1,148,499$    06/30/29

Virtual Visits  $   1,750,000 TeleMed2U Incumbent via RFP N/A 24-10868 1,750,000$ 1,225,000$ 525,000$      03/31/27

Milliman Care Guideline Software  $   1,828,826 MCG Health LLC BOD Approval N/A 19-10908-006 1,828,826$ -$          1,828,826$    07/02/25

Member/Provider Platform  $   2,769,104 USHUR INC Incumbent via RFP N/A 24-10012 2,769,104$ 791,000$    1,978,104$    07/31/26

PACE Transportation  $   3,500,000 Secure Transportation Company Inc Incumbent via RFP N/A 17-10066-021 3,500,000$ -$          3,500,000$    06/30/25

Contract 

Amount

Quarterly Purchase Report

April 1, 2024 through June 30, 2024

Completed Major Commitments over $100,000
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FY 2023-24 Fourth Quarter Purchasing Report (Cont’d) 

Nature of Services Procurement Status

Business Continuity Plan (BCP) Consultative Services and Software RFP Issued 4/9/2024

RFP 24-050 6 Proposals Received

Staff Reviewing Proposals

Dental Supplemental Services for OneCare IFB Issued 4/11/2024

IFB 24-052 3 Bids Received

RFP Complete - Contract Transferred to Contracting Department

Flex Card Supplemental Benefit RFP Issued 5/3/2024

RFP 24-060 6 Proposals Received

Staff Reviewing Proposals

Incident Response and Advisory Services Retainer IFB Issued 5/1/2024

IFB 24-063 2 Bids Received

Contract Signed - Bid Closed

Member and Population Health Needs Assessment RFP Issued 4/26/2024

RFP 24-064 6 Proposals Received

Staff Reviewing Proposals

Digital Transformation Implementation Professional Services RFP Issued 4/9/2024

RFP 24-065 4 Proposals Received

Contract Signed - Bid Closed

Customer Relationship Management Service and Software RFP Issued 5/10/2024

RFP 24-069 Proposals due 7/10/2024

Consulting Service for Value-Based Transformation Program Informal RFP Issued 5/15/2024

Informal RFP 24-070 2 Proposals Received

Staff Negotiating Contract

Diversity, Equity, Inclusion (DEI) Training Informal RFP Issued 5/9/2024

Informal RFP 24-071 2 Proposals Received

Contract Signed - Bid Closed

Zscaler IFB Issued 5/21/2024

IFB 24-072 4 Bids Received

Contract Signed - Bid Closed

TV and Digital Advertising RFP Issued 8/24/2021

RFP 22-011 5 Proposals Received

Staff Negotiating Contract

Enterprise Resource Planning System RFP Issued 12/8/2022

RFP 23-035 5 Proposals Received

Staff Negotiating Contract

Provider Lifecycle Management (PLM) System RFP Released 7/31/2023

RFP 24-005 7 Proposals Received

Contract Signed - Bid Closed

Value-Based Care Management Services RFP Released 7/28/2023

RFP 24-009 2 Proposals Received

RFP Complete - Contract Transferred to Contracting Department

HEDIS Software RFP Released 9/5/2023

RFP 24-017 9 Proposals Received

Staff Negotiating Contract

Real Estate Advisory & Broker Services RFP Re-released 2/1/2024

RFP 24-040R 8 Proposals Received

Contract Signed - Bid Closed

GARS Process Review RFP Released 2/21/2024

RFP 24-043 3 Proposals Received

Contract Signed - Bid Closed

OC Marketing and Advertising Agency RFP Released 1/29/2024

RFP 24-044 8 Proposals Received

Contract Signed - Bid Closed

State and Local Advocacy Services RFP Released 2/1/2024

RFP 24-047 1 Proposal Received

Contract Signed - Bid Closed

Strategic Communications RFP Released 3/20/2024

RFP 24-051 10 Proposals Received

Contracts Signed - Bid Closed

Federal Advocacy Services RFP Released 3/8/2024

RFP 24-055 8 Proposals Received

Contract Signed - Bid Closed

NCQA Consulting Services RFP Released 3/14/2024

RFP 24-056 5 Proposals Received

Contract Signed - Bid Closed

Quarterly Purchasing Report

April 1, 2024 through June 30, 2024 - FY24-Q4

 IN PROCESS: Open Bids Anticipated to Exceed $100,000 

New For Q4-FY24

Ongoing from Previous Quarters
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IGT Project Report 
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IGT Project Update as of June 30, 2024 

Source: IGT Project Report provided by the Accounting Department. 

# IGT Projects IGT

First 

Payment 

Dispersed 

Date

COBAR 

Project 

End Date

Budget Spend % Spent Balance

Grant 

Disburse-

ment Date

1 Case Management System (Altruista) 1 04/07/2014 12/31/2016 2,095,380$       2,095,380$       100% (0)$                Non-Grant Project

2 Telemedicine [Funds Reallocated] 1 04/07/2014 12/01/2016 30,810$           30,810$           100% -$              Non-Grant Project

3 Strategies to Reduce Readmission 1 12/28/2014 12/31/2016 611,421$          611,421$          100% (0)$                Non-Grant Project

4 OneCare PCCs 1 04/16/2014 06/30/2017 3,850,000$       3,850,000$       100% -$              Non-Grant Project

5 OneCare Connect PCCs 1 08/18/2015 06/30/2017 3,550,000$       3,550,000$       100% -$              Non-Grant Project

6 Case Management Consulting 1 10/01/2014 12/31/2017 866,415$          866,415$          100% -$              Non-Grant Project

7 Depression Screenings 1 02/28/2018
Reallocated to 

IGT 6
455,000$          455,000$          100% -$              Non-Grant Project

8 Shape Your Life Program 1 04/28/2017 07/01/2020 500,000$          499,980$          100% 20$               Non-Grant Project

11,959,026$   11,959,007$   100% 19$               

1 FQHC Support Phase 1  (to support FQHC attainment) 2 07/06/2015 08/01/2017 200,000$          200,000$          100% -$              
First: 07/2015;

Last: 08/2016

2 FQHC Support Phase 2 (to support FQHC readiness analysis) 2 07/06/2015 12/31/2016 202,091$          202,091$          100% -$              
First: 10/2015;

Last: 11/2016

3 FQHC Support Phase 3 (behavioral/dental expansion) 2 07/06/2015 06/30/2017 875,000$          875,000$          100% -$              
First: 03/2016;

Last: 05/2017

4 Children's Dental Services 2 07/02/2015 07/01/2017 400,000$          400,000$          100% -$              
First: 06/2015;

Last: 08/2016

5 Children's Vision Services 2 09/08/2015 08/01/2017 500,000$          500,000$          100% -$              
First: 09/2015;

Last: 08/2016

6 Security Audit Remediation 2 06/28/2014 07/01/2015 98,000$           98,000$           100% -$              Non-Grant Project

7 PACE EHR Implementation 2 05/16/2016 12/31/2016 80,000$           80,000$           100% -$              Non-Grant Project

8 Facets Upgrade, Expansion, and Reconfiguration 2 06/18/2014 06/30/2017 1,756,620$       1,756,620$       100% -$              Non-Grant Project

9 Continuation of COREC 2 11/03/2014 12/31/2017 970,000$          970,000$          100% -$              Non-Grant Project

10 Recuperative Care 2 06/01/2015 12/31/2018 500,000$          500,000$          100% -$              Non-Grant Project

11 OneCare Connect PCCs (Continued) 2 06/28/2017 12/31/2018 2,400,000$       2,400,000$       100% -$              Non-Grant Project

12 Autism Screening 2 08/03/2016
Reallocated to 

IGT 5
51,600$           51,600$           100% -$              Non-Grant Project

13 Project Management 2 07/02/2015 07/01/2017 100,000$          100,000$          100% -$              Non-Grant Project

8,133,311$     8,133,311$     100% -$              

1 Personal Care Coordinators 3 05/15/2017 05/31/2018 3,450,000$       3,450,000$       100% -$              Non-Grant Project

2 Recuperative Care (Phase 2) 3 08/16/2018
Reallocated to 

IGT 6
499,750$          499,750$          100% -$              Non-Grant Project

3 Data Warehouse Expansion 3 02/14/2017 12/31/2019 750,000$          735,200$          98% 14,800$         
Pending 

Reallocation

4 Project Management 3 02/14/2017 12/31/2019 165,000$          165,000$          100% -$              
Pending 

Reallocation

4,864,750$     4,849,950$     100% 14,800$        

IGT 3 (Funds Received: September 2014)

IGT 1 (Funds Received: September 2012)

SUBTOTAL
1

IGT 2 (Funds Received: June 2013)

SUBTOTAL

SUBTOTAL
1
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IGT Project Update as of June 30, 2024 (Cont’d) 

Source: IGT Project Report provided by the Accounting Department. 

1 Member Health Needs Assessment 4 04/20/2017 12/31/2017 500,000$          500,000$          100% -$              Non-Grant Project

2 Personal Care Coordinators 4 01/17/2018 05/31/2018 3,550,000$       3,550,000$       100% -$              Non-Grant Project

3 UCI Observation Stay Payment Pilot 4 02/07/2018
Reallocated to 

IGT 6
744,600$          744,600$          100% -$              Non-Grant Project

4 Provider Portal Communications & Interconnectivity 4 05/09/2017
Reallocated to 

IGT 6
1,456,510$       1,456,510$       100% -$              Non-Grant Project

5 Member Health Homes Program 4 09/07/2017
Reallocated to 

IGT 6
177,809$          177,809$          100% -$              Non-Grant Project

6 IGT PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION 4 529,608$          529,608$          100% -$              Non-Grant Project

6,958,527$     6,958,527$     100% -$              

1 Be Well OC Regional Wellness Hub* 5 07/10/2019 N/A 11,400,000$     11,400,000$     100% -$              12/6/2018 (COBAR)

2
Access to Adult Dental Services (Grant RFP: Korean Community 

Services)
5 12/05/2019 N/A 1,000,000$       1,000,000$       100% -$              Awarded on 8/1/19

3 Access to Children's Dental Services (Grant RFP) 5 01/15/2020 N/A 1,000,000$       1,000,000$       100% -$              Awarded on 10/3/19

4
Primary Care Services and Programs Addressing Social Determinants of 

Health (Grant RFP: Santa Ana Unified School District)
5 12/04/2019 N/A 1,411,488$       1,400,000$       99% 11,488$         Awarded on 8/1/19

14,811,488$   14,800,000$   100% 11,488$        

1 Post-WPC Medical Respite Program 6 TBD N/A 250,000$          250,000$          100% -$              4/4/2019 (COBAR)

2

Expand Access to Outpatient Children's Mental Health Services (Grant 

RFP: Children's Bureau of Southern California; Orange County Asian & 

Pacific Islander Community Alliances, Inc,; Boys & Girls Clubs of 

Garden Grove; Jamboree Housing Corporation)

6 10/28/2019 06/30/2023 4,188,990$       4,188,990$       100% -$              Awarded on 8/1/19

3 Whole Child Model Assistance for Implementation & Development 1 6 04/02/2020 N/A 1,750,000$       1,749,982$       100% 18$               Non-Grant Project

4 Homekey Program* 6 TBD N/A 2,500,000$       2,500,000$       100% -$              
11/5/2020

(COBAR)

5 WPC Housing Navigation and Support Services 6 TBD N/A 640,000$          640,000$          100% -$              
6/3/2021

(COBAR)

6 WPC Recuperative Care 6 06/20/2019 12/31/2021 5,194,440$       5,194,440$       100% -$              8/2/2018 (COBAR)

7 Master Electronic Health Record System 6 08/07/2020 N/A 650,000$          68,793$           11% 581,207$       Non-Grant Project

8 IGT PROGRAM ADMINSTRATION 6 08/07/2020 N/A 475,620$          474,612$          100% 1,008$           Non-Grant Project

9 FY16  HCAP & HCAP Expansion 6 02/01/2023 N/A 2,055,560$       286,040$          14% 1,769,520$    02/02/23 COBAR

10 Clinical Field Team Pilot Program 7 04/08/2019 N/A 1,600,000$       1,600,000$       100% -$              4/8/2019

11
Expand Access to Food Distribution Services Focused on Children and 

Families (Grant RFP: Serve the People)
7 12/11/2019 09/30/2022 1,000,000$       1,000,000$       100% -$              Awarded on 8/1/19

12
Integrate Children's Mental Health Services Into Primary Care Settings 

(Grant RFP:  CHOC Children's; Friends of Family Health Center)
7 12/04/2019 06/30/2024 4,850,000$       4,628,325$       95% 221,675$       Awarded on 8/1/19

13
Increase Access to Medication-Assisted Treatment (Grant RFP: Coalition 

of Orange County Community Health Center)
7 12/04/2019 06/30/2023 6,000,000$       5,700,000$       95% 300,000$       Awarded on 8/1/19

14

Expand Access to Outpatient Children's Mental Health Services (Grant 

RFP: Children's Bureau of Southern California; Orange County Asian & 

Pacific Islander Community Alliances, Inc,; Boys & Girls Clubs of 

Garden Grove; Jamboree Housing Corporation)

7 02/02/2021 06/30/2023 661,010$          642,301$          97% 18,709$         Awarded on 8/1/19

31,815,620$   28,923,483$   91% 2,892,137$   

78,542,722$   75,624,277$   96% 2,918,444$   

SUBTOTAL

GRAND TOTAL

* Be Well OC Regional Wellness Hub and Homekey Program have pending utilization information against advanced payment of services.
1
 Rounded to the nearest percentage; remaining funds will be reallocated as appropriate.

IGT 4 (Funds Received: October 2015/March 2016)

SUBTOTAL

IGT 5 (Funds Received: December 2016)

SUBTOTAL

IGT 6 & 7 (Funds Received: September 2017/May 2018)
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IGT Project Update as of June 30, 2024 (Cont’d) 

Source: IGT Project Report provided by the Accounting Department. 

# IGT Projects IGT Budget  Spend  % Spent Balance
Board Approval 

Date

1

1.1 Vaccination Intervention and Member Incentive Strategy 8 123,348$            54,649$           44% 68,699$           
1/7/2021

Incentive ended as CHAT-H 

discontinued services in Q2 2022

1.2 CalOptima Days & QI Program - HCAP and HCAP Expansion 8 7,833,104$         3,135,200$       40% 4,697,904$       
8/1/2019; 

4/16/2020

1.3 Homeless Coordination at Hospitals 8 10,000,000$       9,956,478$       100% 43,522$           4/4/2019

1.4 HHI - PI, QI & CM Support/Staffing 8 963,261$            791,124$          82% 172,137$          8/1/2019

1.5 Homeless Response Team 8 1,681,734$         1,681,734$       100% 0$                    4/4/2019

1.6 CFT & FQHC Expansion Claims 8 21,902$              21,902$           100% -$                 
8/1/2019; 

4/16/2020

1.7 Street Medicine 8 8,276,652$         6,089,152$       74% 2,187,500$       3/17/2022

1.8 Outreach and Engagement 8 7,000,000$         -$                 0% 7,000,000$       4/7/2022

1.9 Housing and Homelessness Incentive Program (HHIP) 8 6,692,004$         6,692,004$       100% -$                 9/1/2022

42,592,004$     28,422,241$   67% 14,169,762$   

1 UCI COVID-19 Skilled Nursing Facility Prevention Program 9 629,725$            629,723$        100% 2$                    5/7/2020

2 Whole Child Model (WCM) Program 9 12,842,165$       12,842,165$   100% -$                 
4/2/2020

WCM claims were reconciled for FY20

3 Post-Acute Infection Prevention (PIPQI) 9 3,400,000$         2,724,967$     80% 675,033$          4/2/2020

4 Text Messaging Solutions for Members 9 3,900,000$         3,006,033$     77% 893,967$          5/7/2020

5 Hospital Data Exchange Incentive 9 2,000,000$         -$                 0% 2,000,000$       4/2/2020

6 IGT Program  Administration 9 2,000,000$         487,166$        24% 1,512,834$       4/2/2020

7 Comprehensive Community Cancer Screening and Support Program 9 19,134,815$       636,722$        3% 18,498,093$     12/1/2022

43,906,705$     20,326,776$   46% 23,579,929$   

1
Orange County COVID-19 Nursing Home Prevention Program (Expansion & 

Extension) 
10 1,261,000$         1,261,001$       100% (1)$                  1/7/2021

2 COVID-19 Vaccination Incentive Program (VIP) CY2021 10 35,000,000$       29,832,150$     85% 5,167,850$       1/7/2021

3 COVID-19 Vaccination Incentive Program (VIP) CY2021 - Staffing 10 642,345$            409,913$          64% 232,432$          1/7/2021; 2/3/2022

4 Comprehensive Community Cancer Screening and Support Program 10 30,916,053$       -$                 0% 30,916,053$     11/3/2022

67,819,398$     31,503,064$   46% 36,316,335$   

154,318,106$   80,252,080$   52% 74,066,026$   

SUBTOTAL

IGT 10 (Funds Received: May 2020/December 2021/March 2022)

SUBTOTAL

Note: IGT 8 and 9 funding have been updated to reflect DHCS recoupment after initial disbursement

GRAND TOTAL

IGTs 8-10: Funds must be used for Medi-Cal covered services for the Medi-Cal population

IGT 8 (Funds Received: March 2019/April 2019)

Homeless Health Initiative (HHI)                                                                                       

SUBTOTAL

IGT 9 (Funds Received: April 2020)
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DTS Funding Balance Tracking Summary 

Source: Digital Transformation Strategy report provided by the Accounting Department. 

CalOptima Health

Digital Transformation Strategy ($100 million total reserve)

Funding Balance Tracking Summary

For the Twelve Months Ending June 30, 2024

Actual Spend Approved Budget Variance $ Variance % Actual Spend Approved Budget Variance $ Variance % Actual Spend Approved Budget Variance $ Variance %

Capital Assets (Cost, Information Only):

Total Capital Assets 421,169                1,450,696              1,029,527   71.0% 19,366,897      20,144,000            777,103        3.9% 22,964,948      56,990,000            34,025,052  59.7%

Operating Expenses:
Salaries, Wages & Benefits 629,198                 609,654                   (19,544)         -3.2% 7,587,690          7,315,793                 (271,897)        -3.7% 11,006,267         12,608,026               1,601,759      12.7%

Professional Fees 228,137                 307,924                   79,787          25.9% 1,494,870          2,475,000                 980,130         39.6% 1,761,063          4,707,500                 2,946,437      62.6%

Purchased Services 80,959                   155,000                   74,041          47.8% 150,000             1,860,000                 1,710,000       91.9% 150,000             2,170,000                 2,020,000      93.1%

Other Expenses 876,199                 1,881,007                 1,004,808      53.4% 10,514,716         18,352,106               7,837,390       42.7% 13,529,492         21,644,486               8,114,994      37.5%

Total Operating Expenses 1,814,494             2,953,585              1,139,091   38.6% 19,747,276      30,002,899            10,255,623   34.2% 26,446,822      41,130,012            14,683,190  35.7%

Funding Balance Tracking: Approved Budget Actual Spend Variance

Beginning Funding Balance 100,000,000           100,000,000             -               

    Less:

Capital Assets
1

56,990,000             22,964,948               34,025,052    

FY2023 Operating Budget
2

11,127,113             6,699,546                 4,427,567      

FY2024 Operating Budget 30,002,899             19,747,276               10,255,623    

FY2025 Operating Budget -                        -                          -               

Ending Funding Balance 1,879,988             50,588,230            

Add: Prior year unspent Operating Budget 4,427,567             

Total Available Funding 6,307,555             

1 Staff will continue to monitor the project status of DTS' Capital Assets
2 Unspent budget from this period is added back to available DTS funding
3  

On June 6, 2024, the Board of Directors approved an update to the Digital Transformation Strategy 

which will impact these figures beginning July 2024

Note: Report includes applicable transactions for GASB 96, Subscription.

FY 2024 Month-to-Date FY 2024 Year-to-Date All Time to Date
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Attachment A1: FY 2022-23 DTS Year One Capital Budget by Project 

Attachment A1
Fiscal Year 2022 - 2023 Digital Transformation Capital Budget by Project

INFRASTRUCTURE TOTAL CAPITAL

Network Bandwidth Upgrade for All Sites (Wide Area Network) 4,805,000                  

Internet Bandwidth Upgrade for All Sites 2,574,000                  

Virtual Private Network Upgrade 75,000                       

Test Environment for Database High Availability 70,000                       

TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE 7,524,000$              

APPLICATIONS MANAGEMENT TOTAL CAPITAL

Care Management System 3,000,000                  

Enterprise Robotic Process Automation 1,500,000                  

Cloud Migration - Financial System 1,312,000                  

Clinical Evidence Based Criteria/Guidelines 950,000                     

Customer Relationship Management System 925,000                     

Automation Batch Processing Software 525,000                     

Orange County - Health Information Exchange Participation 500,000                     

Customer Service Enhanced System Functions 400,000                     

Automation Testing Tool 325,000                     

Member and Provider Portal Enhanced Stability 325,000                     

Electronic Cloud Based Fax Solution 275,000                     

Customer Service System Enhanced Functions 200,000                     

Provider Portal integration with Clinical Guidelines 125,000                     

Real Time - Application Programming Interface 100,000                     

TOTAL APPLICATIONS MANAGEMENT 10,462,000$           

APPLICATIONS DEVELOPMENT TOTAL CAPITAL

Digital Transformation Strategy Planning and Execution Support 3,140,000                  

Artificial Intelligence/Machine Learning Tools to Turn Data into Information 2,865,000                  

Migrate Data Warehouse/Analytics to the Cloud 1,800,000                  

Real-Time Data Exchange with Partners Enhancement 1,636,000                  

Regulatory Encounter Processing Vendor Replacement 1,350,000                  

Migration of Provider and Member Portals to the Cloud 1,225,000                  

Migrate Standardized HIPAA Data Exchange to the Cloud 1,200,000                  

Predictive Analytics to Support CalAIM and SDOH 900,000                     

Migrate Website Content Management System to the Cloud 750,000                     

Software Quality Assurance/Testing Tools 282,000                     

Data Warehouse Architecture Enhancement 250,000                     

Migrate User Authentication Process for Member and Provider Portal to Cloud 226,000                     

Analytics for Member and Provider Use of Web Tools 150,000                     

Mobile Application Development Tool 146,000                     

Enterprise Data Quality Enhancement 135,000                     

Migrate Operational Reporting/Analytics to the Cloud 102,000                     

Mobile Application Development Testing Tool 53,000                       

TOTAL APPLICATIONS DEVELOPMENT 16,210,000$           

TOTAL FY 2022-23 DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION YEAR ONE CAPITAL BUDGET  $           34,196,000 
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Board Action and CEO Approval Details for DTS Year One Capital Projects 

CEO Approved Action Details Project Description TOTAL CAPITAL

1 CEO Date - March 31, 2023

From Migrate Data Warehouse/Analytics to the Cloud (235,000)                    

To Digital Transformation Strategy Planning and Execution Support 235,000                     

2 CEO Date - March 31, 2023

From Migrate Data Warehouse/Analytics to the Cloud (220,000)                    

To Digital Transformation Strategy Planning and Execution Support 220,000                     

3 CEO Date - June 30, 2023

From Test Environment for Database High Availability (70,000)                      

To Data Protection and Recovery Operations Software Solution 70,000                       

4 CEO Date - June 30, 2023

From Virtual Private Network Upgrade (12,000)                      

To Data Protection and Recovery Operations Software Solution 12,000                       

5 CEO Date - June 30, 2023

From Internet Bandwidth Upgrade for All Sites (32,000)                      

To Cybersecurity Asset Management Software Solution 32,000                       

6 CEO Date - October 31, 2023

From Migrate Data Warehouse/Analytics to the Cloud (140,000)                    

To Enterprise Data Quality Enhancement 140,000                     

TOTAL CEO Approved Actions -$                          

Board Approved Action Details Project Description TOTAL CAPITAL

1 BOD Date - September 1, 2022 -                             

From DTS: Clinical Evidence Based Criteria/Guidelines -                             

To Name Change: App Mgmt - FWA Data Analytics/Detection Solutions

2 BOD Date - October 6, 2022 -                             

From Reserve

To Regulatory Encounter Processing Vendor Replacement 2,150,000                  

3 BOD Date - October 6, 2022 -                             

From Network Bandwidth Upgrade for All Sites (Wide Area Network) (400,000)                    

To Cybersecurity Asset Management Software Solution 400,000                     

4 BOD Date - October 6, 2022 -                             

From Network Bandwidth Upgrade for All Sites (Wide Area Network) (450,000)                    

To Data Protection and Recovery Operations Software Solution 450,000                     

5 BOD Date - March 2, 2023 -                             

From Digital Transformation Strategy Planning and Execution Support (800,000)                    

To Member Mobile App 800,000                     

6 BOD Date - March 2, 2023 -                             

From Digital Transformation Strategy Planning and Execution Support (1,800,000)                 

To Modern Customer Contact Center 1,800,000                  

7 BOD Date - March 2, 2023 -                             

From Migrate Data Warehouse/Analytics to the Cloud (450,000)                    

To Modern Customer Contact Center 450,000                     

8 BOD Date - April 6, 2023 -                             

From Reserve

To Digital Transformation Strategy Planning and Execution Support 500,000                     

9 BOD Date - March 7, 2024

From Cybersecurity Asset Management Software Solution (432,000)                    

Software Quality Assurance/Testing Tools (282,000)                    

Mobile Application Development Tool (146,000)                    

Migration of Provider and Member Portals to the Cloud (850,000)                    

Member and Provider Portal Enhanced Stability (325,000)                    

Customer Service System Enhanced Functions (200,000)                    

TOTAL Board Approved Actions 415,000$                 
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Revised Attachment A1: FY 2022-23 DTS Year One Capital Budget by Project 

Revised Attachment A1
Fiscal Year 2022-23 Digital Transformation Capital Budget by Project

INFRASTRUCTURE TOTAL CAPITAL

Network Bandwidth Upgrade for All Sites (Wide Area Network) 3,955,000                  

Internet Bandwidth Upgrade for All Sites 2,542,000                  

Modern Customer Contact Center 2,250,000                  

Data Protection and Recovery Operations Software Solution 532,000                     

Automation Batch Processing Software 525,000                     

Virtual Private Network Upgrade 63,000                       

Cybersecurity Asset Management Software Solution -                             

Test Environment for Database High Availability -                             

TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE 9,867,000$              

APPLICATIONS MANAGEMENT TOTAL CAPITAL

Care Management System 3,000,000                  

Enterprise Robotic Process Automation 1,500,000                  

Cloud Migration - Financial System 1,312,000                  

Clinical Evidence Based Criteria/Guidelines 950,000                     

Customer Relationship Management System 925,000                     

Orange County - Health Information Exchange Participation 500,000                     

Customer Service Enhanced System Functions 400,000                     

Automation Testing Tool 325,000                     

Electronic Cloud Based Fax Solution 275,000                     

Provider Portal Integration with Clinical Guidelines 125,000                     

Real Time - Application Programming Interface 100,000                     

Member and Provider Portal Enhanced Stability -                             

Customer Service System Enhanced Functions -                             

TOTAL APPLICATIONS MANAGEMENT 9,412,000$              

ENTERPRISE DATA AND SYSTEMS INTEGRATION TOTAL CAPITAL

Regulatory Encounter Processing Vendor Replacement 3,500,000                  

Real-Time Data Exchange with Partners Enhancement 1,636,000                  

Digital Transformation Strategy Planning and Execution Support 1,495,000                  

Migrate Standardized HIPAA Data Exchange to the Cloud 1,200,000                  

Predictive Analytics to Support CalAIM and SDOH 900,000                     

Migrate Data Warehouse/Analytics to the Cloud 755,000                     

Data Warehouse Architecture Enhancement 250,000                     

Migrate Operational Reporting/Analytics to the Cloud 102,000                     

TOTAL ENTERPRISE DATA AND SYSTEMS INTEGRATION 9,838,000$              

APPLICATIONS DEVELOPMENT TOTAL CAPITAL

Artificial Intelligence/Machine Learning Tools to Turn Data into Information 2,865,000                  

Member Mobile App 800,000                     

Migrate Website Content Management System to the Cloud 750,000                     

Migration of Provider and Member Portals to the Cloud 375,000                     

Enterprise Data Quality Enhancement 275,000                     

Migrate User Authentication Process for Member and Provider Portal to Cloud 226,000                     

Analytics for Member and Provider Use of Web Tools 150,000                     

Mobile Application Development Testing Tool 53,000                       

Software Quality Assurance/Testing Tools -                             

Mobile Application Development Tool -                             

TOTAL APPLICATIONS DEVELOPMENT 5,494,000$              

TOTAL FY 2022-23 REVISED DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION YEAR ONE CAPITAL BUDGET 34,611,000$           

Back to Agenda



 35 

Attachment A1: FY 2023-24 DTS Year Two Capital Budget by Project 

Attachment A1
Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024 Digital Transformation Capital Budget by Project

INFRASTRUCTURE TOTAL CAPITAL

Network Bandwidth Upgrade for All Sites (Wide Area Network) 2,040,000                             

Internet Bandwidth Upgrade for All Sites 546,000                                

Upgrade PACE Wide Area Networks 463,000                                

Upgrade PACE Internet Networks 238,000                                

Customer Service Virtual Agent Support 100,000                                

TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE 3,387,000$                        

APPLICATIONS MANAGEMENT TOTAL CAPITAL

Orange County - Health Information Exchange Coalition Data Sharing 5,000,000                             

Integrated Provider Data Management, Contract Management and Credentialing Systems 2,500,000                             

Customer Relationship Management System 2,000,000                             

Orange County - Health Information Exchange Participation 500,000                                

Orange County - Health Information Exchange Hospital Data Sharing 500,000                                

System Development Enhancement for CalAIM 400,000                                

Clinical Data Sets Quality Assurance & Data Aggregator Validation 250,000                                

Web Based Services for Core Administrative System 250,000                                

Care Management System Upgrades 150,000                                

Provider Portal Integration with Clinical Guidelines 75,000                                  

Electronic Cloud Based Fax Solution 75,000                                  

Healthcare Enterprise Management Platform 50,000                                  

TOTAL APPLICATIONS MANAGEMENT 11,750,000$                      

ENTERPRISE DATA AND SYSTEMS INTEGRATION TOTAL CAPITAL

Member Master Data Management 600,000                                

Assessments for Social Determinants of Health 400,000                                

Migrating of Operational Reporting/Analytics to the Cloud 300,000                                

Data Warehouse Architecture Enhancement 250,000                                

TOTAL ENTERPRISE DATA AND SYSTEMS INTEGRATION 1,550,000$                        

APPLICATIONS DEVELOPMENT TOTAL CAPITAL

Migrating Website Content Management System to the Cloud 1,500,000                             

Digital Transformation Strategy Planning and Execution Support 900,000                                

Artificial Intelligence/Machine Learning Tools to Turn Data into Information 200,000                                

Human Resources Capital Management Solution Software 200,000                                

Migrating of Provider and Member Portals to the Cloud 150,000                                

Human Resources Electronic Record System 150,000                                

Software Quality Assurance/Testing Tools 100,000                                

Migrating of Programmers Development Environment to Cloud 75,000                                  

Mobile Application Development Testing Tool 25,000                                  

TOTAL APPLICATIONS DEVELOPMENT 3,300,000$                        

ENTERPRISE ARCHITECTURE TOTAL CAPITAL

Data Conversion Using Artificial Intelligence/Machine Learning Tools 700,000                                

Provider Virtual Agent Support 300,000                                

TOTAL ENTERPRISE ARCHITECTURE 1,000,000$                        

TOTAL FY 2023-24 DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION YEAR TWO CAPITAL BUDGET 20,987,000$                      
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Board Action and CEO Approval Details for DTS Year Two Capital Projects 

CEO Approved Action Details TOTAL CAPITAL

1 CEO Date - July 12, 2023

From Infrastructure I&O Internet Bandwidth (36,000)                                

To Infrastructure I&O Network Bandwidth 36,000                                  

2 CEO Date - March 8, 2024

From Application Development Provider Virtual Agent Support (67,100)                                

To Application Development    Migrate Website Content Management System 67,100                                  

TOTAL CEO Approved Actions -$                                    

Board Approved Action DetailsProject Description TOTAL CAPITAL

1 BOD Date - November 2, 2023

From Reserve

To Care Management System Upgrades 350,000                                

2 BOD Date - November 2, 2023

From Reserve

To Care Management System Support Services 350,000                                

3 BOD Date - March 7, 2024

From Migration of Provider and Member Portals to the Cloud (140,000)                              

Mobile Application Development Tool (25,000)                                

Software Quality Assurance/Testing Tools (100,000)                              

TOTAL Board Approved Actions 435,000$                           
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Revised Attachment A1: FY 2023-24 DTS Year Two Capital Budget by Project 

Revised Attachment A1
Fiscal Year 2023-24 Digital Transformation Capital Budget by Project

INFRASTRUCTURE TOTAL CAPITAL

Network Bandwidth Upgrade for All Sites (Wide Area Network) 2,040,000                             

Internet Bandwidth Upgrade for All Sites 546,000                                

Upgrade PACE Wide Area Networks 463,000                                

Upgrade PACE Internet Networks 238,000                                

Customer Service Virtual Agent Support 100,000                                

TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE 3,387,000$                        

APPLICATIONS MANAGEMENT TOTAL CAPITAL

Orange County - Health Information Exchange Coalition Data Sharing 5,000,000                             

Integrated Provider Data Management, Contract Management and Credentialing Systems 2,500,000                             

Customer Relationship Management System 2,000,000                             

Care Management System Upgrades 500,000                                

Orange County - Health Information Exchange Hospital Data Sharing 500,000                                

Orange County - Health Information Exchange Participation 500,000                                

System Development Enhancement for CalAIM 400,000                                

Clinical Data Sets Quality Assurance & Data Aggregator Validation 250,000                                

Web Based Services for Core Administrative System 250,000                                

Provider Portal Integration with Clinical Guidelines 75,000                                  

Electronic Cloud Based Fax Solution 75,000                                  

Healthcare Enterprise Management Platform 50,000                                  

TOTAL APPLICATIONS MANAGEMENT 12,100,000$                      

ENTERPRISE DATA AND SYSTEMS INTEGRATION TOTAL CAPITAL

Member Master Data Management 600,000                                

Assessments for Social Determinants of Health 400,000                                

Care Management System Support Services 350,000                                

Migrating of Operational Reporting/Analytics to the Cloud 300,000                                

Data Warehouse Architecture Enhancement 250,000                                

TOTAL ENTERPRISE DATA AND SYSTEMS INTEGRATION 1,900,000$                        

APPLICATIONS DEVELOPMENT TOTAL CAPITAL

Migrating Website Content Management System to the Cloud 1,567,100                             

Digital Transformation Strategy Planning and Execution Support 900,000                                

Artificial Intelligence/Machine Learning Tools to Turn Data into Information 200,000                                

Human Resources Capital Management Solution Software 200,000                                

Human Resources Electronic Record System 150,000                                

Migrating of Programmers Development Environment to Cloud 75,000                                  

Migrating of Provider and Member Portals to the Cloud 10,000                                  

Software Quality Assurance/Testing Tools -                                       

Mobile Application Development Testing Tool -                                       

TOTAL APPLICATIONS DEVELOPMENT 3,102,100$                        

ENTERPRISE ARCHITECTURE TOTAL CAPITAL

Data Conversion Using Artificial Intelligence/Machine Learning Tools 700,000                                

Provider Virtual Agent Support 232,900                                

TOTAL ENTERPRISE ARCHITECTURE 932,900$                           

TOTAL FY 2023-24 REVISED DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION YEAR TWO CAPITAL BUDGET 21,422,000$                      
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Ca lOptim a  Hea lth , A Public Agency 

 

 

Board of Directors’  
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 

September 19, 2024 
 

CalAIM Program Summary (January 1, 2022, through July 31, 2024) 

 

Notes: 
• Medi-Cal ECM benefit began January 2022.  Community Support (CS) services (formerly In 

Lieu-of Services) were launched in multiple phases beginning in January 2022. 
• “Total Paid” reflects program costs since the various Enhanced Case Management (ECM) and 

Community Support services began. 
• Report has been updated to only reflect the 14 CS services plus ECM 
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Net Asset 
Analysis 

 
  

  CalOptima Health, A Public Agency Page 1 of 3 

Reserve Summary (as of June 30, 2024, Post-Audit) 
 Amount (in millions) 

Statutory and Board Designated Reserves $1,137.8* 

Capital Assets (Net of depreciation) $96.6 

Resources Committed by the Board $1,027.7 

Unallocated Resources $183.1* 

Total Net Assets $2,445.1 

*Total of Board designated reserves and unallocated resources can support approximately 104 days of 
CalOptima Health’s current operations. 

 

Details on Reserves 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
† Please see Exhibit 1 for information on Resources Committed by the Board 
‡ Please see Exhibit 2 for Reserve Level Landscape Analysis 
 
 
 
 

$1,137.8M‡

Tier 1: $1,005.9M
Tier 2: $131.9M $96.6M

$183.1M

$1,027.7M†

Statutory and Board 
Designated Reserves 
• Tier 1: Board Designated 

Reserves level at 2.5 to 3.0 
months of capitation ($1,005.9M 
is 2.82 months of capitation) 

• Tier 2: Statutory Designated 
Reserves to meet TNE 
Requirement ($131.9M is 103% 
of TNE) 

Committed by the Board  
• Community Outreach and 

Investments 

• Quality Incentive Programs 

• Infrastructure and Capacity 
Building 

• Provider Rate Increases 

Unallocated Resources 
• Board may use funds for  

new commitments 

• Management may transfer 
funds to maintain adequate 
reserves 

Capital Assets 
• 505 and 500 Buildings 

• Street Medicine Support Center 

• Furniture, Equipment and 
Building Improvements 
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Analysis 

 
 

 CalOptima Health, A Public Agency Page 2 of 3 

Exhibit 1: Board Approved Initiatives $1,417.8M (as of June 30, 2024, 
Post-Audit) 

 
 

Board-approved Initiatives Program Status
Board Approved 

Amount

Amounts 

Committed
1

Resource 

Available
2

Duration

Community Outreach and Investments

Homeless Health Initiative In progress 61.7$                  61.6$                      0.1$                     Multiple

CalFresh Outreach Strategy In progress 2.0$                    2.0$                        0.0$                     Ongoing

Coalition of OC Community Health Centers In progress 50.0$                  50.0$                      -$                    FY 2023 - FY 2027

Housing and Homelessness Incentive Program In progress 87.4$                  87.0$                      0.4$                     Multiple

General Awareness and Brand Development In progress 4.7$                    4.0$                        0.7$                     Ongoing

Member and Population Health Needs Assessment In progress 1.3$                    1.2$                        0.0$                     FY 2024 - FY 2025

NAMI Orange County Peer Support Program In progress 5.0$                    5.0$                        -$                    CY 2023 - CY 2027

CalFresh and Redetermination Outreach In progress 6.0$                    4.2$                        1.8$                     Ongoing

Provider Workforce Development In progress 50.0$                  44.6$                      5.4$                     FY 2024 - FY 2028

Wellness Prevention Program In progress 2.7$                    2.7$                        -$                     FY 2024 - FY 2027

Naloxone Distribution Event In progress 15.0$                  13.0$                      2.0$                     FY 2024

Garden Grove Recovery Center Development and Maintenance In progress 10.5$                  10.5$                      -$                     FY 2024

CalOptima Health Community Reinvestment Program In progress 38.0$                  1.9$                        36.1$                   CY 2024

Adult Expansion Outreach Strategy In progress 5.0$                    3.4$                        1.6$                     CY 2024

OneCare Outreach and Engagement Strategy In progress 1.0$                    0.4$                        0.6$                     04/01/24 - 06/30/24

Mind OC Grant (Irvine) In progress 15.0$                  15.0$                      -$                     One-time (CY 2023 - CY 2024)

Stipend Program for Masters of Social Work In progress 5.0$                    5.0$                        -$                     FY 2024 - FY 2028

Community Living Project (Tustin Location) Complete 18.0$                  0.4$                        17.6$                   TBD

Virtual Care Strategy & Roadmap
4 Complete 3.9$                    3.0$                        0.9$                     FY 2021

Mind OC Grant (Orange) Complete 1.0$                    1.0$                        -$                     One-time (FY 2022 - FY 2024)

Hospital Data Exchange Incentive
4 Not yet started 2.0$                    -$                        2.0$                     TBD

In-Home Care Pilot Program Not yet started 2.0$                    -$                        2.0$                     TBD

Subtotal 387.2$              315.7$                  71.4$                 

Quality Incentive Programs

Comprehensive Community Cancer Screening
4 In progress 50.1$                  50.1$                      -$                    CY 2023 - CY 2027

Five-Year Hospital Quality Program In progress 153.5$                153.5$                    -$                     CY 2023 - CY 2027

COVID-19 Vaccinaton Incentive
4 Complete 35.6$                  30.2$                      5.4$                     FY 2020 - FY 2023

Medi-Cal Annual Wellness Initiative Complete 3.8$                    1.3$                        2.5$                     FY 2023

OneCare Member Health Incentives Complete 0.5$                    0.3$                        0.2$                     FY 2023

Post-Acute Infection Prevention Quality Initiative (PIPQI)
4 Complete 5.3$                    4.6$                        0.7$                     FY 2019 - FY 2022

Quality Initiatives from Unearned P4V Program Not yet started 23.3$                  -$                        23.3$                   FY 2024 - FY 2025

Subtotal 272.1$              239.9$                  32.1$                 

Infrastructure and Capacity Building -$               

Digital Transformation Strategy (DTS)
3 In progress 100.0$                68.0$                      32.0$                   FY 2023 - FY 2025

IGT Program Support
4 In progress 2.0$                    0.5$                        1.5$                     Ongoing

Post-Pandemic Supplemental Complete 107.5$                107.5$                    -$                     FY 2024

Whole Child Model (WCM) Program
4 Complete 12.8$                  12.8$                      -$                     FY 2019

Medi-Cal Provider Rate Increases Not yet started 526.2$                526.2$                    -$                     07/01/2024 - 12/31/2026

Skilled Nursing Facility Access Program Not yet started 10.0$                  -$                        10.0$                   FY 2024 - FY 2026

Subtotal 758.5$              715.1$                  43.5$                 

Total 1,417.8$           1,270.7$               147.0$               

1
 Amounts committed include payments and remaining balance of open Purchase Orders and/or an estimation of amounts committed

2 
Resource Available is the amount available for new initiatives after deduction of the Spent Amount and the Additional Amounts Committed from the Board Approved Amount

3 
Additional Amounts Committed for DTS are preliminary estimates

4
 Initiatives are funded by IGT dollars

Note: Totals may not add due to rounding
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Exhibit 2: Reserve Level Landscape Analysis (as of June 30, 2024, 
Post-Audit) 
 
At the May 5, 2024, meeting, the Board approved the modification of CalOptima Health Policy 
GA.3001: Statutory and Board-Designated Reserve Funds.  The updated policy increased the Board-
designated reserve levels to 2.5 to 3.0 months of consolidated monthly revenue and created a 
separate reserve fund to ensure compliance with TNE requirements.  The charts below provide 
information on the levels of these reserve funds as of June 30, 2024. 
 

 

 

$891.1M

$1,069.3M

Current Amount
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Our 
Mission​
To serve member 
health with 
excellence and 
dignity, respecting 
the value and needs 
of each person.​

Our 
Vision
By 2027, remove 
barriers to health 
care access for our 
members, implement 
same-day treatment 
authorizations and 
real-time claims 
payments for our 
providers, and 
annually assess 
members’ social 
determinants of 
health.

1
CalOptima Health, A Public Agency

Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
September 19, 2024

Nancy Huang, Chief Financial Officer

Enrollment Trend Analysis 
(through June 30, 2024)
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Actuals v. Budget – Total Membership 

Note:  Data included in this report are based on member eligible 
months rather than booked enrollment (as used in the financials)

Consolidated Consolidated
Budget Forecast →

915,951 

1,009,649 

June 2024 Forecast:
810,045 

758,135 

842,134 

991,496 June 2024 Actual:
918,730 
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Actuals v. Budget – Medi-Cal

○ Medi-Cal specific aggregate enrollment forecast
○ Overlay of Orange County unemployment rate

Medi-Cal
Budget Forecast →

741,922 

825,033 

898,461 

991,643 

June Forecast:
792,145 
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15.1%
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Actuals v. Budget – OneCare

Budget Forecast →

2,663 

Cal MediConnect 
Transition to D-SNP 

and Medi-Cal

June Forecast: 17,392 

1,450 1,928 

14,374 14,775 14,400 

June Actual: 17,287 
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Actuals v. Budget – PACE

PACE

 

Budget Forecast →
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@CalOptima
www.caloptima.org

Stay Connected With Us
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Board of Directors'  
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 

September 19, 2024 
 

Shared Risk Pool Performance Update 
 
Medi-Cal:  As of June 30, 2024, Medi-Cal has three (3) Shared Risk Groups (SRGs). 
 
Effective Dates: 
• Noble – January 2008 
• AltaMed – March 2014 

• UCMG – July 2008 

 
Enrollment   
SRGs are serving approximately 145,000 members.  It represents about 16% of Medi-Cal enrollment.   
 

       
 
Notes: 
- Monarch was an SRG from July 2008 to January 2017; became an HMO group in February 2017 
- Prospect was an SRG from May 2007 to June 2017; became an HMO group in July 2017  
- Arta and Talbert were consolidated with Monarch into one HMO group, Optum, effective January 2024 
 
Pool Performance - (Medi-Cal Classic + Expansion) 

 Number of SRGs 
Fiscal 
Year 

Gross Deficit Gross Surplus CalOptima 
Health Share 

(40%) 

Group Share 
(60%) 

Total In 
Deficit 

In 
Surplus 

2018                      -  111,191,833       44,476,733 66,715,100    5 0 5 
2019                     -            98,625,485       39,450,194        59,175,291  5 0 5 
2020                     -            56,137,205      22,454,882       33,682,323 5 0 5 
2021                     -          45,493,299       18,197,320       27,295,979  5 0 5 
2022 -                       39,116,344  15,646,537    23,469,806 5 0 5 
2023                    - 56,633,604  22,653,442 33,980,162 5 0 5 

2024Q4 - 37,512,843 15,005,137 22,507,706 5 0 5 
 - $444,710,613  $177,884,246 $266,826,368    

 
Note: IBNR is calculated based on the paid claims experience. Medical Shared Risk Pool data for fiscal years prior to 2018 has been archived. 
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OneCare:  As of June 30, 2024, OneCare has four (4) SRGs.   
 
Effective Dates: 
• Family Choice – October 2005 
• Noble – December 2012 

 
• AltaMed – August 2008 
• UCMG – January 2013 

 
Notes: 
- Monarch was an SRG from October 2005 to December 2022; became an HMO group in January 2023 
- AMVI/Prospect was an SRG from October 2005 to December 2022; became an HMO group in January 2023 
- Arta and Talbert were consolidated with Monarch into one HMO group, Optum, effective January 2024 
 
Enrollment 
SRGs are serving approximately 4,000 members.  It represents about 23% of OneCare enrollment. 
 

 
 
Notes: 
- OneCare Connect members transitioned to the OneCare program effective January 1, 2023 
 
Pool Performance 
 

Calendar 
Year 

Gross Deficit Gross Surplus CalOptima 
Health Share 

(50%) 

Group Share 
(50%)           

Total In 
Deficit 

In 
Surplus 

2018          (648,012)            905,714           (148,420)            406,122  8 3 5 
2019          (283,379)            553,739          11,785   258,574                   8 3 5 

    2020 (52,626) 1,584,991          741,485            790,880 8 1 7 
2021 (1,439,612)   356,683 (1,179,903)     96,973 8 6 2 
2022 (751,541) 1,498,620 35,560 711,520 8 3 5 
2023 (2,002,971)    2,191,171 (850,601) 1,038,801 6 1 5 

2024Q2 (1,457,187) 820,165 (986,020) 348,997 4 3 1 
 $(6,635,328) $7,911,083 ($2,376,114) $3,651,868    

 
Note: Group share deficit limited to $5.00 PMPM. Estimated RAPS recoupment excluded from the above data.  OneCare Shared Risk Pool data 
for months prior to January 2018 has been archived.  
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OneCare Connect:  As of December 31, 2022, OneCare Connect had six (6) SRGs. 
 
Effective Dates: 
• Noble – July 2015 
• UCMG – July 2015 

• FCMG – January 2016 
• Talbert – January 2016 

• AltaMed – July 2015 • Arta Western – January 2016 
 
Enrollment 
Effective January 1, 2023, the OneCare Connect program ended.  OneCare Connect enrollment transitioned to 
the OneCare program. 
 

 
 
Notes: 
- Monarch was an SRG from July 2015 to January 2017; became an HMO group in February 2017 
- Prospect was an SRG from July 2015 to June 2017; became an HMO group in July 2017 
 
Pool Performance 
The final OneCare Connect shared risk pool report will be released to SRGs no earlier than July 2024 and 
after the final close-out settlement is issued by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) to 
CalOptima Health. 
 

Calendar 
Year 

Gross Deficit Gross Surplus CalOptima 
Health Share 

(50%) 

Group Share 
(50%) 

Total In 
Deficit 

In 
Surplus 

2018                       - 9,952,022 4,976,011 4,976,011 6 0 6 
2019 (39,792)                                          7,941,153 3,950,680  3,950,680  6 1 5 
2020 - 11,577,166 5,788,583 5,788,583 6 0 6 
2021 (101,572) 7,094,718 3,481,731 3,511,414 6 1 5 
2022 (2,001,796) 1,254,098 (1,215,583) 467,885   6 3 3 

                    $(2,143,160) $37,819,157 $16,981,422  $18,694,573    
 
Note: Group share deficit limited to $5.00 PMPM. QI withhold reimbursement and estimated RAPS recoupment excluded from the above data. 
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Ca lOptim a  Hea lth , A Public Agency 

Board of Directors’  
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 

September 19, 2024 
 

Health Network Financial Compliance Review Update 

On a quarterly basis, CalOptima Health reviews the unaudited financial statements of the 
capitated Physician Groups, Hospitals and HMOs that comprise CalOptima Health’s health 
networks.  After internal review, CalOptima Health's financial staff makes a determination as to 
whether the capitated entity has the ability to assume the risk of a capitated contract.  The 
following provides an overview of the review criteria: 

1. Physician Groups and Hospitals:  These entities are required to pass the following tests: 
• Current ratio must be greater than or equal to 1.0; 
• Tangible net equity (TNE) must be greater than or equal to 1.0; and 
• Cash to claims ratio must be greater than or equal to 0.75. 
 

HMOs:  These entities are required to have a TNE greater of (a) $1.0 million; (b) percent 
of premium revenues; or (c) percent of healthcare expenses. 

2. Financial Security Reserves and Withhold:  Health networks are required to meet the 
current financial security reserve and withhold levels pursuant to CalOptima Health 
policy. 

 

Results of the March 31, 2024, Financial Compliance Review:  CalOptima Health reviewed the 
unaudited financial statements for each health network entity for the period ending March 31, 
2024, and found that all health networks are in compliance. 

 Physician 
Groups 

Hospitals HMOs 

Total 6 2 4 
Passed Review 6 2 4 
Failed Review 0 0 0 
On Notice 0 0 0 
Did Not Submit Statements 0 0 0 
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